
CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

AGENDA
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Brenan Meeting Center
706 Kenwood Road
Champaign, Illinois

Wednesday, December 11, 2019
5:30 p.m.

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

C. COMMUNICATIONS

D. TREASURER'S REPORT

1. Consideration of Acceptance of Treasurer's Report for the Month of November 2019

E. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

1. General Announcements

F. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. Champaign Parks Foundation

G. REPORT OF OFFICERS

1. Attorney's Report

2. President's Report

H. CONSENT AGENDA
All items appearing below are considered routine by the Board and shall be enacted by one motion. If
discussion is desired, that item shall be removed and discussed separately.

1. Approval of Minutes of the Public Hearing and the Regular Board Meeting, October 9, 2019
2. Approval of Minutes of the Special Board Meeting, October 23,2019
3. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, November 13, 2019
4. Approval of the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting, November 25, 2019
5. Approval of a Donation Agreement between the Park District and OSF Healthcare System, OSF

Healthcare Heart of Mary Medical Center as it relates to the Martens Center
6. Approval of Change Order No. 1 for the Zahnd Park Accessible Path Project for $12,712.79 credit

I. NEW BUSINESS

1. Approval of Disbursements as of November 13, 2019
Staff recommends approval of disbursements for the period beginning November 13, 2019 and ending
December 10, 2019. (Roll Call Vote)

2. Approval of Naming the Education Wing at the new Martens Center
Staff recommends approval of following up with the Johnson family to request approval to name the
Education Wing at the new Martens Center the Teretha Johnson Education Wing who passed away on
October 27, 2019 at the age of 105.

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Regular Board Meeting
December 11, 2019
Page 2

3. Bids for 2020 Beddina Plants
Staff recommends accepting the bids and authorizing the Executive Director to execute contracts to
purchase 2020 bedding plants for each order to the respective lowest responsible bidders as follows:
Park Program Order with 2,313 flats to Ropp's Flower Factory for a total of $47,994 and Flower Island
Order with 2,118 flats to Connie's Country Greenhouse for a total of $45,968. The total cost of the two
recommended orders for 2020 will be $93,962 with funds allocated in the FY20-21 operating budget.

4. Approval to Apply for the 2019 Park and Recreational Facility Construction Act (PARC) Grant
Staff recommends approval to apply for a $2.5M PARC Grant for the Martens Center, and approval of
the PARC Grant Program Resolution of Authorization due to the Illinois Department of Natural
Resources (IDNR) by January 21, 2020.

5. Approval of a Central Parks App Hosting and Support Agreement with Links Technolociv Solutions, Inc.
Staff recommends approval of a Central Parks App Hosting and Support Agreement with Links
Technology Solutions, Inc. for hosting, support and ongoing maintenance services for the Champaign
Park District's App Development Project for a three (3) year term.

6. Approval of an Amendment to an Agreement with BLDD for the Virciinia Theatre Sound System
Staff recommends approval of an amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with BLDD
Architects for the Virginia Theatre sound system to proceed with design, bid, and construction work, and
authorize the Executive Director to execute the agreement.

7. Approval of an Agreement with Architectural Expressions, LLP for The Bicentennial Center Project
Staff recommends approval of an agreement between Park District and Architectural Expressions, LLP
for the Bicentennial Center facility renovations project.

J. OLD BUSINESS

K. DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Dodds 3-Plex Concession Study Report
2. Prairie Farm Master Plan
3. Taste of C-U Final Report

4. Day Camp Report
5. Aquatics Report

L. COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS

M. ADJOURN

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Octobers, 2019

PUBLIC HEARING

The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held a Public Hearing on Wednesday, October 9,
2019 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois, pursuant to
published notice duly given. President Hays presided over the hearing.

Present: President Craig Hays, Vice President Kevin Miller, Commissioners Barbara Kuhl, Jane L. Solon,
and Timothy P. McMahon, Treasurer Donna Lawson and Attorney Guy Hall.

Staff Present: Joseph DeLuce, Executive Director, Cindy Harvey, Assistant to the Executive Director/Board
Secretary, Andrea Wallace, Director of Finance, Dan Olson, Director of Operations, Jameel Jones, Director

of Recreation and Andrew Weiss, Director of Planning.

Katie Bermingham, CPA, Manager with CliftonLarsonAllen, Jim Lopez, President of Broeren Russo
Builders, Inc., and Jeannette Donaldson, Champaign resident.

Open the Public Hearing
President Hays opened the public hearing at 7:00 p.m. He stated the purpose of the public hearing was to
discuss and receive comments on the intent to issue $1,168,900 in General Obligation Bonds. He reported
a notice of the public hearing was published in The News-Gazette on October 1, 2019.

President Hays called for comments from the public. There were no comments received.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to close the public hearing. The motion was seconded by Vice
President Miller. The motion passed 5-0.

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held a Regular Board Meeting on Wednesday,
October 9, 2019 immediately following the Public Hearing at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood
Road, Champaign, Illinois, pursuant to notice duly given. President Hays presided over the meeting.

The Commissioners, Officers, staff and public present at the Public Hearing were in attendance at the
Regular Meeting.

Call to Order
President Hays called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.

Presentations

Audit
Katie Bermingham, CPA, Manager with CliftonLarsonAllen, presented the audit. She thanked Ms. Wallace
and her team for preparing for the audit. She reviewed the audit process and highlighted areas of the
Governance Letter, Financial Statements, and graphs. Ms. Bermingham reported that the Park District
received an unmodified (clean) opinion. She also reviewed other areas of the financial statement.

The Board then thanked Ms. Bermingham for the presentation.



Bicentennial Center
Mr. DeLuce reported that staff is considering the possibility of relocating the Champaign-Urbana Special
Recreation (CUSR) and other Park District programs to the Bicentennial Center for the next 10 years. He
stated that staff hired Broeren Russo Builders, Inc. to provide a cost estimate to renovate the building.

Mr. Jim Lopez, President of Broeren Russo Builders, Inc., reported that the company was hired to study
the space at the Bicentennial Center for future use by CUSR for the next 10 to 15 years. He presented the
executive summary of findings as well as budget estimates. Discussion ensued. Mr. Lopez responded to
questions by the Board. Further discussion ensued about the proposed construction schedule and contract
with The Cage.

Ms. Wallace discussed the cost sharing between the Park District and Urbana Park District for CUSR.Mr.
DeLuce staff that staff will seek Board direction on whether to move forward with the renovation at a future
meeting.

Comments from the Public
There were no comments from the public.

Communications
President Hays circulated the communications.

Treasurer's Report

Treasurer Lawson reviewed the Treasurer's Report for the period September 1- 30, 2019 and found it to be
in appropriate order.

Commissioner Solon made a motion to accept the Treasurer's Report for the period September 1-30,
2019. The motion was seconded by Commissioner McMahon. The motion passed 5-0.

Executive Director's Report

General Announcements
Mr. Olson reported that the Park District, with INDR's assistance, is introducing fall trout fishing at Kaufman
Lake. The season opens at 5 a.m. on October 19, 2019. Mr. DeLuce reported that FlannelFest will be held
October 11, 2019 at 5 p.m. in Hessel Park. He updated the Board on a video promoting the event called
Flannel Fairy featuring Operations staff. Mr. DeLuce requested an earlier start time for the November 13,
2019 Regular Board meeting due to Board, Officers, and staff attending the Legal Symposium on
November 14, 2019 in Oak Brook, IL. Discussion ensued. It was the consensus of the Board to begin the
November 13, 2019 meeting at 5:45 p.m.

Committee and Liaison Reports

Champaign Parks Foundation
Commissioner Miller reported that the Foundation Board had not met.

Report of Officers

Attorney's Report
Mr. Hall reported that he is working on contracts related to the Martens Center.

President's Report
None.

Consent Agenda
President Hays stated that all items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and shall be acted
upon by one motion. President Hays reported that Consent Agenda Item 1 is being removed and shall be
discussed separately.

Minutes of the October 9, 2019 Regular Board Meeting
Page 2



2. Acceptance of the FY1 9 Audit Report as presented.
3. Approval of Ordinance No. 640, an ordinance providing for the disposal of personal property owned

by the Champaign Park District of Champaign County, which will allow for the disposal of items
listed in Attachment A.

Vice President Miller made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda Items 2 and 3. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 5-0.

1. Approval of a Donation Agreement between OSF Healthcare System, OSF Healthcare Heart of
Mary Medical Center and the Park District
Commissioner Kuhl expressed concern about the proposed location of the OSF name on the door
and proposed transfer of rights to another building in the event something happens to the Martens
Center. She also inquired about the effective date of the agreement. Mr. DeLuce stated that staff
will revisit these issues and present the agreement at a future meeting.

New Business

Approval of Disbursements as of September 11, 2019
Vice President Miller made a motion to approve the list of disbursements for the period beginning
September 11, 2019 and ending October 8, 2019. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. The
motion passed 5-0. Upon roll call vote, the vote was as follows: Commissioner Solon - yes; Commissioner
McMahon - yes; Vice President Miller - yes; President Hays - yes; and Commissioner Kuhl - yes.

Approval to Solicit Bids for Issuance of General Obligation Bonds
Vice President Miller made a motion to approve and confirm authorizing the Treasurer and Director of
Finance to solicit bids for the issuance of $1,168,900 in General Obligation Bonds for the purpose of
paying debt service on certain outstanding obligations and for financing, as applicable, the maintenance,
improvements and protection of lands, buildings and parks, including land acquisition, and related design,
facilities, improvements and costs, as provided in a resolution adopted by the Board at its Regular Meeting
held September 11, 2019. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 5-0.

Approval of a Resolution Estimating Taxes to be Levied for FY20-21
Ms. Wallace presented the report. She reported that the Board is required to pass a resolution setting the
tax levy for the following fiscal year (FY) 2021. Afterwards, the staff will publish the Truth in Taxation
notice, if required. She presented three options for consideration. Discussion ensued. After discussion,
Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to table this item until the October 23, 2019 Special meeting. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner McMahon. The motion passed 5-0.

Approval of the Martens Center Project
Mr. DeLuce presented about the Martens Center. The update included discussion about associated cost
and space needs with the Don Moyer Boys and Girls Club and Champaign County Regional Planning
Commission, possible inclusion of a pool, PARC Grant, and other matters relating to the Martens Center.
Staff responded to questions from the Board. Staff recommended proceeding with development and
construction of the Martens Center at Human Kinetics Park pursuant to the previous assessments and
evaluations by the Board. Discussion ensued about amenities and uses for the Martens Center.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to table this item. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
McMahon. The motion passed 5-0.

Old Business
None.

Discussion Items
President Hays encouraged everyone to review the estimated budgets for the proposed Bicentennial
Center as a facility for CUSR.

Minutes of the October 9, 2019 Regular Board Meeting
PageS



Comments from Commissioners

Commissioner Kuhl reported that a person approached her about problem trees in Morrissey Park and
before she could pass the information on to staff, staff has already begun the cleanup. She thanked thank
for their efforts. She also reported that she received a compliment about how Virginia Theatre staff handled
the Bob Nutt concert. She also complimented the Virginia Theatre staff for their efforts.

Commissioner Solon commented on the thank you card in Board correspondence from Noel Park
neighbors regarding the playground and other improvements to the park. She reported that she received
pictures of children playing in the park and thanked staff for their efforts.

President Hays has attended programs at the Virginia Theatre the last week and found that both programs
were great. He thanked the Virginia Theatre staff for their efforts.

Adjourn
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to adjourn
the meeting. The motion was seconded by Vice President Miller. The motion passed 5-0 and the meeting
was adjourned at 10.11 p.m.

Approved

Craig W. Hays, President Cindy Harvey, Secretary

Minutes of the October 9, 2019 Regular Board Meeting
Page 4



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING

BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS

November 13, 2019

PUBLIC HEARING

The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held a Public Hearing on Wednesday, November
13, 2019 at 5:45 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois, pursuant
to published notice duly given. President Hays presided over the hearing.

Present: Vice President Kevin Miller, Commissioners Barbara J. Kuhl, Jane L. Solon, and Timothy P.
McMahon (arrived at 6:16 p.m.), and Treasurer Donna Lawson and Attorney Guy Hall.

Absent: President Craig Hays.

Staff Present: Joseph DeLuce, Executive Director, Cindy Harvey, Assistant to the Executive
Director/Board Secretary, Andrea Wallace, Director of Finance, Dan Olson, Director of Operations,
Jameel Jones, Director of Recreation, Jimmy Gleason, Director of Revenue Facilities, Tammy Hoggatt,
Director of HR, Risk & IT, and Andrew Weiss, Director of Planning.

Other staff were in attendance as well as members of the public.

Open the Public Hearing
Vice President Miller opened the Public Hearing at 5:45 p.m. He stated that the purpose of the Public
Hearing was to discuss and receive comments on the proposed Property Tax Levy for the year
commencing May 1, 2020 and ending April 30, 2021. A notice of the proposed 2020-2021 Tax Levy was
published in The News-Gazette on November 5, 2018 in compliance with state law.

Vice President Miller called for comments from the public. There were no comments received.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to adjourn the Public Hearing. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 3-0.

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held a Regular Board Meeting on Wednesday,
November 13, 2019 immediately following the Public Hearing at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706
Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois, pursuant to notice duly given. Vice President Miller presided over
the meeting.

The Commissioners, Officers, and staff present at the Public Hearing were in attendance at the Regular
Meeting.

Call to Order
Vice President Miller called the meeting to order at 5:48 p.m.

Comments from the Public
None.

Communications
None.

Treasurer's Report

Treasurer Lawson presented the Treasurer's Report for the period October 1-31, 2019. She stated the
Park District's finances have been reviewed and found to be in appropriate order.



Commissioner Solon made a motion to accept the Treasurer's Report for the period October 1-31, 2019.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Kuhl. The motion passed 3-0.

Executive Director's Report

General Announcements
Mr. DeLuce reported that the Parade of Lights will be held on November 30, 2019 and will begin at 6:00
p.m. He also reported that the Park District's Shop Open House will be held on December 4, 2019 at 3
p.m. Mr. DeLuce introduced Jimmy Gleason, new Director of Revenue Facilities. He also informed the

Board that a new system for email will begin November 29, 2019 and information will be forwarded to the
Commissioners about the changes. Discussion ensued about the filter, Office 365, and use of the Park
District email addresses.

Committee and Liaison Reports

Champaian Parks Foundation
Commissioner Miller reported that tickets for Ties and Tennies scheduled for January 9,2019 at the
Virginia Theatre are available online. He reported that $5,000 in sponsorships have been received to
date. Commissioner Miller stated that food vendors for the fundraiser are still being sought.

Report of Officers

Attorney's Report
Attorney Hall reported that he is working on routine ongoing matters.

President's Report
None.

Consent Agenda
Vice President Miller stated that all items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and shall be
acted upon by one motion. He reported that Consent Agenda Items 9 and 15 are being removed and will
be discussed separately.

1. Approval of Minutes of the Study Session, August 28,2019
2. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, September 11,2019
3. Approval of Minutes of the Special Board Meeting, September 25,2019
4. Approval of Minutes of the Executive Session, September 25, 2019
5. Approval of Meeting Dates for 2020
6. Approval inserting Craig Hays Delegate, Kevin Miller as 1st Alternate, Timothy McMahon as 2nd

Alternate and Joe DeLuce as 3rd Alternate to serve as delegates to the Annual Business Meeting
of the Illinois Association of Park Districts to be held on January 25,2020

7. Approval of payment of the 2018 bond issue in the amount of $1,173,263.44 due by November
30,2019

8. Approval of the low bid from Hickory Point Bank of 1.5% for the $1,168,900 bond issue and to act
as the bond registrar at no additional fee

10. Accepting the lowest responsible bid to purchase one (1) new 2020 Ford F-350 with Dump Body
from Ford City Champaign in the amount of $46,211

11. Approval of Ordinance No.643, an ordinance providing for the disposal of personal property
owned by the Champaign Park District, which will allow for the disposal of one (1) 2006 Ford F-
150 with Dump Body

12. Accepting the lowest responsible bid from Spear Corporation for the Sholem Aquatic Center Sand
Filter Rehab in the amount of $50,000, and authorizing the Executive Director enter into a
contract for the work

13. Approval of the Prequalified List of Architects and Engineers as shown in Attachment 1 for a three
(3) year period, which will end in November 2022

14. Approval of Change Order No. 1 to a Subrecipient Agreement with the City of Champaign for the
FY18-19 Community Matters Program extending the agreement for six (6) months to expire
December 31, 2019

Minutes of the November 13, 2019 Regular Board Meeting
Page 2



Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Items 1 through 8 and 10 through 14.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Kuhl. The motion passed 3-0.

9. Approval of a Donation Agreement between the Park District and OSF Healthcare System, OSF
Healthcare Heart of Mary Medical Center as it relates to the Martens Center
Mr. DeLuce reported that it was brought to his attention the difference in the period of years for
the agreement with OSF since the donation amounts from OSF and Carle are the same. He
stated that staff is requesting Board consensus on whether the agreement with OSF should be for
25 years. Discussion ensued. It was the consensus of the Board that the agreement be revised
for a period of 25 years.

This items was tabled until the December 11, 2019 Regular Board meeting.

15. Approval of the FYE2020 budget book
Commissioner Solon stated that she had not had an opportunity to review the proposed budget
book and did not feel comfortable voting on it yet. Discussion ensued. The budget and
appropriation ordinance was approved in July 2019. Ms. Wallace noted that typically the
ordinance and the budget book are approved at the same. However, there were numerous issues

with implementing new software. The budget book is due November 30, 2019. Commissioner
Solon asked whether a special meeting could be held to vote on the budget book. There was
further discussion about deadline for submittal of the budget book, amount of time needed to
review the budget, and setting a date and time for a special meeting.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve the 2020 annual budget book as presented unless
there are any material objections filed to the Executive Director by noon on November 19, 2019,
and if there are any material objections field by that time then there will be a meeting held on
Monday, November 25, 2019 at 8:45 a.m. with Commissioner Solon to attend electronically for
final approval. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 3-0.

New Business

Approval of Disbursements as of October 9, 2019
Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve the list of disbursements for the period beginning
October 9, 2019 and ending November 12, 2019. Discussion ensued. Commission Solon requested a
report on funds spent with nonprofit originations within the past year. Mr. DeLuce discussed the process
for determining which organizations to support.

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Kuhl. Upon roll call vote, the vote was as follows:
Commissioner Solon - yes; Vice President Miller - yes; and Commissioner Kuhl - yes. The motion
passed 3-0.

Approval of Adoption of Ordinance No. 641: Bond Ordinance
Staff recommended adoption of Ordinance No. 641: an ordinance authorizing the issuance of General
Obligation Park Limited Bonds, Series 2019, of the Champaign Park District, Champaign County, Illinois,
and providing the details of such bonds, for the levy of direct annual taxes to pay such bonds, and related
matters.

Commissioner Solon made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 641: an ordinance authorizing the issuance
of General Obligation Park Limited Bonds, Series 2019, of the Champaign Park District, Champaign
County, Illinois, and providing the details of such bonds, for the levy of direct annual taxes to pay such
bonds, and related matters. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Kuhl. Upon roll call vote, the
vote was as follows: Commissioner Solon - yes; Vice President Miller - yes; and Commissioner Kuhl -
yes. The motion passed 3-0. A copy of Ordinance No. 641 is attached to the minutes.

Minutes of the November 13, 2019 Regular Board Meeting
PageS



Approval of Adoption of Ordinance No. 642: Tax Levy Ordinance
Staff recommended adoption of Ordinance No. 642: an ordinance to levy property taxes in the amount of
$13,732,633 for fiscal year beginning May 1, 2020 and ending April 30,2021.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 642: an ordinance to levy property taxes in
the amount of $13,732,633 for fiscal year beginning May 1 , 2020 and ending April 30, 2021. The motion
was seconded by Commissioner Solon. Upon roll call vote, the vote was as follows: Commissioner
Solon - yes; Commissioner Miller - yes; Vice President McMahon - yes; President Hays - yes; and
Commissioner Kuhl - yes. The motion passed 3-0.

OLD BUSINESS

ApDroval of an Aareement with Hitchcock Design, Inc. d/b/a Hitchcock Design Group for development of
Human Kinetics Park
Mr. DeLuce presented the report. He reported that staff updated the agreement based on feedback from
the Board. Discussion ensued about the rationale for use affirms chosen for the project and drainage
issues. Mr. Weiss stated that staff supports the recommendation to move forward with Hitchcock Design
for this project.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve an agreement between the Park District and Hitchcock
Design Group to provide professional services for the development of Human Kinetics Park. The motion
was seconded by Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 3-0.

Discussion Items
None.

Commissioner Timothy P. McMahon arrived to the meeting at approximately 6:16 p.m.

Comments from Commissioners
Commissioner Solon reported that the performance by the Indigo Girls on November 12, 2019 at the
Virginia Theatre was good.

Vice President Miller reported that he attended the CUSR Cupcake 5K on November 3, 2019, which had
good turnout and everyone had a good time.

Adjourn
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to adjourn
the meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 4-0 and the meeting
was adjourned at 6:19 p.m.

Approved:

Craig W. Hays, President Cindy Harvey, Secretary

Minutes of the November 13, 2019 Regular Board Meeting
Page 4



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS

November 25, 2019

The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held a Special Meeting on Monday, November 25,
2019 at 8:45 a.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois, pursuant to
published notice duly given. President Hays presided over the meeting.

Present: President Craig W. Hays, Vice President Kevin J. Miller, Commissioners Jane L. Solon
(remotely), and Timothy P. McMahon.

Absent: Commissioner Barbara J. Kuhl.

Staff Present: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director, Cindy Harvey, Assistant to the Executive Director/Board
Secretary, Andrea Wallace, Director of Finance, and Tammy Hoggatt, Director of Human Resources, IT
and Risk.

Call to Order
President Hays called the meeting to order at 8:45 a.m.

Comments from the Public
There were no comments from the public.

New Business

Approval of the FYE2020 Budget Book
Staff recommended approval of the revised FYE2020 budget book.

Commissioner McMahon made a motion to approve the revised FYE2020 budget book. The motion was
seconded by Vice President Miller. The motion passed 4-0.

Comments from Commissioners

There were no comments from Commissioners.

Adjourn
There being no further business to come before the Board, Vice President Miller made a motion to
adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner McMahon. The motion passed 4-0 and
the meeting was adjourned at 8:48 a.m.

Approved

Craig W. Hays, President Cindy Harvey, Secretary



DONATION AGREEMENT
OSF Healthcare System,
OSF HealthCare Heart of Mary Medical Center
Champaign Park District,
Martens Center

Page 1

DONATION AGREEMENT
behveen

OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM,
OSF HEALTHCARE HEART OF MARY MEDICAL CENTER

and

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTMCT,
MARTENS CENTER

This Donation Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of the date last
written below by and between OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, an Illinois not-for-profit

corporation ("System") as owner and operator ofOSF HealthCare Heart of Mary Medical Center

("HMMC")(System and HMMC collectively referred to as "OSF") and CHAMPAIGN PARK
DISTRICT, an Illinois municipal corporation ("Park District") as owner and operator ofMartens
Center, ("Center")(Park District and Center collectively referred to as "Park District"). OSF and

Park District hereinafter referred to individually as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties."

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Park District is an Illinois Municipal Corporation located and doing business
in Champaign, Illinois.

WHEREAS, OSF is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation which owns and operates

HMMC.

WHEREAS, a common mission of the Parties is to improve the lives of the population in

and around Champaign, Illinois, and OSF desires to expand community health and wellness

initiatives in Champaign;

WHEREAS, in furtherance of its mission and purpose to improve the health status of,

medically underserved communities in Champaign and surrounding communities served by OSF,
OSF desires to provide a donation to Park District to defray costs Park District expects to incur in

establishing the exercise fitness centerarea atwithin the Center on the site located on or about

Human Kinetics Park in Champaign, Illinois (hereinafter referred to as, "Fitness Center"), for the

purposes of enhancing community health and wellness.

WHEREAS, in furtherance of their respective missions, OSF wishes to provide such

financial assistance in the form of a donation to Park District to enable Park District to accomplish

this important public purpose.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein

contained, and in reliance upon the recitals set forth above, incorporated herein, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the

Parties hereto covenant and agree as follows:

4821_-52_4g-1322, v. 1



DONATION AGREEMENT
OSF Healthcare System,
OSF HealthCare Heart of Mary Medical Center
Champaign Park District,
Martens Center

Page 2

1. Consideration.

a. The donation by OSF to Park District for the Fitness Center shall be in the amount

of Five Hundred Thousand and No/Dollars ($500,000.00), contributed in two (2)
equal installments, with the first installment to be contributed on the Effective Date

of this Agreement, and the second installment contributed six (6) months after such

Effective Date.

b. In consideration for the donation by OSF, Park District will acknowledge such
donation by granting OSF naming rights to the Fitness Center ("Naming Rights").

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Naming Rights for the Fitness Center
will remain in effect for the useful life thereof. If during the useful life of the Fitness

Center, the Park District transfers or conveys the entire Center as a whole, or it is

closed, deconstructed, destroyed, severely damaged, significantly renovated,
upgraded, modified, relocated or replaced, then such Naming Rights will cease. In

such event, OSF will have the right, for no additional payment, to have naming

rights of another available and equivalent Park District facility, if any such facility
then exists; provided that, if no such facility exists, such Naming Rights will cease

in their entirety. In any event, the Naming Rights granted pursuant to this
Agreement shall be for a period not to exceed fifty ('50oftwenty-five (25) years,

c. In connection with the Naming Rights granted to OSF hereunder, it shall be entitled

to have signage or other forms of publicity identifying OSF at the Center, and the

nature^ ae^-extent, and location of such signage shall be mutually agreed upon by
the Parties; provided that, such signage shall at all times conform to the policies of

Park District.

d. In further connection with the Naming Rights granted to OSF hereunder, the doors

te-the Fitness Center shall feature a-signage at eye-level which states as follows:

"This facility was created made possible by a gHartgift from OSF HealthCare to
promote community health. The programs and activities within the facility are
operated by the Champaign Park District."

e. The Parties specifically acknowledge that the amount of the donation has not been

or shall not be conditioned or vary based upon (or otherwise be determined by

taking into account in any manner whatsoever) the volume or value of any referrals

or other business between the Parties, which referrals or business are or may be
reimbursed under Medicare, Medicaid, CHIP or any private third party healthcare

plan. In addition, the donation funds provided pursuant to this Agreement are not

intended to be, nor shall they be construed as, an inducement, payment, or benefit
of any kind or character for the referral of patients or business by one Party to the

other Party or to any third party. Furthermore, the donation described herein is not
intended to, nor shall it be construed to restrict either Party from entering into

4821-5240-1322. v 1



DONATION AGREEMENT
OSF Healthcare System,
OSF HealthCare Heart of Mary Medical Center
Champaign Park District,
Martens Center

Page 3

similar agreements with other entities, individuals, providers or suppliers. In the
event any governmental agency which administers Medicare, Medicaid, CHIP or

any third party healthcare plan passes, issues, or promulgates any law, rule,
regulation, standard of interpretation or materially changes its position with regard

to the same in a manner which would prohibit, restrict, limit or render illegal the

relationship described herein, or any such entity issues a written allegation or
otherwise provides notice to the Parties to the effect of the relationship described

herein as in violation of any law, rule or regulation, then either Party may give the

other Party notice of intent to amend this Agreement to bring it into compliance
with all applicable laws. If this Agreement is not so amended by further mutual

agreement within thirty (30) days after notice is given, then the Party giving notice
shall have the right to terminate the Agreement effective at the end of such thirty

(30) day notice period. To the extent OSF is required to undertake and/or maintain

compliance with healthcare-related requirements of the Illinois Department of

Health Care and Family Services, Illinois Department of Public Health, Illinois

Health Facilities and Services Review Board or any other applicable governmental

body, whether at the state or federal level concerning the Center that is referred to

herein, it shall undertake all actions and measures necessary to comply therewith,
and hold Park District harmless and indemnify it from any claims, costs, actions or

damages of any kind or character whatsoever related thereto.

2. Term. This Agreement shall commence as of January 1, 2020
("Effective Date") and shall remain in effect for a term of one (1) year therefrom unless

earlier terminated in accordance with the terms herein. Notwithstanding the term. Naming

Rights shall continue past the term of this Agreement as specified in Section l.b. above.

3. Miscellaneous.

a. Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended by written instruments
executed by the authorized officials of the Park District and OSF.

b. Severability. If any provisions to this Agreement or any portion thereof is found to

be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, under any applicable statute, regulation, rule of
law, or judgement of a court of competent jurisdiction, then such provision or

portion thereof shall be deemed omitted and the validity, legality and enforceability
of the remaining provisions shall not in any manner be effected or impaired thereby.

c. Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in, and

shall be interpreted, construed and enforced pursuant to and in accordance with the

internal laws of the State of Illinois without regard to its choice of law rules.

Champaign County, Illinois, shall be the sole and exclusive venue for any legal

proceeding arising out of this Agreement.

4821-5240-1322. v 1



DONATION AGREEMENT
OSF Healthcare System,
OSF HealthCare Heart of Mary Medical Center
Champaign Park District,
Martens Center

Page 4

d. Independent Contractor Status. It is expressly acknowledged by the Parties that

nothing in this Agreement is intended or may be construed to create an

employer/employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or a partnership
between OSF and Park District.

e. Assignment. This Agreement and all rights and benefits hereunder are personal to

OSF and Park District, and neither this Agreement nor any right or interest ofOSF

or Park District herein, or arising hereunder, may be voluntarily or involuntarily

sold, transferred or assigned without the written consent of the other Party, which

shall not be unreasonably withheld. Any attempt at assignment without such
consent is void, provided that, OSF may assign its rights hereunder to an affiliate

or subsidiary legal entity with the written consent of Park District, which shall not

be unreasonably withheld.

f. Notice. Any notice required by this Agreement will be in writing and will be

deemed to have been properly given to a Party (a) if hand delivered, (b) if delivered
overnight by UPS or FedEx, effective on the first business day following delivery

to such carrier, or (c) if sent certified mail, return receipt requested, effective three

(3) days after deposit in the United States mail, addressed to the address below or
as the Parties may designate by giving notice pursuant to this Section:

If to Park District: If to OSF:

Attn: Executive Director Attn: Chief Executive Officer

Champaign Park District OSF Healthcare System
706 Kenwood Road 800 N.E. Glen Oak Avenue

Champaign,IL 61821 Peoria, IL 61603

g. Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement does not confer any benefit or rights

upon any person other than OSF and Park District, and no third party will be entitled
to enforce any obligation, responsibility or claim of any Party to this Agreement.

h. Interpretation. This Agreement is a result of negotiations between the Parties, none

of whom have acted under any duress or compulsion, whether legal, economic or

otherwise. Accordingly, the Parties hereby waive the application of any rule or law
that otherwise would be applicable in connection with the construction of this

Agreement that ambiguous or conflicting terms or provisions should be construed

against the Party who (or whose attorney) prepared the executed Agreement or any

earlier draft of the same. Unless the context of this Agreement otherwise clearly

requires, references to the plural include the singular and the singular, the plural.
The words "hereof," "herein," "hereunder" and similar terms in this Agreement

refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this

4821-5240-1322. v, 1



DONATION AGREEMENT
OSF Healthcare System,
OSF HealthCare Heart of Mary Medical Center
Champaign Park District,
Martens Center

Page 5

Agreement. The section titles and other headings contained in this Agreement are

for reference only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of

this Agreement.

i. Counterparties Facsimiles; pdf Signatures. The Parties acknowledge and

understand that this Agreement may be executed in multiple contemporaneous

originals, each of which shall be considered an original for all purposes and,
collectively, shall be considered to constitute this Agreement. The Parties further

acknowledge and understand that copies of executed documents may be considered

originals for enforcement of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day
and year last written below.

OSF: Park District:

OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT,
an Illinois not-for-profit corporation an Illinois municipal corporation

By:.
By: _

Its:
Its:

ATTEST:
Date:

By:

Its:

Date:

HMMC - Champaign Park District - Donation Agreement Martens Center rev 082219

4821-5240-1322,v.1



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: December 3, 2019

SUBJECT: Approval of Change Order No. 1 for the Zahnd Park Accessible Path Project

Background

Construction at Zahnd Park was substantially complete in October. Since then all turf grass has

been established and project is entirely finished. Final payment (retainage) has been submitted
and there remain quantities/scheduled values the contractor did not need entirely, including:

Supplemental Watering, Temporary Erosion Control Seeding, Temporary Ditch Checks,

Perimeter Erosion Barrier, InletAnd Pipe Protection, Concrete Sidewalk, and Detectable

Warnings. The unused quantities result in a $12,712.79 credit to the contract amount as shown

on the attached change order.

Prior Bo^rd Action
March 13, 2019 Regular Board Meeting—Board awarded base bid to A&A Concrete of Ludlow

IL in the amount of $186,214.24 and authorized the Executive Director to enter into the

construction contract.

Budget Impact
FY20 Capital Budget for Project 180002 is $260,607.00. Counting Change Order No. 1 the final
construction contract amount is $173,501.45. Other project expenses were $16,688.27

(engineering/design, relocating valve boxes). Pending Change Order No. 1 approval, Project

180002 will have $70,417.28 in remaining funds with no outstanding project expenses.

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of Change Order No. 1 for the Zahnd Park Accessible Path Project.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Andrew Weiss Joe Deluce

Director of Planning Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Zahnd Park Accessible Path Construction Change Order Log Current: 3 December 2019

Change Order

Number]

1

Date

3/30/2019

12/3/2019

Brief Description

Original Contract Amount

Credit for Unused Values

Amount ($)

Add Deduct

12,712.79

Contract Sum

186,214.24

173,501.45

Remarks

A&A Concrete

Pending Authorization



CHANGE ORDER FORM

General Description

Project
Zahnd Park ADA / Mobility Enhancements

Contract Date
March 30.2019

Date of Issue
December 3,2019

Change Order Number

1

Change Order Amount
$12,712,79 (credit)

Description of Work
The contractor did not need to use the entire awarded quantifes/scheduled values of Supplemental Watering,
Temporaiy Eroskm Control Seeding, Temporary Ditch Checks, Perimeter Erosion Barrier, Intel And Pipe
Protection. Concrete Sidewalk, or Detectabte Warnings. This resulted in a net $12,712.79 credit to the original
contract amount.

Change of Contract

Original Contract Sum

Contract Sum Net Change by Previous Change Orders

Change in Contract Sum

New Contract Sum

Change In Contract Time 0 Days

Subslanliat Completion Date October 4, 2019

$ 186,214.24

$ 0.00

$ -12,712.79

$ 173,501.45

Approval
Owner
Champalgn Park District
706 Kenwood Road
ChampaigntL 61821

Owner approval:

Date of approval:

Contractor
A&A Concrete LLC
1852 CR 3500 N
LudlowlL 60949

Gontractor approval:

Consultant
dark Dietz Inc
125 W Church Street
Champaign IL 61820

Consultant approval:

/ JJA^AJ-^ ^Jndzr^c-^^ ^^€-.

Date of approval;

V-?^A//^
Date of approval:

l^- v- ^°/y

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
706 Kenwood Road | Champaign IL 618211 champa:gnpari<s o;i''i



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: November 22, 2019

SUBJECT: Martens Center Education Wing

Back.qround
As part of the capital campaign for the Martens Center, various areas were identified as naming
opportunities for donors. Two of those areas included the two entire main floors of the building, for
which it was decided to provide opportunities to name them as education wings. During the campaign,
staff was able to secure a donor for one of the wings. The donor and their family wished to have the
area named after a local, African-American educator who taught in our community schools, preferably

Champaign.

Not having anyone particular in mind and not being all that familiar with local educators, the donors
asked staff to conduct a community survey. Unfortunately the survey didn't result in many responses,
and those it did obtain were not local educators, but rather from the University and Urbana, for which
the donors did not wish to move forward. As a result, the donors decided to leave the wing
unnamed... until the story ofTeretha Johnson appeared in The News-Gazette.

Ms. Johnson was a former teacher in Champaign schools from 1953 until 1982 including Lawhead,
Washington, Marquette, and Bottenfield. She helped integrate Champaign public schools in the 1960's
when she became the first black teacher at a predominately white school. She finally retired from
teaching in 1982.

After learning of Ms. Johnson, the donor and their family agreed she would be an ideal candidate for
which to name the education wing.

Prior Board Action
None

Budget Impact
None

Recommended Action
It is recommended the Board approve allowing staff to reach out to Ms. Johnson's son to request his
approval for naming the Education Wing at the new Martens Center the Teretha Johnson Education
Wing after his late mother who passed away on October 27 of this year at the age of 105.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Laura Auteberry Joe DeLuce, MS, CPRP
Development Director Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: December 5, 2019

SUBJECT: Bids for 2020 Bedding Plants

Background
A bid request for the 2020 Bedding Plants was published in the in the Nov. 10 News Gazette. Additionally, the
bid packed was sent directly to nine greenhouses, and advertised on the Park District website. The bid packet
specifies that we are seeking separate bids for the park flowers program and the flower island program and that
each program will be awarded to two separate vendors.

Listed below is a comparison of the Flower Orders total costs and numbers from previous years:

YEAR
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

NUMBER OF FLATS
5590
5693
5245
4795
4488
4,431

COSTS
$84,609.00
$96,018.25
$94,575.00
$93,655.40
$92,619.50
$93,962.00

AVG COST/FLAT
$15.14
$16.87
$18.03
$19.53
$20.64
$21.21

Prior Board Action
None.

Bid Results
Bids were opened and read aloud on Dec. 4. Two businesses submitted two bids each. One bid for the Park
Flowers and one for the Flower Islands. The bid results are tabulated below.

Bidder
Ropp's Flower Factory, Gibson City, IL

Connie's Country Greenhouse, Latham, IL

PARK FLOWER
(2313 flats)
$47,994.00
$44,907.00

FLOWER ISLAND
(2118 flats)
$50,666.00
$45,968.00

Budget Impact
Based on the recommended bids, the total cost of the two bedding plant orders for 2020 will be $93,962.00 or
$21.21 per flat. This is an increase of $0.57 (2.7%) per flat over last year. Funds will be allocated in the FY
2020-2021 operating budget. Earlier in the year the Board approved moving the fees for the Flower Island
Program from $12.00 to $13.00 per square foot, an increase of 8.3%.

Recommended Action
Staff recommends awarding the contract for each bid to the respective low bidders as follows:
Park Program bid for 2,313 flats for a total of $47,994.00 to Ropp's Flower Factory and Flower Island bid for
2,118 flats for a total of $45,968 to Connie's Country Greenhouse.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Neil Sudduth
Interim Horticulture and Natural Areas Supervisor

Daniel Olson
Director of Operations

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: December 11, 2019

SUBJECT: Approval to Apply for Park and Recreational Facility Construction (PARC) Grant for

the Martens Center

Background

At the October 23, 2019 Special Board Meeting, the Board approved the development and construction of

the Martens Center at Human Kinetics Park, with an estimated cost of$10.6M. A section of the Martens

Center will serve partner organizations such as Champaign County Head Start. The PARC program,
funded through the State's Capital Development Bond Funds, provides assistance for renovation or

construction of indoor recreation facilities. Because pre-school and daycare facilities are ineligible for

assistance, the square footage of the RPC program space must be excluded from the grant development

plan. A definite schedule for award and contract execution has not been released; it is likely that if the

District is awarded the grant that the current construction schedule would be delayed. An IDNR

representative also noted to staff that a highly competitive number of applicants is expected and that there

are limited funds ($20 million for local government units outside of the Chicago Park District).

Prior Board Action

No prior action.

Budget Impact

PARC policy administered through IDNR provides up to 75% funding assistance, with a maximum award of

$2.5M. PARC submissions include a $300 application fee, followed by a grant award fee of up to $5,000.

The project must be completed within two years of the fully executed grant agreement, and payment of all
costs must occur before submitting final billing request to IDNR for reimbursement. Project costs for which

reimbursement is sought cannot be incurred prior to grant approval notification. Funding would come from
the Martens Center Capital Fund.

Recommendation
Staff recommends authorization and signature of Grant Program Resolution of Authorization (attachment

1) due to IDNR by January 21, 2020. Staff is recommending approval to proceed with $2.5M PARC grant.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Allison Williams Andrew Weiss

Planning Coordinator Director of Planning

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



r PARC Grant Program PARC/DOC-3
Resolution of Authorization

1 .ProjectSponsor: Champaign Park District

2. Project Title: Martens Center Development

The Champaign Park District _ hereby certifies and acknowledges that it has 100% of the funds

(local project sponsor)

necessary to complete the pending PARC project within the timeframes specified herein for project execution, and that failure to
adhere to the specified project timeframe or failure to proceed with the project because of insufficient funds or change in local
recreation priorities is sufficient cause for project grant termination which will also result in the ineligibility of the local project
sponsor for subsequent Illinois DNR indoor or outdoor recreation grant assistance consideration in the next two (2) consecutive
grant cycles following project termination.

ALL Projects

It is understood that the project should be completed within fhe timeframe established in the project agreement and
the Final Billing reimbursement request must be submitted within one year of the expiration date. Failure to do so
will result in the Project Sponsor forfeiting all project reunbursements, and relieves DNR from further payment
obligations on the grant.

The Champaign Park District _ furdier acknowledges and certifies that it will comply with

(local project sponsor)

all terms, conditions and regulations of 1) the Park and Recreational Facility Construction Grant Program (PARC) (17 IL Adm.
Code 3070) 2) the federal Uniform Relocation Assistance & Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) and/or
the Illinois Displaced Persons Relocation Act (310 BLCS 40 et. seq.), as applicable, 3) the Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS
5/1-101 etseq.), 4) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (P.L. 83-352), 5) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (P.L. 94-135), 6)
the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1988, (P.L. 100-259) and 7) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (PL 101-336); and will
maintain the project area in an attractive and safe condition, keep the facilities open to the general public during reasonable hours
consistent with the type of facility, cease any farming operations, and obtain from the Illinois DNR written approval for any change
or conversion of approved outdoor recreation use of the project site prior to initiating such change or conversion; and for property
acquired with PARC assistance, agree to place a covenant restriction on the project property deed at the time of recording that
stipulates the property must be used, in peqietuity, for public indoor or outdoor recreation purposes in accordance with the PARC
programs and cannot be sold or exchanged, in whole or part, to another party without approval from the Illinois DNR.

BE FT FURTHER PROVIDED that the Champaign Park District certifies to the best of
its knowledge that the information provided within the attached application is tme and correct.

This Resolution of Authorization has been duly discussed and adopted by the Champaign Park District _at a legal

(local project sponsor)

meeting held on the 11 day of _December _^ 20 19 .

(Authorized Signature and Tide)

ATTESTED BY:

(Name and Title)

62



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: December 11, 2019

SUBJECT: LINKS Technology Central Parks App Hosting & Support Agreement

Backflround
The Champaign Park District entered into a contract for app development per the capital
plan. Like the website, maintaining an app requires monthly maintenance fortech
support, data hosting, and security. The agreement proposes a 3-year contract for these
services at a monthly cost of $225. Additional fees may apply at an hourly rate should
support outside the scope be required.

Prior Board Action
Approval of Capital Improvements Plan that included App Development.

Budget Impact
Monthly cost of $225 for entirety of agreement (3 years).

Recommended Action
Staff recommends approval of the Central Parks App Hosting & Support Agreement to allow
consistent support and communication in the launching and first three years of hosting app.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Chelsea Norton Joe DeLuce, CPRP

Director of Marketing and Communications Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life
through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



LINKS
C.RIHGINC I'K-ir'I.C ."< Tt<IIN<.)LOOY TOC.C'THEIt

11.14.2019

John Reitz
Creative Director

(847) 252-7263

jreitz@linkstechnology.com

LinksTechnology.com

CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

Central Parks App Hosting & Support Agreement

This Agreement defines hosting, support and ongoing maintenance services to be provided for the Champaign Park

District's App Development Project.

Scope of Services
Upgrades, Patches and Re-Deployments
Once the apps are deployed to the distribution service providers (Apple and/or Google), the client may request upgrades

that require changes to the platform or require redeployment of the apps to the distribution service providers. Each

request of this nature will be evaluated individually and LINKS reserves the right to provide a quote to the client before

beginning work and request payment for work when completed client-requested upgrade efforts.

Occasionally, changes in technology, changes to the terms of use/service of the distribution provider services (Apple

and/or Google), or other unforeseen changes may occur and require that your app to be patched/upgraded and re-

deployed to the distribution providers to remain publicly available for download. In the event a patch and re-

deployment is required, LINKS will notify the you to inform you of your options. LINKS reserves the right to provide a

quote before beginning any work and request payment for work completed related to patch and re-deployment.

App Support
Ongoing App Support: At Links Technology, we pride ourselves on providing amazing support to our customers. When

you have a question about your app or any issue arises, our support team will be there to assist. LINKS provides in-

person, email, phone and shared-screen web-based support for customers worldwide, and all from the same staff that

designed and built your app. Our teams have intimate knowledge of your app and we do not outsource support to a call

center or third party.

• Our SLA: Support of the account shall be provided via email, web portal, phone, or in person as determined by

LINKS. LINKS will respond to all support requests within 24 hours on weekdays and 48 hours on weekends, via

email or phone, with a confirmation that the request was received, and an estimated completion date for each

action item in the request. Most requests are completed the same day as they are made however, support

requests received after 3:00pm CDTmay not be completed until the next business day. Our team has live



support personnel at our Schaumburg headquarters 9AM to 5PM Monday through Friday except on holidays.

Support requests are handled by our professional design and web marketing staff. Tickets are escalated to

management or development staff as needed. Clients have direct phone numbers for project manager and

division managers as well as access to company executives as needed.

Post-Launch Support Requests may be made by phone, email or web portal at websupport.linkstechnolo6v.com.

Emergency needs are handled on a case by case basis, but are typically handled by the client or project manager

who is available and responsive at off hours for emergency needs. In the event of a system failure or downtime,

your client or project manager will be automatically notified and work to remedy the situation quickly.

Training: Administrator training will be provided for the user groups responsible for maintenance of the app

(usually in 1-hour user training sessions for up to 10 participants at a time.) Training will continue on an as

needed basis via online web meetings.)

Hosting, Security and Maintenance
Your app will be hosted on a secure and reliable network infrastructure where the server and internet connections will

be maintained and monitored at all times. Data Centers maintain industry-leading security and fail-safes along with

physical security and 24/7 monitoring. Your app data and its server will be well maintained for security patches and

upgrades without additional costs.

• Data Center location and operational procedures vary are hosted by LINKS and we take responsibility for

working with and managing your hosting inclusive of your support services. Some aspects of the hosting and

serving environment are reliant on our third-party service providers, and while LINKS cannot control everything

that happens at a third-party service provider, we choose to only work with high-quality companies with long

and successful track-records.

• Systems receive daily backups, ample storage and bandwidth space. Each platform and plan varies, but LINKS

works with you to determine an amount of resources appropriate so it is never a concern.

• Downtime Maintenance of hosting environments is extremely rare as is limitations on access due to

maintenance. Our sites and app services maintain a minimum SLA of 98.9% uptime/yr. Should a site or service

fall below that threshold appropriate actions will be taken to immediately alleviate and improve the situation at

LINKS expense. Systems are monitored at all times for uptime and we are automatically notified of any trouble.

As part of our SLA, in the event of a downtime longer than 4 hours, LINKS will pro-rate the customers

hosting/support billing accordingly as well as determine appropriate resolutions to ensure a more robust hosting

environment.

• Customer contacts will be notified of any scheduled downtime in as much advance as possible. Customers will

also be notified immediately for any unscheduled downtime. In the extremely rare event of a security breach,

customers will be notified immediately, and steps will be taken to resolve and secure the system.

2/8

T



Cost Summary & Terms
Total Ongoing Costs:

• Data Hosting, Support and Maintenance .................................................................$225/month

*These quoted fees represent on initial estimation based on limited discovery ascertained from the discussions with client representatives. LINKS reset-ves the right to adjustment or

withdrawal of this proposal in whole or in part based on future discovery to be agreed upon before project start.

Signatures
Please indicate your acceptance of this Proposal Agreement with the signature of an authorized official below:

Client Information:

Key Contact:_ Billing Contact:
Email: Email:

Phone: Phone:

Address:

Signatures and Authorization:
The undersigned agrees to the scope and terms of this agreement on behalf of his or her organization or business:

On behalf of the Client:_ Date
CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

Print Name:

On behalf of Agency:_ Date
LINKS TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS

Print Name:

3/8

T



Terms of Agreement
This agreement is by and between LINKS TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS, INC., hereafter "LINKS" or "company" and the

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT, hereafter "CPD" or "client".

Project Understanding
"CPD" is contracting "LINKS" as a provider of Support and Hosting Services for a previously agreed to mobile app

development project. Services not considered 'standard' or 'in scope' are subject to be charged at a regular hourly rate

of $150/hr, and will not be considered part of this contract.

"LINKS" shall provide "CPD" with Support and Hosting Services for the proposed Scope of Services within this contract.

The project shall be inclusive of the scope as outlined within this document and confirmed by the client's

representative's signature on the Cost Summary and Signatures page above.

Compensation
"CPD" agrees to compensate "LINKS" as follows: Billing Invoices must be received by the Champaign Park District

Accounting Department no later than the first Wednesday of the month in order to be paid by the second Thursday of

the same month. The Champaign Park District does not pay sales tax, excise tax, service charges, finance changes, late

fees or interest. "LINKS" reserves the right to withhold delivery and any transfer of ownership of any current work if

accounts are not current or overdue invoices are not paid in full. All grants of any license to use or transfer of ownership

of any intellectual property rights under this Agreement are conditioned upon receipt of payment in full which shall be

inclusive of any and all outstanding Additional Costs.

Schedule of Payment:
"CPD" agrees to the make payment for services provided or to be provided per terms invoiced by "LINKS"

Support Terms
"LINKS" will provide complimentary support for the first 30 days following the launch of the live app. After that time,

support will be provided according to the Scope of Services section of this document. Support of the Account shall be

provided via email, web portal, phone, or in person as determined by "LINKS". "LINKS" will respond to all support

requests from "CPD" within 24 hours on weekdays and 48 hours on weekends, via email or phone, with a confirmation

that the request was received, and an estimated completion date for each action item in the request. Support requests

received after 3:00pm CDT may not be completed until the next business day.

During the duration of this contract, "CPD" agrees that the "LINKS" will be the sole provider of app maintenance for

"CPD" and no other party will have access to or rights to use the software or server. If a party other than the "LINKS"

accesses the software, any errors that are created that must be repaired will be charged at the hourly rate specified

above. Ongoing hosting, support and maintenance rates may be reassessed and adjusted after 90 days.

Ownership/Copyrights
The ownership of the content of any published work related to this project is retained by "CPD". Ownership of the

underlying code, source art files, and database content is retained by "LINKS" unless otherwise determined by the Scope

of Services section of this document.

4/8

T



"CPD" grants "LINKS" a royalty-free and permanent license to use of the client's entity name and representations of any

or all creative work developed within this project in the "LINKS" portfolio or case studies that may be published in all

types of media as a sample of past works, in trade publications, educational material, to promote the company, and for

entry into trade competitions.

Additional Services
This Agreement does not extend to the provision or support of email services, ongoing search engine optimization, or

any items not specifically identified by the Scope of Services section of this document.

Additional Terms
Any revisions, additions or redesign "CPD" requests "LINKS" to perform that is not specified in this document shall be

considered "additional" and will require separate agreement and payment. "LINKS" shall advise "CPD" on any requested

work that is "additional".

Termination:
This agreement is for a term inclusive of 3-years of from the date of deployment of the projects into either Google or

Apple App stores unless extended for a set period by separate amendment agreed to by both parties. After the initial 1-

year period, either party may cancel this agreement at any time, for any reason, by providing 30 days' notice either

electronically or in writing sent to the address of record, provided that payment is up to date.

This app, including its content management system (Central Parks), is a monthly agreement subject to cancellation.

Upon termination of this agreement, by either party, hosting of all assets will be suspended and disabled within 30 days

and "LINKS" may remove apps from deployed app store locations.

Legal:
"CPD" and "LINKS" are independent parties and nothing in this Agreement shall constitute either party as the employer,

principal or partner of or joint venture with the other party. Neither "CPD" nor "LINKS" has any authority to assume or

create any obligation or liability, either express or implied, on behalf of the other. This Agreement shall be governed by

and construed in accordance with the laws of Illinois applicable therein.

Ownership/Copyrights

Insurance:
"LINKS" shall keep in full force and effect at all times during this Agreement a comprehensive general liability insurance

policy, with contractual liability coverage, with minimum limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and

$2,000,000 annual aggregate together with property damage insurance of not less than $1,000,000. All insurance

carriers providing the coverage set forth herein shall have a rating of A as assigned byA.M. Best and Co. and shall be

reasonably satisfactory to Park District. All insurance coverage provided by "LINKS" shall be primary insurance as to Park

District. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Park District shall be in excess of "LINKS'" insurance and shall not

contribute with it. The Park District, its commissioners, officers, employees, agents, representatives, and volunteers shall

be covered as additional insured's under the general liability coverage which shall contain no special limitation on the

scope of protection afforded to the additional insured's, and shall contain appropriate extensions or riders necessary to

assure coverage. The policy shall not be cancelled or amended without at least ten (10) days prior written notice having

been given to the Park District. Cancellation of any such coverage without a substitute policy containing the required

coverage's being put in force, shall be grounds for the Park District to immediately terminate this Agreement with no

5/8

T



further rights afforded "LINKS". At its option, Park District may continue such insurance at its cost and obtain

reimbursement and repayment thereof from "LINKS". In such event, "LINKS" shall pay the amount due within ten (10)

days of payment by Park District. The Parties acknowledge that "LINKS" may from time to time change insurers;

provided that, the Park District shall be provided with a certificate of such insurance otherwise conforming to and in

compliance with the terms hereof, promptly upon such change.

"LINKS" will provide a certificate of such insurance as may be applicable from time to time, listed below, at the time

Agreement is signed and annually thereafter. Note that all limits of liability for insurance shall be not less than the

following amounts, and must be greater where required by other laws or regulations and must be insured on an

"occurrence" basis and not on a "claims made" basis:

"LINKS" shall maintain in effect at its sole expense the following insurance applicable to the work performed hereunder:

a) Workers' Compensation:

a. State Statutory

b. Applicable Federal Statutory

c. Must show policy number on certificate of insurance if workman's compensation is provided

b) Comprehensive General Liability:

a. General Liability: 1,000,000 each occurrence (including completed operation and products liability)

b. Property Damage: $1,000,000 each occurrence

c. General Aggregate: $2,000,000 or a combined single limit of $2,000,000

d. Property damage liability insurance will provide Explosion, Collapse and underground coverages where

applicable

c) Contractual Liability (Hold Harmless Coverage):

a. bodily Injury: $1,000,000

b. Property Damage: $1,000,000 each occurrence

c. Annual Aggregate: $2,000,000 each occurrence

d) Umbrella Liability:

a. $5,000,000 each occurrence

The Park District, its officers, agents and employees are to be covered and named as additional insureds under the

General Liability coverage and shall contain no special limitation on the scope of protection afforded to the additional

insureds. The policy and/orcoverage shall also contain a "contractual liability" clause.

Prior to beginning work, "LINKS" shall furnish the Park District with certificate(s) of insurance and applicable policy

endorsement(s), executed by a duly authorized representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance

requirements set forth above. All certificates shall provide for 30 days written notice to Park District prior to cancellation

or material change of any insurance referred to therein. Failure of the Park District to demand such certificate,

endorsement or other evidence of full compliance with these insurance requirements or failure of the Park District to

identify a deficiency from the evidence that is provided shall not be construed as a waiver of "LINKS'" obligation to

maintain such insurance.

All insurance carriers providing the coverage set forth herein shall have a rating of A as assigned by A.M. Best and Co.

and satisfactory to the Park District at its sole discretion. All insurance coverage provided by "LINKS" shall be primary

coverage as to the Park District. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Park District shall be excess of

"LINKS'" and shall not contribute to it.

"LINKS" shall furnish Park District with a certificate evidencing such coverage. "LINKS" will be solely responsible for

ensuring that its agents (including its consultants, contractors and subcontractors) who are given access to the data

6/8

~T



center or to services provided by the "LINKS" to Park District, maintain separate insurance at levels no less than those

required herein above.

As an IT Vendor, "LINKS" shall maintain the following insurance coverage;

® Comprehensive general liability insurance in an amount not less than five million and no/100 dollars

($5,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.

• Employer's liability insurance in an amount not less than one million and no/100 dollars ($1,000,000.00) per

occurrence.

o Workers' compensation insurance in an amount not less than the statutory requirements.

"LINKS" shall furnish Customer with a certificate evidencing such coverage. "LINKS" will be solely responsible for

ensuring that its agents (including its consultants, contractors and subcontractors) who are given access to the data

center or to services provided by the "LINKS" to Customer, maintain separate insurance at levels no less than those

required herein above.

Cyber Risk Insurance: Subject to the limit of at least $1,000,000 per claim, minimum of at least $2,000,000 in the

aggregate, to be maintained for the term of the MSA and three years following its termination, to respond to privacy

and network security liability claims including, but not limited to the following, and arising directly or indirectly from

"LINKS"'s failure to carry out its obligations under the MSA, or the negligent or intentional wrongful act, error or

omission of "LINKS", its employees or agents, or third parties not associated with Customer to whom "LINKS" has given

access to the data center premises or systems:

A. Liability arising from theft, dissemination, and/or use of Customer confidential information, including, but not

limited to, bank, credit card account, and personally identifiable information such as name, address, social

security numbers, etc., regardless of how the information is stored or transmitted.

B. Network security liability arising from (i) the unauthorized access to, use of, or tampering with computer

systems, including hacker attacks; or (ii) the inability of an authorized third party to gain access to supplier

systems and/or Customer data, including denial of service, unless caused by a mechanical or electrical failure or

acts of God.

C. Liability arising from the introduction of a computer virus into, or otherwise causing damage to, Customer's or

third person's computer, computer system, network, or similar computer-related property and the data,

software, and programs thereon.

D. Crisis-management expenses (i.e., notification, public relations, reputation damage, forensics, etc.) for a data

breach.

The above policies shall provide a waiver ofsubrogation. Customer its elected and appointed officials, officers,

employees, agents and volunteers shall be included as additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the

goods, services and activities performed by or on behalf of IT Vendor.

Professional Liability for IT Technology, including Cyber Risk (Claims-Made): $1,000,000 each claim/loss $2,000,000

aggregate for contracts under $500,000. (For contracts over $500,000, $5,000,000 each claim/loss $5,000,000 aggregate

the policy shall cover professional misconduct or lack of ordinary skill for persons providing the services to be provided

by or on behalf of "LINKS" under the MSA.

"LINKS" warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede the effective date of the MSA; and that either

continuous coverage will be maintained or an extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of three (3) years

beginning on the last day of the MSA term. The insurance should provide coverage for the same risks identified above

for cyber risk insurance.

7/8

~T



"LINKS" does not provide insurance to cover losses by the Customer at the "LINKS" facility, other than as provided

above.

"LINKS" provides insurance for its own losses. This includes insurance to cover day-to-day risks and long-term business

continuity.

8/8

T



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: December 11, 2019

SUBJECT: Additional funding for Virginia Theatre sound system design, bid
administration, and construction administration

Introduction
Staff is requesting $30,500.00 in funding from the park district for professional services from
BLDD Architects, Champaign, in support of an upgrade to the live sound system at the Virginia
Theatre. This request includes an increase of $14,000.00 over the park district's original
$55,000.00 contract with BLDD—for a revised project total of $69.000.00—to pay for additional
design work and to allow for general cost increases, as indicated in the attached Amendment to
the Professional Services Agreement.

Backflround
On August 19, 2019, the park district received a final executed copy of a grant from the State of
Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) for $750,000.00 to purchase and install a new
sound system at the Virginia Theatre. The deadline for project completion is July 31, 2021.

Beginning in 2014, when the IDNR grant was first offered to the park district, the district engaged
BLDD Architects to provide professional design services for the Virginia sound project, ultimately
paying a total of $38,500.00 for design development and construction documents. The IDNR grant
was suspended by the State of Illinois in March, 2015, before BLDD's original $55,000.00 contract
for services could be completed.

During the period of the grant's suspension, from 2017 to 2018, the park district further engaged
BLDD to provide some additional design services on the Virginia sound project, to phase that
project's work into several smaller sub-projects, spending a total of $18,058.85 for design and
construction document development. A further $1,200.00 was spent on this phasing approach in
direct consultation with Threshold Acoustic, LLC.

With the renewal in 2019 of full funding from the IDNR grant, a multi-phased approach is no longer
relevant to the Virginia sound upgrade, and the park district is instead proceeding with plans to
complete the project in a single phase. To move the project forward, staff is now requesting
$30,500.00 to complete the work of BLDD's original professional services contract, work that
would include:

• Review the previous audio scope with the Owner
• Identify final audio system program needs

Complete a final version of the audio systems narrative with budget estimates



» Revise previous bid drawings and specifications as needed in order to put the project out
to bid

6 GHR to provide new "complete" drawings

a Assist the Owner in bidding the project
® Assist the Owner is reviewing bids and awarding the project
® Construction administration
e Project closeout including testing and commissioning by Threshold

Prior Board Action
On December 10, 2014, the park board voted to authorize the executive director to enter into an
agreement with BLDD Architects in the amount of $55,000.00 to provide services for the Virginia
Theatre sound project that included design development, construction documents, and bidding
and construction administration support. The park district spent $38,500.00 on that original
contract until the grant was suspended at the State of Illinois.

Budget Impact
Although the sum previously spent by the park district for BLDD's professional services on the
Virginia sound project—a total of $56,558.85, plus $1,200.00 for direct consultation with
Threshold Acoustic, LLC—cannot be reimbursed by IDNR per the terms of the executed grant
agreement, any such professional services engaged between September 2019 and July 2021 will
be fully reimbursable by the grant. Therefore, the $30.500.00 being requested here would be
included in future reimbursements by IDNR to the park district.

Recommendations
Staff recommends the park board authorize the executive director to execute the attached
Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with BLDD Architects and proceed with
design, bid, and construction work for the Virginia Theatre sound system project.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Steven Bentz Joe DeLuce, CPRP
Director, Virginia Theatre Executive Director



BLDD
ARCHITECTS

(844) 784-4440

BLDD.COM

Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement

TO OWNER: Champaign Park District AMENDMENT NUMBER: 001
Joe DeLuce, Director

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AGREEMENT DATED: 10/29/2014

BETWEEN THE OWNER: Champaign Park District
706 Kenwood Road
ChampaignJL 61821

AND THE ARCHITECT: BLDD Architects, Inc.

FOR THE PROJECT: Virginia Theatre Sound System
203 W. Park Ave.

Champaign, IL

BLDD PROJECT NUMBER: 143CX05.400

12 Authorization is given to proceed with Additional Services or a Change in Services as follows:

The design work for the sound system was completed in 2015 but the project was put on hold before

the project bid.

Remaining Scope of Services:

• Review the previous audio scope with the Owner

• Identify final audio system program needs

• Complete a final version of the audio systems narrative with budget estimates

• Revise previous bid drawings and specifications as needed in order to put the project out to bid

• GHR to provide new "complete" drawings

• Assist the Owner in bidding the project
• Assist the Owner is reviewing bids and awarding the project

• Construction administration

• Project closeout including testing and commissioning by Threshold

Upon receipt of a signed amendment, BLDD Architects, Inc. will complete the remaining services.

Schedule:

BLDD Architects, Inc. will update the construction documents in the fall of 2019, bid the project in early

2020, and provide construction management services during the summer and fall of 2020. The project

is expected to be completed in October of 2020.

H:\CHA\143CX05.400Champaign Park District Virginia Theatre Sound System\Contracts\Fee Amendment 10.24-19\BLDD\Bacl<-Up\143CX05.400-Amendment 001 REVlSED.docx



BLDD
ARCHITECTS

(844) 784-4440

BLDD.COM

(insert provisions in accordance with the Agreement, or as otherwise agreed by the parties)

The total fee will increase by $14,000. See breakdown below:

Schematic Design

Design Development

Construction Documents

Bidding
Construction Administration

Total

Original
Contract

$8,250.00

$11,000.00

$19,250.00

$2,750.00

$13,750.00

100% $55,000.00

Additional
Fee

$0.00

$0.00

$10,500.00

$1,250.00

$2,250.00

$14,000.00

New Total

Fee

$8,250.00

$11,000.00

$29,750.00

$4,000.00

$16,000.00

$69,000.00

The shaded amounts above represent remaining fees in the contract and additional fees to be added.

[These total $30,500 and are the remaining fees due after acceptance of this modification.

COMPENSATION:
TIME:

Increase total fee for Basic Services from $55,000 to $69,000

Extend the contract time to December 31,2020

ARCHITECT

PM/V^-
Submitted by:

(Signature) ^^ ^ ^ ^ ^^ ^p@

Principal
(Printed Name and Title)

10/28/2019

(Date)

OWNER

Agreed to:
(Signature)

(Printed Name and Title)

(Date)

HACHAM43CX05.400 Champaign Park District Virginia Theatre Sound System\Contracts\Fee Amendment 10-24.1 9\BLDD\Back-Up\143CX05.400.Amendment 001 REVISED.docx



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: December 11, 2019

SUBJECT: Bicentennial Center Renovation Design Contract

Backciround

The former Spalding Recreation Center was home to Champaign-Urbana Special Recreation

(CUSR) programs and services. The Park Board permitted the Unit 4 School District to demolish
the Spalding Recreation Center to develop facilities for Central High School baseball. As a
result, the District is planning to renovate the Bicentennial Center to provide replacement space

for CUSR. In recent years, the Bicentennial Center has been leased for a batting cage

operation (The Cage). The Park Board entered into an initial license agreement six years ago

with Shawn Tabeling (Conway Farms, LLC) to provide space at the Bicentennial Center for The
Cage. The current license agreement for The Cage expires on April 30, 2020.

In order for the Bicentennial Center to fit the program needs of CUSR and to conform to ADA

requirements, renovations of the Bicentennial Center will be necessary. As a result, the

services of an architect will be needed for design documents.

Budget Impact
The total project cost for Bicentennial Renovation is estimated at $800,000 per the report by
Broeren Russo. The $48,386 design contract with Architectural Expressions is attached.

Bidding and construction administration is not included in the contract with Architectural

Expressions.

Timeline
Winter/Spring 2020 construction documents, Late Spring 2020 bidding and bid award,
Summer/Fall 2020 construction, November 2020 move in.

Recommended Action

Staff recommends authorizing the Executive Director to enter into the contract with Architectural

Expressions for the renovation of the Bicentennial Center in the amount of $48,386.00. Park

District Attorney has reviewed the contract.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Joe DeLuce Cindy Harvey
Executive Director Assistant to the Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



itAIA Document 8132"-2009

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, Construction Manager as
Adviser Edition

AGREEMENT made as of the Fourth day of November in the year Two Thousand Nineteen
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

BETWEEN the Arehitect'B client identified as the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Chamnait»n PaA District

706 Kenwood Road
ChamDaim. IL 61821
Teleohone Number: 217-819-3821
Fax Number 217-355.8421

and the Architect:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Architectural Expressions. LLP.Limit Liability PartncrshJB
100 N. Chestnut STE 300
Chamoaien. IL 61820
Teleohone Number: 217378-5300
Fax Number: 217-378-8512

for the following Project:
(Name, location and detailed description)

Bicentenmal Center Remodeling

The Construction Manager;
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

"nils document has Important

togalconsequences.
Consultation with an attorney

Is encouraged with respect to
to completion or modfflcatlon.

This document b Intended to be
used In conjunction with AIA
Documents A132TO-2009,

Standard Form ofAgreemerrt
Between Owner and Contractor,

Conelructton Manager as Adviser
Edltton; A232TO-2009. General
Condttkww of the Contract for
ConsttucUon, Constructkm

Manager as Adviser Edftton; and
C132™-2009. Standard Form of

Agreement Between Owner and

Conabucfion Manager as
Advfeer. AIA Document A232nl-

2008 Is adopted In this document
by reference. Do not use with
other genefBl conditions unlsss
thb document te modified.

The Owner and Architect agree as follows.

Pages 1-22 with Exhibits.

h»H.

/

AIA Document B132m-2009. Copyright 1982and 2009 by nieAmBikanlnatituleofArohKeds.ABriBhttreMnwd.WARFilNe: Tills.<>>IAC'Docuinenib
preSsfits-c! by U,S. CQpyiIaiit L.sr/and Iniei'natlona! Treaiies. Unt'uihorfead r-iprcdui-iion or dioEflbsrtiunofthlgAIA'1* Documnni, or i;ny portion ofri,
riiay K.'suSi in ssvsra '-iy;! cntf (;rlrillna! paniiliiBs, and ivill toe pro'-ocisS.'-tJ totiis iiio!il;inint 6:tt«in! possllil') [ij-ii!f>rthn l3'.'/.
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 546S168378 which expires on 10/01/2020. and b not for male.
UwrNof; (3B9ADA54)



TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 INITIAL INFORMATION

2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES

4 ADDmONAL SERVICES

5 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

6 COST OF THE WORK

7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

11 COMPENSATION

12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 1 INITIAL INFORMATION
§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Section 1.1,
(Note the disposition for the following items by inserting the requested information or a statement such as "not
applicable," "unknown at time of execution " or "to be determined later by mutual agreement. ")

§ 1.1.1 The Owner's program for the Project:
(Identify documentation or state the manner in which the program will be developed.)

§ 1.1.2 The Project's physical characteristics:
(Identify or describe, if appropriate, size, location, dimensions, or other pertinent information, such as geotechnical

reports; site. boundmy and topogf-aphic sun'eys; traffic and utility studies; availability of public and private utilities
and services; legal description of the site; etc.)

§ 1.1.3 The Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work, as defined in Section 6.1:
(Provide total and, if known, a line item breakdown.}

$806.442.00

§ 1.1.4 The Owner's anticipated design and construction schedule:
.1 Design phase milestone dates, if any:

.2 Commencement of construction:

AIA Document B132'1" - 2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of It,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and Is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



.3 Substantial Completion date or milestone dates:

.4 Other:

§ 1.1.5 The Owner intends to retain a Construction Manager adviser and:
(Note that, if Multiple Prime Contractors are used, the term "Contractor" as referred to throughout this Agreement

will be as if plural in number.)

[ ] One Contractor

[ ] Multiple Prime Contractors

[ X ] Unknown at time of execution

§ 1.1.6 The Owner's requirements for accelerated or fast-track scheduling, multiple bid packages, or phased
construction are set forth below:
(List number and type of bid/prociirement packages.)

§ 1.1.7 Other Project information:
(Identify special characteristics or needs of the Project not provided elsewhere, such as environmentally responsible
design or historic preservation requirements.)

§ 1.1.8 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 5.5:
(List name, address and other information.)

Joe DeLuce. CPRP
706 Kenwopd Road
Champaifn.IL61821

§ 1.1.9 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner's representative, who are required to review the Architect's
submittals to the Owner are as follows:
(List name, address and other information.)

§ 1.1.10 The Owner will retain the following consultants:
(List name, legal status, address and other information.)

,1 Construction Manager: The Construction Manager is identified on the cover page. If a Construction

Manager has not been retained as of the date of this Agreement, state the anticipated date of retention:

.2 Cost Consultant (if in addition to the Constmction Manager):

AIA Document B132™ -2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA° Document is
protected by U.S, Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA° Document, or any portion of It,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law, This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



(If a Cost Consultant is retained, appropriate references to the Cost Consultant should be inserted in
Sections 3.2.6, 3.2.7, 3.3.2, 3.3.3, 3.4.5. 3.4.6. 5.4, 6.3, 6.3.1, 6.4 and 11.6.)

.3 Land Surveyor:

A Geotechnical Engineer:

.5 Civil Engineer:

.6 Other consultants:

(List any other consultants retained by the Owner, such as a Project or Program Manager. or

scheduling consultant.)

§ 1.1.11 The Architect identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 2.4:
(List name, address and other information.)

Brian Kesler. AIA

Email Address: bkeslerfa aexllp.com

§1.1.12 The Architect will retain the consultants identified in Sections 1.1.12.1 and 1.1.12.2:
(List name, legal status, address and other information.)

§ 1,1.12.1 Consultants retained under Basic Services:
.1 Structural Engineer:

AIA Document B132™ -2009, Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168378 which expires on 10/01/2020. and Is not for resale.
User Notes; (3B9ADA54)



.2 Mechanical Engineer;

.3 Electrical Engineer:

§ 1.1.12.2 Consultants retained under Additional Services:

§ 1,1.13 Other Initial Information on which the Agreement is based:

Work is limited to the CU Special Recreation budget presented in the Bicentennial Center - Phase 1 Pre-
Construction Report prepared by Broeren Russo Builders, dated 9/26/19 and revised on 10/9/19

§ 1.2 The Owner and Architect may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that such
information may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Architect shall appropriately adjust the
schedule, the Architect's services and the Architect's compensation.

ARTICLE 2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 2,1 The Architect shall provide the professional services as set forth in this Agreement.

§ 2.2 The Architect shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by
architects practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. The Architect shall
perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly progress of
the Project.

§ 2.3 The Architect shall provide its services in conjunction with the services of a Construction Manager as
described in AIA Document C132™-2009, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction
Manager. The Architect shall not be responsible for actions taken by the Construction Manager.

§ 2.4 The Architect shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Architect with respect to Ac
Project,

§ 2,5 Except with the Owner's knowledge and consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any

employment, interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect's professional

judgment with respect to this Project.

§ 2.6 The Architect shall maintain the following insurance insurance listed on the attached Certificate of Liability
Insyrancejbr the duration of this Agreement.Ifany of the requirements set forth bolow oxcood the types and limits

the Architeot normally maintains, the Owner shall reimburse the Arohiteot for any additional coat.

AIA Document B132™ - 2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Instituts of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA° Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under tlie law, This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and Is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAS4)



§ 2.6.1 Comprehensive General Liability with policy limits of not less than ($ -)-foi -each occurrenco and in the
aggregate for bodily injury and property damage.

R 0 C I A
a 2.6.2 Automobile Liability covering owned mid rented vehicles operated by the Architect with policy limits of not
legs than ($ ) combined single limit and aggregate for bodily injury and property damage.

§ 2.6.3 The Architect may use umbrella or excess liability inGuranoe to aohiovc the required covoi=age^w

Comprehensive General Liability and Automobile Liability, provided that such umbrella or excess insurance results

in the same type of coverage as required for the individual policies.

§ 2,6^ Workers' Compensation at statutory limits and Employers Liability with-a-polioy limit of not leso than ($ ).

§ 2.6.5 Professional Liability covering-the-Architcot's negligent acts, errors and omissions in its performance of

professional services with policy limits of not less than ($ ) per claun and in the aggregate.

§ 2.6.6 The Architect shall provide to the Owner certificates of insurance evidencing compliance with the
requirements in this Section 2.6. The certificates will show the Owner as an additional insured on the

Comprehensive General Liability, Automobile Liability, umbrella or excess policies.

ARTICLE 3 SCOPE OF ARCHrTECTS BASIC SERVICES
§ 3.1 The Architect's Basic Services consist of those described in Article 3 and include usual and customary
structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services. Services not set forth in this Article 3 arc Additional

Services,

§ 3.1.1 The Architect shall manage the Architect's services, consult with the Owner and the Conshuction Manager,

research applicable design criteria, attend Project meetings, communicate with members of the Project team and

report progress to the Owner.

§ 3.1,2 The Architect shall coordmate its services with those services provided by the Owner, the Construction
Manager and the Owner's other consultants. The Architect shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness

of services and information furnished by the Owner, the Construction Manager, and the Owner's other consultants.

The Architect shall provide prompt written notice to the Owner if the Architect becomes aware of any error,
omission or inconsistency in such services or information.

§ 3.1.3 As soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement, the Architect shall submit to the Owner and the
Construction Manager a schedule of the Architect's services for inclusion in the Project schedule prepared by the
Construction Manager. The schedule of the Architect's services shall include design milestone dales, anticipated

dates when cost estimates or design reviews may occur, and allowances for periods of time required (1) for the

Owner's review, (2) for the Construction Manager's review, (3) for the performance of the Owner's consultants, and

(4) for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.

§ 3.1.4 The Architect shall submit information to the Construction Manager and participate in developing and
revising the Project schedule as it relates to the Architect's services.

§ 3.1.5 Once the Owner and the Architect agree to the time limits established by the Project schedule, the Owner and
the Architect shall not exceed them, except for reasonable cause.

§ 3.1.6 The Architect shall not be responsible for an Owner's directive or substitution, or for the Owner's acceptance
ofnon-conforming Work, made without the Architect's approval.

§ 3.1.7 The Architect shall, at appropriate times, in coordination with the Construction Manager, contact the
governmental authorities required to approve the Consh-uction Documents and the entities providing utility services
to the Project. In designing the Project, the Architect shall respond to applicable design requirements imposed by
such governmental authorities and by such entities providing utility services.

§ 3.1.8 The Architect shall assist the Owner and Construction Manager in connection with the Owner's responsibility
for filing documents required for the approval of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.

AIA Document B132™ -2009. Copyn'ght 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAa Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AW Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will bo prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the [aw. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and Is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



§ 3.2 Schematic Design Phase Services
§ 3,2.1 The Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner and Construction
Manager, and shall review laws, codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect's services.

§ 3.2,2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner's program, schedule, budget for the Cost
of the Work, Project site, and the proposed procurement or delivery method and other Initial Information, each in
terms of the other, to ascertain the requirements of the Project. The Architect shall notify the Owner of (1) any
inconsistencies discovered in the information, and (2) other information or consulting services that may be

reasonably needed for the Project.

§ 3.2.3 The Architect shall present its preliminary evaluation to the Owner and Construction Manager and shall
discuss with the Owner and Construction Manager alternative approaches to design and construction of the Project,

including the feasibility of incorporating environmentally responsible design approaches. The Architect shall reach
an understanding with the Owner regarding the requirements of the Project.

§ 3.2.4 Based on the Project requirements agreed upon with the Owner, the Architect shall prepare and present to the
Owner and Construction Manager, for the Owner's approval, a preliminary design illustrating the scale and

relationship of the Project components.

§ 3.2.5 Based on the Owner's approval of the preliminary design, the Architect shall prepare Schematic Design
Documents for the Owner's approval and the Construction Manager's review. The Schematic Design Documents

shall consist of drawings and other documents including a site plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans,
sections and elevations; and may include some combination of study models, perspective sketches, or digital
modeling. Preliminary selections of major building systems and construction materials shall be noted on the
drawings or described in writing.

§ 3,2.5.1 The Architect shall consider environmentally responsible design alternatives, such as material choices and
building orientation, together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design that
is consistent with the Owner's program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work. The Owner may obtain other
environmentally responsible design services under Article 4.

§ 3.2.5.2 The Architect shall consider with the Owner and the Construction Manager the value of alternative
materials, building systems and equipment, together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics in
developing a design for the Project that is consistent with the Owner's schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work.

§ 3.2.6 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Documents to the Owner and the Construction Manager.
The Architect shall meet with the Construction Manager to review the Schematic Design Documents.

§ 3.2.7 Upon receipt of the Construction Manager's review comments and cost estimate at the conclusion of the
Schematic Design Phase, the Architect shall take action as required under Section 6.4, identify agreed upon
adjustments to the Project's size, quality or budget, and request the Owner's approval of the Schematic Design
Documents. If revisions to the Schematic Design Documents are required to comply with the Owner's budget for the
Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Schematic Design Phase, the Architect shall incorporate the required
revisions in the Design Development Phase.

§ 3.2.8 In the further development of the Drawings and Specifications during this and subsequent phases of design,
the Architect shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of the estimates of the Cost of the Work, which are to be
provided by the Construction Manager under the Construction Manager's agreement witfa the Owner.

§ 3.3 Design Development Phase Services
§ 3.3.1 Based on the Owner's approval of the Schematic Desijgn Documents, and on the Owner's authorization of

any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work pursuant to Section 5.4, the
Architect shall prepare Design Development Documents for the Owner's approval and the Construction Manager's

review. The Design Development Documents shall be based upon information provided, and estimates prepared by,
the Construction Manager and shall illustrate and describe the development of the approved Schematic Design
Documents and shall consist of drawings and other documents including plans, sections, elevations, typical

AIA Document B132™ - 2003. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA° Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or disiribulion oftliis AIA° Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



construction details, and diagrammatic layouts of building systems to fix and describe the size and character of the
Project as to architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical systems, and such other elements as may be

appropriate. The Design Development Documents shall also include outline specifications that identify major
materials and systems and establish in general their quality levels.

§ 3.3.2 Prior to the conclusion of the Design Development Phase, the Architect shall submit the Design Development
Documents to the Owner and the Construction Manager. The Architect shall meet with the Construction Manager to
review the Design Development Documents.

§ 3.3.3 Upon receipt of the Construction Manager's information and estimate at the conclusion of the Design
Development Phase, the Architect shall take action as required under Sections 6.5 and 6.6 and request the Owner's
approval of the Design Development Documents.

§ 3.4 Construction Documents Phase Services
§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner's approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner's authorization of

any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare
Construction Documents for the Owner's approval and the Construction Manager's review. The Construction

Documents shall illustrate and describe the further development of the approved Design Development Documents
and shall consist ofDrawmgs and Specifications setting forth in detail the quality levels of materials and systems
and other requirements for the construction of the Work. The Owner and Architect acknowledge that in order to
construct the Work the Contractor will provide additional information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data,
Samples and other similar submittals, which the Architect shall review in accordance with Section 3.6.4,

§ 3.42 The Architect shall incorporate into the Construction Documents the design requirements of governmental
authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.

§ 3.4,3 During the development of the Construction Documents, if requested by the Owner, the Architect shall assist
the Owner and the Construction Manager in the development and preparation of (1) bidding and procurement
information that describes the time, place and conditions of bidding, including bidding or proposal forms; (2) the
form of agreement between the Owner and Contractor; and (3) the Conditions of the Contract for Construction
(General, Supplementary and other Conditions); and (4) compile a project manual that includes the Conditions of the
Contract for Construction and may include bidding requirements and sample forms.

§ 3,4.4 Prior to the conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase, the Architect shall submit the Construction
Documents to the Owner and the Construction Manager. The Architect shall meet with the Construction Manager to
review the Construction Documents.

§ 3.4.5 Upon receipt of the Construction Manager's information and estimate at the conclusion of the Construction
Documents Phase, the Architect shall take action as required under Section 6.7 and request the Owner's approval of
the Construction Documents.

§ 3.5 Bidding or Negotiation Phase Services
§ 3.5.1 General
The Architect shall assist the Owner and Construction Manager in establishing a list of prospective contractors.
Following the Owner's approval of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner and
Construction Manager in (1) obtaining either competitive bids or negotiated proposals; (2) confirming
responsiveness of bids or proposals; (3) determining the successful bid or proposal, if any; and (4) awarding and
preparing contracts for construction.

§ 3.5.2 Competitive Bidding
§ 3.5.2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements and proposed Contract Documents.

§ 3.5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner and Construction Manager in bidding the Project by
.1 facilitating the reproduction of Bidding Documents for distribution to prospective bidders,
,2 participating in a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders, and

,3 preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and
interpretations of the Bidding Documents in the form of addenda.

AIA Document &132™ -2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA° Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution ofthisAIA8 Document, or any portion of It,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecutsd to the maximum extant possible under tha law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and Is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



§ 3.5.2,3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, and
shall consult with the Construction Manager and prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions
to all prospective bidders.

§ 3.5.3 Negotiated Proposals
§ 3.5.3.1 Proposal Documents shall consist of proposal requirements, and proposed Contract Documents.

§ 3,5.3,2 The Architect shall assist the Owner and Construction Manager in obtaining proposals by
.1 facilitating the reproduction of Proposal Documents for distribution to prospective contractors, and

requesting their return upon completion of the negotiation process;
,2 participating in selection interviews with prospective contractors; and
.3 participating in negotiations with prospective contractors.

§ 3.5.3.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Proposal Documents permit substitutions, and
shall consult with the Construction Manager and prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions
to all prospective contractors.

§ 3.6 Construction Phase Services
§ 3.6.1 General
§ 3.6.1.1 The Architect shall provide administration of the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as set
forth below and in AIA Document A232™-2009, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction,
Construction Manager as Adviser Edition. If the Owner and Contractor modify AIA Document A232-2009, those
modifications shall not affect the Architect's services under this Agreement unless the Owner and the Architect
amend this Agreement.

§ 3,6.1.2 The Architect shall advise and consult with the Owner and Construction Manager during the Construction
Phase Services. The Architect shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in this
Agreement. The Architect shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means,

methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work,

nor shall the Architect be responsible for the Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the
requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect shall be responsible for the Architect's negligent acts or
omissions, but shall not have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the

Construction Manager, or the Contractor or of any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 3.6.1.3 Subject to Section 4.3, the Architect's responsibility to provide Construction Phase Services commences
with the award of the Contract for Consfruction and terminates on the date the Architect issues the final Certificate
for Payment.

§ 3.6.2 Evaluations of the Work
§ 3.6.2.1 The Architect shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise
required in Section 4.3.3, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work
completed, and to determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the

Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect shall not

be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. On

the basis of the site visits, the Architect shall keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and quality of
the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Owner and the Construction Manager (1) known deviations
from the Contract Documents and from the most recent construction schedule, and (2) defects and deficiencies
observed in the Work.

§ 3.6.2.2 The Architect has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents and shall
notify the Construction Manager about the rejection. Whenever the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the
Architect, upon written authorization from the Owner and notification to the Construction Manager, shall have the
authorily to require inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with the provisions of die Contract Documents,
whether or not such Work is fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a
decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or

AIA Document B132™ -2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAS Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Lav/ and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and is nol for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or
employees or other persons or entities perfonning portions of the Work.

§ 3.6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the

Contract Documents on written request of the Construction Manager, Owner, or Contractor through the

Construction Manager. The Architect's response to such requests shall be made in writing within any time limits
agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptaess.

§ 3.6.2.4 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect shall be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable
from the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations
and decisions, the Architect shall endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, shall not

show partiality to either, and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. The
Architect's decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect shall be final if consistent with the intent expressed in the
Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.2.5 Unless the Owner and Contractor designate another person to serve as an Initial Decision Maker, as that

term is defined in AIA Document A232-2009, the Architect shall render initial decisions on Claims between the
Owner and Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.3 Certificates for Payment to Contractor
§ 3.6.3.1 The Architect shall review and certify an application for payment not more frequently than monthly. Within
seven days after the Architect receives an application for payment forwarded from the Construction Manager, the
Architect shall review and certify the application as follows:

.1 Where there is only one Contractor responsible for performing the Work, the Architect shall review the
Contractor's Application and Certificate for Payment that the Construction Manager has previously
reviewed and certified, The Architect shall certify the amount due the Contractor and shall issue a
Certificate for Payment in such amount.

.2 Where there are Multiple Prime Contractors responsible for performing different portions of the
Project, the Architect shall review a Project Application and Project Certificate for Payment, with a
Summary of Contractors' Applications for Payment, that the Construction Manager has previously
prepared, reviewed and certified. The Architect shall certify the amounts due the Contractors and
shall issue a Project Certificate for Payment in the total of such amounts.

§ 3.6.3.2 The Architect's certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Owner, based on (1) the
Architect's evaluation of the Work as provided in Section 3.6.2, (2) the data comprising the Contractor's
Application for Payment or the data comprising the Project Application for Payment, and (3) the recommendation of
the Construction Manager, that, to the best of the Architect's knowledge, iirformation and belief, the Work has
progressed to the point indicated and that the quality of die Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents.
The foregoing representations are subject (1) to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract
Documents upon Substantial Completion, (2) to results of subsequent tests and inspections, (3) to correction of
minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion, and (4) to specific qualifications expressed by
the Architect.

§ 3.6.3.3 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment or a Project Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation
that the Architect has (1) made exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the
Work, (2) reviewed construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies of

requisitions received from Subcontractors and material suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to
substantiate the Contractor's right to payment, or (4) ascertained how or for what purpose the Contractor has used
money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum.

§ 3.6.3.4 The Architect shall maintain a record of the applications and certificates for payment.

§ 3.6.4 Submittals
§ 3.6.4.1 The Architect shall review the Construction Manager's Project submittal schedule and shall not
unreasonably delay or withhold approval. The Architect's action in reviewing submittals transmitted by the
Construction Manager shall be taken in accordance with the approved submittal schedule or, in the absence of an

AIA Document B132™ - 2009. Copyright 1892 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING; This AIA® Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIAS Document, or any portion of it,
may result In severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible undsr the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and Is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient rime in the Architect's
professional judgment to permit adequate review.

§ 3.6.4.2 In accordance with the Architect-approved Project submittal schedule, and after the Construction Manager

reviews, approves and transmits the submittals, the Architect shall review and approve or take other appropriate

action upon the Contractor's submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but only for the limited

purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract

Documents. Review of such submittals is not for the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other

information such as dimensions, quantities, and installation or performance of equipment or systems, which are the

Contractor's responsibility. The Architect's review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions or, unless

otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or

procedures. The Architect's approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item
is a component.

§ 3.6.4.3 If the Contract Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professional design services or

certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment, the Architect shall specify the

appropriate performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Tfae Architect shall review shop
drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the design professional retained by the
Contractor that bear such professional's seal and signature when submitted lo the Architect. The Architect shall be
entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals

performed or provided by such design professionals.

§ 3.6.4.4 After receipt of the Construction Manager's recommendations, and subject to the provisions of Section 4.3,

the Architect shall review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The Architect, in

consultation with the Construction Manager, shall set forth in the Contract Documents the requirements for requests

for information. Requests for mfonnation shall include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement that indicates the
specific Drawings or Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the clarification requested. The
Architect's response to such requests shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon, or otherwise with

reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and

Specifications in response to requests for information.

§ 3.6.4.5 The Architect shall maintain a record of submittals and copies ofsubmittals transmitted by the Construction
Manager in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§3.6.5 Changes in the Work
§ 3.6.5.1 The Architect shall review and sign, or take other appropriate action, on Change Orders and Construction
Change Directives prepared by the Construction Manager for the Owner's approval and execution in accordance

with the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.5.2 The Architect may authorize minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract
Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. Such

changes shall be effected by written order issued by the Architect through the Construction Manager.

§ 3.6.5.3 The Architect shall maintain records relative to changes in the Work.

§ 3.6.6 Project Completion
§ 3.6.6.1 The Architect, assisted by Ihe Construction Manager, shall conduct inspections to determine the date or
dates of Substantial Completion and the date of final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion
prepared by the Construction Manager; receive from the Construction Manager and review written warranties and

related documents required by the Contract Documents and assembled by the Contractor; and, after receipt of a final
Contractor's Application and Certificate for Payment or a final Project Application and Project Certificate for
Payment from the Construction Manager, issue a final Certificate for Payment based upon a final inspection
indicating the Work complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.6.2 The Architect's inspections shall be conducted with the Owner and Construction Manager to check
conformance of the Work with the requirements of the Contract Documents and to verify the accuracy and

AtA Document B132™-2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAS Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



completeness of the list submitted by the Construction Manager and Contractor of Work to be completed or
corrected.

§ 3.6.6.3 When the Work is found to be substantially complete by the Construction Manager and Architect, and after
certification by the Construction Manager and the Architect, the Architect shall inform the Owner about the balance
of the Contract Sum remainmg to be paid the Contractor, mcludiug the amount to be retained from the Contract
Sum, if any, for final completion or correction of the Work.

§ 3.6.6.4 Upon request of the Owner, and prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial Completion,
the Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner to review the facility
operations and performance.

ARTICLE 4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES
§ 4.1 Additional Services listed below are not included in Basic Services but may be required for the Project. The
Architect shall provide the listed Additional Services only if specifically designated in the table below as the
Architect's responsibility, and the Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.2.
(Designate the Additional Services the Architect shall provide in the second column of the table below. In the third
column indicate whether the service description is located in Section 4.2 or in an attached exhibit. If in an exhibit,
identify the exhibit.)

Services

§ 4.1.1 Progi'ammmg (B202™-2009)
§ 4.1.2 Multiple preliminary designs
§ 4.1.3 Measured drawinys
§ 4.1.4 Existing facilities surveys
§ 4.1.5 Site evaluation and planning (B203™-2007)
§ 4.1.6 Building information modeling (E202™-2008)
§ 4.1.7 Civil engineering
§ 4.1.8 Landscape design
§ 4.1.9 Architectural interior design (B252™-2007)
§ 4.1.10 Value analysis (B204™-2007)
§ 4.1.11 Detailed cost estimating
§ 4.1.12 On-site project representation (B207™-2008)
§ 4.1.13 Conformed construction documents
§ 4,1.14 As-designed record drawings
§ 4.1.15 As-constructed record drawings

§ 4.1.16 Post occupancy evaluation

§ 4.1.17 Facility support services (B210™-2007)
§ 4.1.18 Tenant-related services

§ 4.1.19 Coordination of Owner's consultants

§ 4.1.20 Telecommunications/data design
§ 4.1,21 Security evaluation and planning (B206™-
2007)
§ 4.1.22 Commissioning (B2 11™-2007)
§ 4.1.23 Extensive environmentally responsible design
§ 4.1.24 LEED® certification (B214™-2012)
§ 4.1.25 Historic preservation (B205™-2007)

§ 4.1.26 Furniture, furnishings, and equipment design
(B253TM-20Q7)

Responsibility
(Architect, Owner

orNot Provided)

Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided

Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided
Not Provided

Location of Service Description
(Section 4.2 below or in an exhibit

attached to this document and

identified below)

Inlt.

/

§ 4.2 Insert a description of each Additional Service designated in Section 4.1 as the Arcliitect's responsibility, if not
further described in an exhibit attached to this document.

AIA Document B132™ - 2008. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA" Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA° Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes; (3B9ADA54)



§ 4.3 Additional Services may be provided after execution of this Agreement, without invalidating the Agreement.
Except for services required due to the fault of the Architect, any Additional Services provided in accordance with

this Section 4.3 shall entitle the Architect to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and an appropriate adjustment in

the Architect's schedule.

§ 4.3.1 Upon recognizing the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Architect shall notify the Owner
with reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. The Architect shall not

proceed to provide the followmg services until the Architect receives the Owner's written authorization:

.1 Services necessitated by a change in the Initial Information, previous instructions or recommendations

given by the Construction Manager or the Owner, or approvals given by the Owner, or a material

change in the Project including, but not limited to, size, quality, complexity, building systems, the

Owner's schedule or budget for Cost of the Work, constructability considerations, procurement or

delivery method, or bid packages in addition to those listed in Section 1,1.6;
.2 Making revisions in Drawings, Specifications, or other documents (as required pursuant to Section

6.7), when such revisions are required because the Construction Manager's estimate of the Cost of the

Work exceeds the Owner's budget, except where such excess is due to changes initiated by the

Architect in scope, capacities of basic systems, or the kinds and quality of materials, finishes or
equipment;

.3 Services necessitated by the Owner's request for extensive environmentally responsible design

alternatives, such as unique system designs, in-depth material research, energy modeling, or LEED®

certification;
.4 Changing or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service necessitated by the enactment or

revision of codes, laws or regulations or official interpretations;

.5 Services necessitated by decisions of the Owner or Construction Manager not rendered in a timely

manner or any other failure of performance on the part of the Owner, Construction Manager or the

Owner's other consultants or contractors;

.6 Preparing digital data for transmission to the Owner's consultants and contractors, or to other Owner

authorized recipients;
.7 Preparation of design and documentation for alternate bid or proposal requests proposed by the Owner

or Construction Manager;
.8 Preparation for, and attendance at, a public presentation, meeting or hearmg;

.9 Preparation for, and attendance at a dispute resolution proceeding or legal proceeding, except where the

Architect is party thereto;
.10 Evaluation of the qualifications of bidders or persons providmg proposals;
.11 Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from iire or other cause during construction;

or

.12 Assistance to the Initial Decision Maker, if other than the Architect.

§ 4.3.2 To avoid delay in the Construction Phase, the Architect shall provide the following Additional Services,
notiiy the Owner with reasonable promptness, and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need, If the
Owner subsequently determines that all or parts of those services are not required, the Owner shall give prompt
written notice to the Architect, and the Owner shall have no further obligation to compensate the Architect for those
services:

,1 Reviewing a Contractor's submittal out of sequence from the initial Project submittal schedule agreed

to by the Architect;
.2 Responding to the Contractor's requests for information that are not prepared in accordance with the

Contract Documents or where such information is available to the Contractor from a careful study

and comparison of the Contract Documents, field conditions, other Owner-provided infomiation,

Contractor-prepared coordination drawings, or prior Project correspondence or documentation;

.3 Preparing Change Orders, and Construction Change Directives that require evaluation of Contractor's

proposals and supporting data, or the preparation or revision of Instruments of Service;

.4 Evaluating an extensive number of Claims as the Initial Decision Maker;

.5 Evaluating substitutions proposed by the Owner, Construction Manager or Contractor and making

subsequent revisions to Instruments of Service resulting therefrom; or

AIA Document B132ru -2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAS Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIAH Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and Is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



.6 To the extent the Architect's Basic Services are affected, providing Construction Phase Services 60

days after (1) the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or (2) the anticipated date of Substantial
Completion, identified in Initial Information, whichever is earlier.

§ 4.3.3 The Architect shall provide Construction Phase Services exceeding the limits set forth below as Additional
Services. When the limits below are reached, the Architect shall notify the Owner:

.1 Two (2 ) reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittals of the

Contractor

.2 ( ) visits to the site by the Architect over the duration of the Project during construction

.3 ( ) mspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work is
substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents

.4 ( ) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine final completion

§ 4,3.4 If the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within ( ) months of the date of this
Agreement, through no fault of the Architect, extension of the Architect's services beyond that time shall be

compensated as Additional Services.

ARTICLE 5 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information in a timely manner
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program which shall set forth the
Owner's objectives, schedule, constraints and criteria, including space requirements and relationships, flexibility,
expandability, special equipment, systems and site requirements. Within 15 days after receipt of a written request
from the Architect, the Owner shall furnish the requested information as necessary and relevant for the Architect to
evaluate, give notice of or enforce lien rights.

§ 5,2 The Owner shall retain a Construction Manager to provide services, duties and responsibilities as described in
AIA Document C132-2009, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager. The Owner
shall provide the Architect a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and the Construction Manager, and

any further modifications to the agreement.

§ 5.3 The Owner shall furnish the services of a Construction Manager that shall be responsible for creating the
overall Project schedule. The Owner shall adjust the Project schedule, if necessary, as the Project proceeds.

§ 5.4 The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner's budget for the Project, including (1) the budget
for the Cost of the Work as defmed in Section 6.1, (2) the Owner's other costs, and (3) reasonable contingencies
related to all of these costs. The Owner shall furnish the services of a Construction Manager that shall be responsible
for preparing all estimates of the Cost of the Work. Tf the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner's

budget for the Cost of the Work, the Owner shall notify the Architect and the Construction Manager. The Owner and
the Architect, in consultation with the Construction Manager, shall thereafter agree to a corresponding change in the
budget for the Cost of the Work or in the Project's scope and quality.

§ 5.4.1 The Owner acknowledges that accelerated, phased or fast-track scheduling provides a benefit, but also carries
with it associated risks. Such risks include the Owner incurring costs for the Architect to coordinate and redesign
portions of the Project affected by procuring or installing elements of the Project prior to the completion of all
relevant Construction Documents, and costs for the Conh-actor to remove and replace previously installed Work. If

the Owner selects accelerated, phased or fast-track scheduling, the Owner agrees to include in the budget for the

Project sufficient contingencies to cover such costs.

§ 5.5 The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on the Owner's behalf with respect to the Project.
The Owner shall render decisions and approve the Architect's submittals in a timely manner in order to avoid
unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect's services,

§ 5.6 The Owner shall furnish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for
the site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and stmctures; designated wetlands;
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and

contours oftfae site; locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements

AIA Document B132™ - 2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA° Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and Is not for resale.
Ussr Notes: (3B9ADA54)



and trees; and information couceming available utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below
grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark.

§ 5.7 The Owner shall furnish services ofgeotechnical engineers, which may include but are not limited to test
borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic
evaluation, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil

conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations.

§ 5.8 The Owner shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the Architect.
Upon the Architect's request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of services in the contracts between the
Owner and the Owner's consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other than those designated

in this Agreement, or authorize the Architect to famish them as an Additional Service, when the Architect requests
such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope of the Project. The Owner shall
require that its consultants maintain professional liability insurance and other liability insurance as appropriate to the
services provided.

§ 5.9 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the Contract Documents, such as
structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials.

§ 5.10 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner's needs and interests.

§ 5.11 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect and Construction Manager if the Owner
becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect's

Instruments of Service.

§ 5.12 Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communicalions have been specially
authorized, the Owner shall endeavor to communicate with the Contractor through the Construction Manager, and

shall contemporaneously provide the same communications to the Architect about matters arising out of or relatmg
to the Contract Documents. Communications by and with the Architect's consultants shall be through the Architect.

§ 5.13 Before executing the Contract for Constmction, the Owner shall coordinate the Architect's duties and
responsibilities set forth in the Contract for Construction with the Architect's services set forth in this Agreement.
The Owner shall provide the Architect a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and Contractor,
including the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

§ 5.14 The Owner shall provide the Architect access to the Project site prior to commencement of the Work and shall
obligate the Construction Manager and Contractor to provide the Architect access to the Work wherever it is in
preparation or progress.

ARTICLES COST OF THE WORK
§ 6.1 For purposes of this Agreement, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct all
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect and shall include the contractors' general conditions
costs, overhead and profit. The Cost of the Work includes the compensation of the Construction Manager and
Construction Manager's consultants during the Construction Phase only, including compensation for reimbursable
expenses at the job site, if any. The Cost of the Work does not include the compensation of the Architect, the costs
of the land, rights-of-way, financing, contingencies for changes in the Work or other costs that are the responsibility
of the Owner.

§ 6.2 The Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work is provided in Initial Information, and may be adjusted
throughout the Project as requu-ed under Sections 5.4 and 6.4. Evaluations of the Owner's budget for the Cost of the
Work represent the Architect's judgment as a design professional.

§ 6.3 The Owner shall require the Construction Manager to include appropriate contingencies for design, bidding or
negotiating, price escalation, and market conditions in estimates of the Cost of the Work. The Architect shall be
entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of estimates of the Cost of the Work the Construction Manager
prepares as the Architect progresses with its Basic Services. The Architect shall prepare, as an Additional Service,

AIA Document B132™ - 2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or disiribulion of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penaltios, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes; (3B9ADA54)



revisions to the Drawings, Specifications or other documents required due to the Construction Manager's
inaccuracies or incompleteness in preparing cost estimates. The Architect may review the Construction Manager's

estimates solely for the Architect's guidance in completion of its services, however, the Architect shall report to the

Owner any material inaccuracies and inconsistencies noted during any such review.

§ 6,3.1 If the Architect is providing detailed cost estimating services as an Additional Service, and a discrepancy
exists between the Construction Manager's cost estimates and the Architect's cost estimates, the Architect and the

Construction Manager shall work cooperatively to conform the cost estimates to one another.

§ 6.4 If, prior to the conclusion of the Design Development Phase, the Construction Manager's estimate of the Cost
of the Work exceeds the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect, in consultation with the
Construction Manager, shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the Project's size, quality or

budget, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making such adjustments.

§ 6.5 If the estimate of the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Design Development Phase exceeds the
Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work, the Owner shall

.1 give written approval of an increase in the budget for the Cost of the Work;

.2 in consultation with the Architect and Construction Manager, revise the Project program, scope, or

quality as required to reduce the Cost of the Work; or
.3 implement any other mutually acceptable alternative.

§ 6.6 If the Owner chooses to proceed under Section 6.5.2, the Architect, without additional compensation, shall
incorporate the required modifications in the Construction Documents Phase as necessary to comply with the
Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Design Development Phase Services, or the budget
as adjusted under Section 6.5. 1. The Architect's modification of the Construction Documents shall be the limit of
the Architect's responsibility as a Basic Service under this Article 6.

§ 6.7 After incorporation of modifications under Section 6.6, the Architect shall, as an Additional Service, make any
required revisions to the Drawings, Specifications or other documents necessitated by subsequent cost estimates that

exceed the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work, except when the excess is due to changes initiated by the
Architect in scope, basic systems, or the kinds and quality of materials, finishes or equipment.

ARTICLE 7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES
§ 7.1 The Architect and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other information, the

transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information or has permission from the copyright owner to
transmit such information for its use on the Project. If the Owner and Architect intend to transmit Instruments of
Service or any other information or documentation in digital form, they shall endeavor to establish necessary
protocols governing such transmissions.

§ 7,2 The Architect and the Architect's consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and

other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official
regulatory requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication

in derogation of the reserved rights of the Architect and the Architect's consultants.

§ 7.3 Upon execution of this Agreement, the Architect grants to the Owner a nonexclusive license to use the

Architect's Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, mamtaining, altering

and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations, including prompt payment
of all sums when due, under this Agreement. The Architect shall obtain similar nonexclusive licenses from the
Architect's consultants consistent with this Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Owner to
authorize the Contractor, Construction Manager, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment

suppliers, as well as the Owner's consultants and separate contractors, to reproduce applicable portions of the
Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. If the
Architect rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 9.4, the license granted in this
Section 7.3 shall terminate.

AIA Document B132™ - 2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING; This AIA® Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties, Unauthorized reproduction or distribution oftliis AIA8 Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and Is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



§ 7.3.1 In the event the Owner uses the Instruments of Service without retaining the authors of the Instruments of
Service, the Owner releases the Architect and Archilect's consullant(s) from all claims and causes of action arising
from such uses. The Owner, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
Architect and its consultants from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes

of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner's use of

the Instruments of Service under this Section 7.3.1. The terms of this Section 7.3.1 shall not apply if the Owner

rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 9.4.

§ 7.4 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 7, no other license or right shall be deemed granted or implied
under this Agreement. The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license

granted herein to another party without the prior written agreement of the Architect. Any unauthorized use of the
Instruments of Service shall be at the Owner's sole risk and without liability to the Architect and the Architect's
consultants.

ARTICLE 8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
§ 8.1 General
§ 8.1.1 The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes of action, whether in contract, tort, or

otherwise, against the other arising out of or related to this Agreement in accordance with the requirements of the
method of binding dispute resolution selected in this Agreement within the period specified by applicable law, but in
any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and Architect
waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 8.1.1.

§ 8.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by property insurance, the Owner and Architect waive all rights against
each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents and employees of the other for damages, except such
rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in AIA Document A232-2009, General

Conditions of the Contract for Construction. The Owner or the Architect, as appropriate, shall require of the
Construction Manager, contractors, consultants, agents and employees of any of them similar waivers in favor of the

other parties enumerated herein.

§ 8.1.3 The Architect shall indemnify and hold the Owner and the Owner's officers and employees harmless from
and against damages, losses and judgments arising from claims by third parties, including reasonable attorneys' fees
and expenses recoverable under applicable law, but only to the extent they are caused by the negligent acts or

omissions of the Architect, its employees and its consultants in the performance of professional services under this

Agreement. The Architect's duty to indemnify the Owner under this provision shall be limited to the available
proceeds of insurance coverage.

§ 8.1.4 The Architect and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential
damages due to either party's termination of this Agreement, except as specifically provided in Section 9.7,

§ 8.2 Mediation
§ 8.2.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to
mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien
arising out of the Architect's services, the Architect may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with
the lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by binding dispute resolution.

§ 82.2 The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question between
them by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American
Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of
the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to the Contract, and
filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently with the filing of
a complaint or other appropriate demand for binding dispute resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in
advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days
from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. If an arbitration
proceeding is stayed pursuant to this section, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrators)
and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.

AIA Document B132™-2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING; ThisAIA6 Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes; (3B9ADA54)



§ 8,2.3 The parties shall share the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall

be cuforccablc as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ S.2A If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 8.2, the method of binding
dispute resolution shall be the following:
(Check the appropriate box. If the Owner and Architect do not select a method of binding dispute resolution below,

or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, the dispute will
be resolved in a court of competent jurisdiction.)

[ ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 8.3 of this Agreement

[ X ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

[ ] Other: (Specify)

§ 8.3 Arbitration
§ 8.3.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in this Agreement any
claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement subject to, but not resolved by,
mediation shall be subject to arbih-ation which shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in
accordance with its Construction Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement, unless the parties

mutually agree otherwise. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to this

Agreement, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration.

§ 8.3.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based
on the claim, dispute or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute
oflunitations purposes, receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the
arbitration shall constitute the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute or other
matter in question.

§ 8.3.2 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity

duly consented to by parties to this Agreement shall be specifically enforceable in accordance with applicable law in
any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 8.3.3 The award rendered by the arbitrators) shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance
with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 8.3.4 Consolidation orJoinder
§ 8.3.4,1 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any

other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration
permits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common issues of law or fact, and

(3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrators).

§ 8.3.4,2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a
common question of fact or law whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration,

provided that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to suchjoinder. Consent to arbitration involving an
additional person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question
not described in the written consent.

§ 8.3.4,3 The Owner and Architect grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this

Section 8.3, whether byjoinder or consolidation, the same rights ofjoinder and consolidation as the Owner and
Architect under this Agreement.

AIA Document B132™ - 2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American InsHute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: Tliis AIA9 Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penaliies, and will be prosecuted to (lie maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Ofder No. 5486168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and Is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



ARTICLE 9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
§ 9.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be
considered substantial nonperfbrmance and cause for termination or, at the Architect's option, cause for suspension

of performance of services under this Agreement. If the Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give

seven days' written notice to the Owner before suspending services. In the event of a suspension of services, the

Architect shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of
services. Before resuming services, the Architect shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses

incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Architect's services. The Architect's fees for the remaining

services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of
such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Architect shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the

interruption and resumption of the Architect's services. The Architect's fees for the remaining services and the time

schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the
Architect, the Architect may termmate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days' written notice.

§ 9.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice should the other party
fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating
the termination,

§ 9.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice to the Architect for the
Owner's convenience and without cause.

§ 9.6 In the event of termination not the fault of the Architect, the Architect shall be compensated for services
performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due and all Termination Expenses as
defined in Section 9.7.

§ 9.7 Termination Expenses are in addition to compensation for the Architect's services and include expenses

directly attributable to termination for which the Architect is not otherwise compensated, plus an amount for the
Architect's anticipated profit on the value of the services not performed by the Architect.

§ 9.8 The Owner's rights to use the Architect's Instruments of Service in the event of a termination of this
Agreement are set forth m Article 7 and Section 1 1.9.

ARTICLE 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
§ 10.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, except that if the
parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern
Section 8.3,

§ 10.2 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AIA Document A232-2009, General

Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

§ 10.3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns and legal

representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall assign this Agreement without the
written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for
the Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner's rights and obligations under this Agreement.

§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Architect to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be
submitted to the Architect for review at least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests
the Architect to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Architect shall execute
all such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the
Architect for review at least 14 days prior to execution. The Architect shall not be required to execute certificates or
consents that would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement.

AIA Document B132™ - 2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and Is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



§ 10,5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor
of a third party against either the Owner or Architect.

§ 10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, die Architect shall have no responsibility for the discovery,
presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic substances in any

form at the Project site.

§ 10.7 The Architect shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations of the design of the
Project among the Architect's promotional and professional materials. The Architect shall be given reasonable
access to the completed Project to make such representations. However, the Architect's materials shall not include

the Owner's confidential or proprietary information if the Owner has previously advised the Architect m writing of
the specific information considered by the Owner to be confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall provide
professional credit for the Architect in the Owner's promotional materials for the Project.

§ 10.8 If the Architect or Owner receives information specifically designated by the other party as "confidential" or
"business proprietary," the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it
to any other person except to (1) its employees, (2) those who need to know the content of such information in order
to perform services or construction solely and exclusively for the Project, or (3) its consultants and contractors
whose contracts include similar restrictions on the use of confidential information,

ARTICLE 11 COMPENSATION
§ 11.1 For the Architect's Basic Services described under Article 3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as
follows:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.)

Architect's compensation throuuh the construction document phase shall be a fixed fee in the amount ofS48.386.00.

Semces provided durine the Biddine Phase shall be by hourly rate. An allowance for this work is initially set at S2.
500.00.

Services provided durine the Construction P
base shall be by hourly rate. An allowance for this work is initially set at $9.600.00.

§ 11.2 For Additional Services designated in Section 4.1, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation. Jfnecessmy, list specific services to which particular methods of

compensation apply.)

Compensation for the Architect's work covered under Additional Services described in Section 4.1 shall be by hourl
y rate.

§ 11.3 For Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.3, the
Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows;
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.)

Compensation for the Architect's work covered under Section 4.3 shall be by hourly rate.

§ 11,4 Compensation for Additional Services of the Architect's consultants when not included in Sections 11.2 or
11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus Five percent f 5.00 %), or as otherwise stated below:

§ 11,5 Where compensation for Basic Services is based on a stipulated sum or percentage of the Cost of the Work,

the compensation for each phase of services shall be as follows:

[ Schematic Design Phase Fifty
Design Development Phase
Construction Documents Phase Fifty

AIA Document B132nl - 2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by Ths American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treatiiis. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of It,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under ths law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ETon 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and Is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)

percent (
percent (
percent (

50.00

50.00

%)
%)
%)



Bidding or Negotiation Phase percent ( %)
Construction Phase percent ( %)

Total Basic Compensation one hundred percent ( 100 %)

The Owner acknowledges that with an accelerated Project delivery or multiple bid package process, the Architect
may be providing its services in multiple Phases simultaneously. Therefore, the Architect shall be permitted to
invoice monthly in proportion to services performed in each Phase of Services, as appropriate.

§ 11.6 When compensation is based on a percentage of the Cost of the Work and any portions of the Project are
deleted or otherwise not constructed, compensation for those portions of the Project shall be payable to the extent

services are performed on those portions, in accordance with the schedule set forth in Section 11.5 based on (1) the
lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal, or (2) if no such bid or proposal is received, the most recent estimate of
the Cost of die Work prepared by the Construction Manager for such portions of the Project. The Architect shall be
entitled to compensation in accordance with this Agreement for all services performed whether or not the
Construction Phase is commenced.

§ 11.7 The hourly billing rates for services of the Architect and the Architect's consultants, if any, are set forth
below. The rates shall be adjusted in accordance with the Architect's and Architect's consultants' normal review

practices.

(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.)

Employee or Category Rate ($0.00)

§ 11.8 Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses
§ 11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Services and include
expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect's consultants directly related to the Project, as follows:

.1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence;

.2 Long distance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project Web sites,

and extranets;

.3 Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;
A Printing, reproductions, plots, standard form documents;

.5 Postage, handling and delivery;

.6 Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner;

.7 Renderings, models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials requested by the

Owner;
.8 Architect's Consultant's expense of professional liability msurance dedicated exclusively to this

Project, or the expense of additional insurance coverage or limits if the Owner requests such
msurance in excess of that normally earned by the Architect's consultants;

.9 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses;

.10 Site office expenses; and

.11 Other similar Project-related expenditures.

§ 11.8,2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses mcurred by the Architect and the
Architect's consultants plus Zero percent (0.00 %) of the expenses incurred.

§ 11.9 Compensation for Use of Architect's Instmments of Service
If the Owner terminates the Architect for its convenience under Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates this

Agreement under Section 9.3, the Owner shall pay a licensing fee as compensation for the Owner's contmued use of

the Architect's Instruments of Service solely for purposes of completing, using and maintaining the Project as
follows:

No licensing fee is reuuired for the Owner's continued use of the Architect's Instruments of Service soles' for the pur

pose ofcompletum. using and mamtainina the Project.

AIA Document B132™ - 2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAe Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internationa! Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIAS Document, or any portion of it,
may result In severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes; (3B9ADA54)



§ 11.10 Payments to the Architect
§ 11.10.1 An initial payment of Zero Dollars and Zero Cents ($ 0.00) shall be made upon execution of this
Agreement and is the minimum payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner's account in the
final invoice.

§ 11,10,2 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed.
Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect's invoice. Amounts unpaid Fortv-five (45 ) days
after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate
prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect,
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)

6 % oer annum

§ 11.10.3 The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Architect's compensation to impose a penalty or
liquidated damages on the Architect, or to offset sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes ia
the Work unless the Architect agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in a binding dispute resolution
proceeding.

§ 11.10.4 Records ofReimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Additional Services, and services performed on
the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times,

ARTICLE 12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows:

ARTICLE 13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT
§ 13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be
amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Architect,

§ 13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents listed below:
.1 AIA Document B 1 32™-2009, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Architect, Construction

Manager as Adviser Edition
.2 AIA Document E201™-2007, Digital Data Protocol Exhibit, if completed, or the following:

.3 AIA Document E202™-2008, Building Information Modeling Protocol Exhibit, if completed, or the
following:

,4 Other documents:

(List other documents, if any, including additional scopes of service forming part of the Agreement.)

Exhibit A - Hourly Rate Schedule
Exhibit B - Certificate of Liability Insurance

This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above.

^— ^?^J^ ^
OWNER (Signature) ARCHITECT (Signature) (] '

I Joe DeLuce. CPRPExecutive Director _ Lawrence R. Liveruood. FAIAPrincinal
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)

AIA Document B132™ -2009. Copyright 1992 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA6 Document Is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties, Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA8 Document, or any portion of it,
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by
AIA software at 13:08:04 ET on 11/04/2019 under Order No. 5466168379 which expires on 10/01/2020, and Is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA54)



EXHIBIT A
ARCHITECTURAL EXPRESSIONS, LLP

HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE
October 2019

POSITION/STAFF HOURLY RATE

ARCHITECTURAL STAFF
Principal

Lawrence Llvergood $165
John Ltgon $165
James Fouse $165

Senior Architect
Neil Strack $150
Brian Kesler $130
Kenneth Knox $130

Architect
James Anderson $103
Mathew Pica $82
Andrew Graumlich $80

Interior Designer
Angela Johnston $98

Architectural Intern
Jennifer Keigher $54
Michelle Lorenz $54
Mathew Kluge $51

Project Assistant
Marissa Luck $88
Dawn Lamb $69
Sharron Thornton $49

ENGINEERING STAFF
Principal

Kenneth Klein $165

Senior Electrical Engineer
Steve Ragan $150

Electrical Engineer
Elliot Struve $85

Mechanical Engineer
Patrick Corrigan $113

Engineering Technician
Kevin Bowers $72
Cralg Rawlings $51



AMENDMENT TO AIA DOCUMENT B132-2009
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect,

Construction Manager as Adviser Edition

THIS AMENDMENT to AIA Document B132-2009 Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner
and Architect, Construction Manager as Adviser Edition (hereinafter referred to as, "Agreement") is made
and effective as of the _ day of _ 201 9, between the Champaign Park District, 706 Kenwood
Road, Champaign, IL 61821 (hereinafter referred to alternatively as, Owner or District) and the Architect:
Architectural Expressions, LLP, 100 N. Chestnut, Suite 300, Champaign, IL 61820 (hereinafter referred to
alternatively as, Architect or Architectural Expressions).

WHEREAS, the Architect has drafted and proposed contemporaneously herewith AIA Document
B132-2009, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, Construction Manager as
Advisor Edition (hereinafter referred to as, Agreement) for a project generally described as Bicentennial
Center Remodeling services proposal to be undertaken at Centennial Park in Champaign, Illinois; and

WHEREAS, certain terms, conditions, and provisions stated in the Agreement and Exhibit A
attached thereto and incorporated by reference therein are to be amended, deleted, or clarified as set forth
in this Amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in the Agreement, Exhibit
A and herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Owner and Architect
hereby agree that the Agreement is hereby amended, changed, and clarified, anything in the Agreement
to the contrary notwithstanding, as follows:

1. Section 7.1 shall be amended and restated as follows:

The Owner is the copyright owner of such information and its agents have permission to transmit
applicable information for use on the Project. If the Owner and Architect intend to transmit Instruments of
Service or any other information or documentation in digital form, they shall endeavor to establish
necessary protocols governing such transmissions.

2. Section 7.2 shall be amended and restated as follows:

The Owner shall be deemed the author and owner of the Instruments of Service, including the
Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved rights,
including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official regulatory
requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication in
derogation of the reserved rights of the Owner.

3. Section 7.3 shall be amended and restated as follows:

Upon execution of this Agreement, the Owner grants to the Architect a nonexclusive license to use
the Owner's Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining,
altering and adding to the Project, provided that the Architect substantially performs its obligations under
this Agreement. The Owner shall obtain similar licenses from its consultants consistent with this
Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Architect to authorize the Contractor,
Construction Manager, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers, as well
as the Architect's consultants and separate contractors, to reproduce applicable portions of the
Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project.
If the Owner rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 9.4, the license granted
in this Section 7.3 shall terminate.

1
4835-1899-1278, v. 1



4. Section 7.3.1 shall be amended and restated as follows:

The Architect, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
Owner and its consultants from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims
and causes of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise
from the Architect's use of the Instruments of Service under this Section 7.3.1. The terms of this Section
7.3.1 shall not apply if the Architect rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 9.4.

5. Section 7.4 shall be amended and restated as follows:

Except for the licenses granted in this Article 7, no other license or right shall be deemed granted
or implied under this Agreement. The Architect shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise
transfer any license granted herein to another party without the prior written agreement of the Owner. Any
unauthorized use of the Instruments of Service by the Architect shall be at the Architect's sole risk and
without liability to the Owner and the Owner's consultants.

6. Section 8.1.1 shall be amended and restated as follows:

The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes of action against the other and
arising out of or related to this Agreement, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, in accordance with the
requirements of the binding dispute resolution method selected in this Agreement and within the period
specified by applicable law pursuant to the statute of limitations then in effect in the State of Illinois.

7. Section 8.1.3 shall be amended and restated as follows:

The Architect shall indemnify and hold the Owner and the Owner's officers and employees
harmless from and against damages, losses and judgments arising from claims by third parties, including
reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses recoverable under applicable law, but only to the extent they are
caused by the acts or omissions of the Architect, its employees and its consultants in the performance of
professional services under this Agreement.

8. Section 8.1.4 shall be stricken in its entirety.

9. Section 9.2 shall be amended and restated as follows:

If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior
to notice of such suspension. The Architect's fees for the remaining services and the time schedules shall
be equitably adjusted.

10. Section 9.6 shall be amended and restated as follows:

In the event of termination not the fault of the Architect, the Architect shall be compensated for
services performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due.

11. Section 9.7 shall be stricken in its entirety.

12. Section 9.8 shall be amended and restated as follows:

The Architect's rights to use the Owner's Instruments of Service in the event of a termination of this
Agreement are set forth in Article 7 and Section 11.9.

13. Section 10.1 shall be amended and restated as follows:

4835-1899-1278, v. 1



This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the place where the Project is located.

14. Section 10.6 shall be amended and restated as follows:

Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Architect shall have no responsibility for the
discovery, presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or
toxic substances in any form at the Project site; provided that, Architect shall promptly inform the Owner if
any such material or substances are discovered.

15. Section 10.7 the last sentence shall be amended and restated as follows:

The Owner may provide professional credit for the Architect in the Owner's promotional materials
for the Project.

16. Section 11.4 shall be amended and restated as follows:

Compensation for Additional Services of the Architect's consultants when not included in Sections
11.2 or 11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect.

17. Section 11.8.1.1 shall be amended and restated as follows:

Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence as specifically authorized in
writing by Owner.

18. Section 11.8.1.8 shall be stricken.

19. Section 11.8.1.9 shall be stricken.

20. Section 11.8.1.10 shall be stricken.

21. Section 11.8.1.11 shall be stricken.

22. Section 13.2 shall be amended and restated as follows:

Exhibit B - Certificate of Liability Insurance and policy endorsements.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner and Architect have executed this Amendment to be effective
as of the day and year first above written.

Owner: Champaign Park District, a municipal Architect: Architectural Expressions, LLP
Corporation,

By: _ By:.Joseph DeLuce Lawrence R. Livergood, Principal
Executive Director

ATTEST:

4835-1899-1278, v.1



REIFSTECK
^ REID~

ARCHITECTURE.
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT.

INTERIORS.

DODDS PARK 3.PLEX RESTROOM FACILITY STUDY
December 4,2019

Site: 1501 N, MattisAve,, Champaign

Champaign Park District
706 Kenwood Road

Champaign, Illinois 61821

RRCo Project Number: 201949

Reifsteck Reid & Company Architects

909 Arrow Road

Champaign, Illinois 61821



REIFSTEGK
^ REJD"

ARCHITECTURE.
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT.

INTERIORS.

Project Background

Options

Program Requirements and Criteria

Building Code Analysis

Appendix

Drawings:

Floor Plan - Options 1 & 2 (Renovation & All New)

Floor Plan - Option 3 (Prefabricated, modified)

Floor Plan - Option 4 (Prefabricated, unmodified)

Lincolnshire Center Suite #4, 909 Arrow Road, Champaign, IL 61821 Tel 217.351.4100 Fax 217.351.4111 www.rr-arch.com



REIFSTECK
REID
ARCHITECTURE.
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT.
INTERIORS.

Lincolnshire Center Suite #4, 909 Arrow Road, Champaign, IL 61821 Tel 217.351.4100 Fax 217.351.4111 www.rr-arch.com

3



'It'

REIFSTECK
I REID

ARCHITECTURE.
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT.
INTERIORS.

PROJECT BACKGROUND
The Champaign Park District (CPD) commissioned Reifsteck Reid & Company Architects (RRCo) to perform a
study to investigate the options to update their restroom facility at the Dodds Park softball fields 3-plex. The
facility is located just east of Parkland College in northwest Champaign, Illinois.

Dodds Park was purchased in 1969 via an open space acquisition grant and named in honor of former Park
Board Commissioner D.C. "Pick" Dodds in 1972. The Dodds Park complex includes soccer fields, tennis
courts, community gardens, a disc golf course, an Olympic and Paralympic tribute, sculptures, trails, the
Champaign County Worker's Memorial, a 4-plex softball complex, and a 3-plex softball complex. The softball
3-plex restroom building is the focus of this report.

The 3-plex softball complex is located on the north end of Dodds Park, directly north of the 4-plex softball
complex with Parkland Way running between them. The 3-plex restroom facility is located just south of the
three softball fields.

The existing restroom facility is a 540sf split face block building with a low sloped shingle roof. The existing
building has male and female restrooms, a storage/MEP room, and a concessions space. Freestanding block
walls currently flank the restroom doors as privacy screens.

RRCo, the Professional Services Consultants (PSC), met with a representative from the Champaign Park
District to develop a list of priorities for the facility. As part of this study a program was developed and is
included later on. The CPD representative and RRCo collaborated to develop a few different options. These
options included a renovation, an all new building, and a prefabricated building.

A preliminary code review has been performed.

After evaluating the needs and desires of the user, three separate options were generated for this report. An
additional option is included that doesn't meet all of the program requirements, see option 4 description for
further details. Opinions of Probable Cost (OPC) were developed for each option. Floor plans are included in
the appendix of this report.

Lincolnshire Center Suite #4, 909 Arrow Road, Champaign, IL 61821 Tel 217.351.4100 Fax 217.351.4111 www.rr-arch.com

4



REIFSTECK
REID
ARCHITECTURE.
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT.
INTERIORS.

OPTIONS
The Architect's scope of work for this study includes preliminary review of existing conditions, preliminary code
review, preliminary design options based on space program meetings, and opinions of probable cost. RRCo
visited the site to survey the existing facility.

RRCo met with a representative of the CPD. A program was developed based on new needs for the restroom
facility. While the original program included a small office, this was changed to a concessions space during
development. The program includes three accessible single-user restrooms (male, female, and all gender), a
storage area, a small desk space, and a small concessions space for basic snacks and drinks.

Three main options have been developed to achieve the client's desires. These include a renovation of the
existing facility, demolition of the existing building and replacing it with an all new facility, and demolition of the
existing building and replacing it with a prefabricated building. These prefabricated units would be lifted into
place by a crane, onto the prepared foundation, then utilities would be connected. While the layouts of each of
these options achieves the client's program needs, the premanufactured option utilizes a pre-designed
restroom model, altering it as little as possible to meet the program needs. All options are uninsulated.

The proposed renovation option (Option 1) assumes complete demolition of the interior partitions and fixtures.
This layout places two single user restrooms in the southwest corner, the third single user restroom in the
southeast corner, a concessions space in the northwest corner, and a storage and electrical/plumbing space in
the northeast corner. The existing exterior and roof shall remain unchanged except for the split face privacy
screens outside of the existing restroom doors. The west screen wall is tilted at a slight angle and should be
removed for safety concerns. Since these screens aren't needed for single user restrooms that don't have the
same privacy issues as multi-user restrooms, it's easiest to just remove them both.

The proposed 'all new building' option (Option 2) demolishes the existing building and its foundations and
footings and re-builds an identical version to what results from the renovation option layout. While it's
impractical to actually do this, it at least gives an idea of the cost for building an all new facility of similar size.

The prefabricated building option (Option 3) demolishes the existing building and its foundations and footings.
It rebuilds foundations and footings based on a predesigned layout by a concrete building manufacturer. In
this case, we used the Arapahoe model by CXT Precast Products. The base model's layout consists of four
accessible single user restrooms with a narrow MEP space in between. Since this layout has generously sized
restrooms, we altered the layout to take 30 inches out of each restroom and add it into the MEP space,
allowing room for storage and a small desk. A separate electrical/plumbing closet may be required. The fourth
single user restroom would have its fixtures removed and become the concessions space. This layout
achieves all of the program needs.

It should be noted that the prefabricated option will have limitations relative to finishes and fixtures. These will
be selected from the specific company's list of options.

Finally, a plan of the Arapahoe unmodified model has been included, we'll call this Option 4. This option would
have the fixtures in one of the restrooms removed and this space could be either the storage area or
concessions space. This option would not meet all of the program requirements. However, this option has
been included to show its savings over the modified Arapahoe layout.

A plan for each option is included in the appendix. Each option assumes a decorative split faced block exterior
look, asphalt shingle roofing, and painted interiors.

Lincolnshire Center Suite #4, 909 Arrow Road, Champalgn, IL 61821 Tel 217.351.4100 Fax 217.351.4111 www.rr-arch.com



^ REIFSTECK
REID
ARCHITECTURE.
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT.
INTERIORS.

Preliminary Opinions of Probable Construction Costs are as follows:

Option 1 - Renovation = $117,000
Option 2 - All New Building = $230,000
Option 3 - Prefabricated (modified) = $285,000
Option 4 - Prefabricated (unmodified) = $223,000

For the purpose of this report, electrical and plumbing costs have been based primarily on square footage
costs. Since the building is naturally ventilated, no mechanical costs have been included. We have assumed
that site-civil conditions are code compliant as currently configured. A topographic survey should be
performed as the project moves forward. Costs do not include abatement investigation, sampling or removal,
FF&E, AA/, tele/data, A/E fees, or construction contingencies. The OPC assumes a start of construction within
the next twelve to eighteen months.

Lincolnshire Center Suite #4, 909 Arrow Road, Champalgn, IL 61821 Tel 217.351.4100 Fax 217.351.4111 www.rr-arch.com

6



?? i
REIFSTECK
REID
ARCHITECTURE.
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT.
INTERIORS.

PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS AND CRITERIA
RRCo met with the Champaign Park District's representative to develop the following program:

1. An accessible Women's Restroom

2. An accessible Men's Restroom
3. An accessible All Gender Restroom
4. Storage space
5. A small desk space
6. A concession space

BUILDING CODE ANALYSIS

Codes and Standards

Life Safety Code (NFPA 101) 2015 Edition

2015 International Building Code

Illinois Energy Conservation Code - ASHRAE 90.1, 2016 version

2015 International Energy Conservation Code

2015 International Mechanical Code

2015 International Fire Code

2015 International Plumbing Code, Chapter 11 only

Illinois Plumbing Code, 2014
2014 National Electrical Code

2018 Illinois Accessibility Code

2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design

APPLICABLE REVIEW OF INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE (IBC)
The following analysis relates to Option 1 (Renovation), unless noted otherwise, all other options will be
similar.

Occupancy Classification

Under the International Building Code (IBC), the building occupancy is Assembly (A-5) with S-2 (Storage) as
an accessory occupancy. Accessory occupancies follow the code relative to their occupancy except for
building height, number of stories, and building area, which follow the main occupancy classification.

General Building Limitations

The proposed single story layout includes 487sf of floor area. The building's overall height would remain

unchanged at 12'-0".

Lincolnshire Center Suite #4, 909 Arrow Road, Champaign, IL 61821 Tel 217.351.4100 Fax 217.351.4111 www.rr-arch.com

7



t^ REIFSTECK
^ REJD"

ARCHITECTURE.

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT.
INTERIORS.

Construction Type:

Tabular Area Allowable:

Type IIIB - Exterior walls are 2 hr rated.

Use Group A-5: unlimited.

Allowable Building Height: Use Group A-5: unlimited stories, 55 feet (non-sprinklered)

Fire Protection

The area of the concessions space is less than the threshold requirement for sprinkler systems, therefore no
sprinkler system is required. The building will not have a fire alarm system. Portable fire extinguishers shall
be provided in accordance with NFPA 10.

Fire-Resistance-Rated Construction

Required Fire Ratings on Construction Elements:

Primary Structural Frame

Bearing Walls, Exterior

Bearing Walls, Interior

Floor/Ceiling Construction

Roof Construction

Other non-load bearing walls

Smoke Barriers

Shaft Walls

Egress

Occupant loads per floor:

First Floor: _5

0 hour rated

2 hour rated

0 hour rated

0 hour rated

0 hour rated

0 hour rated

None

None

Total: 5

The required exiting width is satisfied in each room by 36" wide existing and new doors. Exit access travel
distances of 200ft for Assembly (A-5) and 300ft for Storage (S-2) are well within requirements.

Accessibility

The building will meet all aspects of accessible design.

PLUMBING FIXTURES
The Illinois Plumbing Code does not apply to this facility type and the Equitable Restrooms Act doesn't apply
since the area to be altered is less than 50% of the entire place of public accommodation.

A single user, All Gender, restroom has been included, with a baby changing station.

Lincolnshire Center Suite #4, 909 Arrow Road, Champaign, IL 61821 Tel 217.351.4100 Fax 217.351.4111 www.rr-arch.com



REIFSTECK
^ REID

ARCHITECTURE.
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT.

INTERIORS.

APPENDIX

Lincolnshire Center Suite #4, 909 Arrow Road, Champaign, IL 61821 Tel 217.351.4100 Fax 217.351.4111 www.rr-arch.com

9



DODDS PARK 3-PLEX SOFTBALL
FIELD RESTROOM BUILDING STUDY

DECEMBER 4.2019
RRCo #201949

EXISTING PASS-THRU
WINDOWS

EDGE OF EXISTING
CONCRETE PAVING

NEW DRINKING FOUNTAIN

EDGE OF EXISTING
CONCRETE PAVING

EDGE OF ROOF ABOVE

PR-1

FLOOR PLAN
FIRST FLOOR - OPTION 1 - RENOVATION (OPTION 2, SAME BUT ALL NEW)
1/4" = r-o"

REIFSTECK
^1 REID



3808 N. Sulllmn Bidg, /7 EpoltanB. WA 99216

fla~oar
Precast Products

S)01 H. Highway 77 Hltoboro, TC 76B45

ARAPAHOE (MODIFIED)
OCT STANDARD BUILDING

•UcUy prahtiHid wllfmut lt» prin- »rlU«n
Off lntcm'BiittiL By ancrinji un o( mil (nFmf
Off lnEortianitfd cwta no inrontv. tnpfnt or

Sz
FLOOR PUN
(OPTION 3)

A-03(M)



FOR
REFERENCE

ONLY

RDDF LINE: ftBDVE

3BOB N, Sul!l»on Bldg. P SiM*ona, WA 39116

Precast Products
BOt N. Highwy 77 HHrtxn. -TX 76645

*B*P*HOE
en simm Biiumc

mjth*
fC(TtouwnW."ftr

b« i—i by Un •<fltid ncy^t to-»h<
^BfUik I

I b trirtr (rthbttri Ktbwt 1ft* >riir iftUm uwmt «f

Wudno < «nrmt? «f nmfmUifHy er of frtiw tw n



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: December 11, 2019

SUBJECT: Prairie Farm Masterplan Update

Backciround

The site plan of Prairie Farm has not had a significant change since its initial opening in 1966.

Major improvements have included the farmhouse in 1980 and the Betty Lou Jenkins memorial

barn in 1997. However in recent years, Prairie Farm has faced challenges with the contractor

who has provided animals, retaining part time staff, and incorporating evolving program needs.

There have been proposed improvements in recent capital plans for Prairie Farm, which include

a pavilion with restrooms and drainage infrastructure. In order to ensure that programming and

farm operations will benefit best from capital improvements, a draft masterplan has been

developed by staff. Approving a masterplan for Prairie Farm will help prioritize improvements

and act as a decision-making tool.

Discussion

A draft of the Prairie Farm Masterplan is attached. The plan was authored and reviewed by

staff. Staff are requesting Board feedback prior to bringing the Prairie Farm Masterplan back for

approval.

Timeline
January 8, 2020-Staffto provide Prairie Farm Masterplan Plan final draft to Board of

Commissioners for approval.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Bridgette Moen Andrew Weiss

Park Planner Director of Planning

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



^ »S9^^..?tSa^. ^^^Sh^

€:^
^-".<-^

l.:M^. \%^.-" ^

MM
MM

CHAMPAIGN ^^ ^ . .
pARKDisTRicT 2019 Prairie Farm Master Plan



John L Franklin donates
$15,000 for a Children's
Farm in memory of his

late wife, Margaret 0.

Franklin

Construction
for Prairie

! Farm begins

Farmhouse

construction is

completed

Dedication of Betty
LouJenkins memorial

barn

6-^—^1l I l l I I *^-i ll I I l e—1111111 i i i i—*-^—i] ii i! ii 1111 i i i 1111 ---^
I 1Q70 1080 i 1000 2nnn omn I

i Prairie Farm opens
to the public on

IJuly3,1966

U liCTUiDVn s 3 ii ^j T\ i

1980 1990

The farmhouse is
dedicated to previous

Farm Manager, Ms.,

Betty Lou Jenkins
Prairie Farm
CK*MPAIC»i PiRK CISTHICT

Prairie Farm
Master Plan



Horses

'^'?
3!j^|{,<@K»;:;i'

Peacock/

Turkey

'Chickens

Lla'ma

^ * tev Barn
little'»" ;""

Rabbits
Swine

Goats

Ducks Sheep

Far^usefThgA're^i^

EXISTING INVENTORY .—*^.'l-w



GOALS OF PLAN

Engage
• Captivate the community through fun, interactiveprograms and
events

• Provideinclusive recreational experiences for visitors ofall ages and
abilities

Educate

• Acquaintvisitors with lifeon a farm through farmthemed
programming a nd contact with domesticated animals

• Offer opportunities for visitorsto learn about Midwest agricultural
practices and history

Entertain

•Attract community members through unique and innovative
activities

•Sponsor memorable experiences that will long be associated with
PrairieFarmandthe Park District

Conserve

•Promote sustainable practices in agriculture through demonstration

of low inputfarming methods

•Employ envi ronmenta I ly-fri endly and financially-sound operational
techniques



Focus animal species

The District had previously leased animals
for the season from a local farmer; however,

this agreement has been terminated. Staff
are planning to purchase animals at the be-

ginning of the season and sell them at the
end of the season. This strategy gives the
staff more control over the quantity, type and
health of the animals. However, purchasing
the animals does limit the type of species
that will be able to be acquired. As a result
staff propose to focus on species that are
popular with patrons and are well suited to
interactive programming.

CHANGES IN ANIMAL SOURCES



Focus animal species
in

Staff are proposing to remove the equine
species, cattle, peacock, turkey, Hamas, and
ducks. Several of these animals will be hard
to source under the new acquisition model
and a few of these animals have been prob-
lematic in previous seasons. Staff also pro-

pose removing the hay barn which will not be
necessary with the reduction of animals. The
craft barn which is currently used for storage
is also proposed for removal. The storage will
be regained in a proposed structure and the
aging craft barn is due for a new roof.

'<'*;%A Remove
R^OVfe H@Tfi&,? ' ^

w' PeaEock/Turkeys,
cleave Fencing'^^'i.^'.^ _. ;J "T_ _, _ ^s^^'i,
,Sfe'"X..' l'"l'"'&'^'',^®move Enclosi^;."^

,•^•?t.::'1:^,-.1;^-
•Demo R€Hf)ve

Ill am a

'WSs^':f

?ReletE^1?e.

Xhf^ks

w. '"r

RerrLove

Remove'

Du'&ks-

Remove Craft Barn

Playground

^-

^^s^

PROPOSED CHANGES



PROPOSED OVERALL PLAN



Construct a barn to support
programming, improve rental
opportunities, and enhancing
patron experience

There are currently no indoor or covered

spaces for programming or restrooms at Prai-

rie Farm. This makes it difficult to prepare for
inclement weather for programs and rentals.

A covered space will also encourage patrons

to linger at the Farm.

PROPOSED PLAN



Designate larger areas for
food production to encourage
diverse agricultural experi-
ence.

There are existing, small raised beds used for
programming. However, expanding the size
and diversity of agricultural production in-
creases opportunities for programming and
patron experiences.

PROPOSED PLAN



Update Farmhouse to meet
ADA standards and fit staff
needs.

The existing farmhouse is currently used by
staff for a meeting and preparation space.
Staff evaluated options for potentially open-
ing the farmhouse to the public, but the size
and configuration of the farmhouse is suit-
able for programming.

^y^m

PROPOSED PLAN



Re-purpose animal enclo-
su res to promote engage-

ment and support program-
ming.

Currently enclosure houses miniature hors-

es and donkeys. Having an enclosed space
to temporarily bring in animals with patrons
opens opportunities for more interactive pro-

gramming.

PROPOSED DETAIL PLAN



T7?"i~:

Re-purpose animal enclo-
sures to promote engage-

ment and support program-
ming.

The highlighted enclosures currently house
the ducks and goats. It is being proposed
that both enclosures be used for goats.
Ducks are not currently a large draw for pa-
trons. Staff are proposing several different
types of goats. This offers educational oppor-

tunities. There are also some goats which are

more appropriate for interactive program-
mingthan others.

PROPOSED DETAIL PLAN



Re-purpose animal enclo-
sures to promote engage-
ment and support program-
mlng.

The existing adult chicken coop is still in good
condition and is appropriately sized. How-
ever, the chick coop, currently located west

of the koi pond, is undersized. It is proposed
that a new chick coop be constructed near
the existing chicken coop. Re-purposing the
llama enclosure as a chicken run will give the
chicks and chickens more enclosure space

and make it easier for patrons to engage with
the poultry.

PROPOSED DETAIL PLAN



Re-purpose animal enclo-
sures to create an interactive
farm play area

The existing horse enclosure is large com-

pared to the overall size of the farm. Due to
the animal sourcing changes, securing horses

will be difficult. The enclosure/ due to large
size and its fencing makes it a desirable loca-
tion for a children play area.

PROPOSED DETAIL PLAN



Re-purpose animal enclo-
sures to create an interactive
farm play area

The existing playground is proposed to be
removed. It is a small, aging structure that

is intended only for tots. It is proposed that
the new playground have elements appropri-
ate for tots and older children and also in-
elude a silo slide, a popular former feature of
the farm.

PROPOSED DETAIL PLAN



Re-purpose animal enclo-
sures to create an interactive
farm play area

The proposed tractor pull course offers an
interactive

PROPOSED DETAIL PLAN



Re-purpose animal enclo-

sures to create an interactive
farm play area

The proposed water runnel will provide inter-
active water play and opportunities to learn
about farm pumping systems.

PROPOSED DETAIL PLAN



Re-purpose animal enclo-

sures to create an interactive

farm play area

The proposed lean-to structures and log
climb offer recreational and loose parts op-

portunities for both older children and tots.

PROPOSED DETAIL PLAN



Re-purpose animal enclo-
su res to create an interactive
farm play area

The proposed tot hay bale maze and tire
crawl offer farm themed recreational activi-

ties for patrons.

PROPOSED DETAIL PLAN



Expand season

Staff propose expanding the open season to
maximize the impact of proposed improve-
ments and to expand program options.

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

PROPOSED OPEN SEASON

PROPOSED PROGRAM CHANGES



Expand special events

Investing in Prairie Farm improvements also

opens opportunities to host more special
events at Prairie Farm such as a fall festival or
winter market.

"~m

PROPOSED PROGRAM CHANGES



Expand programming

Having space to conduct programming while
the Farm is open to the general public creates
opportunities for new programming such as
goat yoga, interactive animal activities, and
rentals.

.^

PROPOSED PROGRAM CHANGES



NVId HV^BAO aaSOdO^d





CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 2019 PRAIRIE FARM MASTER PLAN

Prepared by the Park District Office of Planning:

Bridgette Moen

Andrew Weiss

Allison Williams

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Board of Commissioners:

Craig W. Hays, President

Kevin J. Miller, Vice President

Barbara J. Kuhl

Timothy P. McMahon

Jane L. Solon

Officers of the Board:

Cindy Harvey, Board Secretary

Joe DeLuce, Assistant Board Secretary

Donna Lawson, Treasurer

Guy Hall, Attorney

Master Plan Team:

Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

Jimmy Gleason, Director of Revenue Facilities

Jameel Jones, Director of Recreation

Dan Olson, Director of Operations

Andrew Weiss, Director of Planning

BretJohnson, Grounds & Maintenance Supervisor

Bridgette Moen, Park Planner

Remington Rock, Special Events & Volunteer

Coordinator

Zoe Southlynn-Savage, Special Events Manager

Allison Williams, Planning Coordinator



(XWSTNTS
Introduction ....................................................................................................................... 4

History ................................................................................................................................5

Inventory ............................................................................................................................6

Financial Analysis ............................................................................................................. 11

Community & Staff Engagement ......................................................................................13

Challenges ........................................................................................................................16

Precedent Studies ............................................................................................................ 18

Recommendations ......................................................................................................... 22

References....................................................................................................................... 30



\.1'

The 2019 Prairie Farm Master Plan was developed by the
Park District to guide planning, programming, and opera-
tions at Prairie Farm now and in years to come. There are
several benefits to developing master plans: they can be
tools to help communicate the vision of the Park District to
the public, provide direction for staff, and also help support
fundraising efforts.22 The 2019 Prairie Farm Master Plan
sets out to accomplish each of these tasks. It provides an
opportunity for the Park District to evaluate the strengths
and weaknesses of the Prairie Farm facilities and programs,
while exploring key areas for expansion and improvement.

"Master plans are tangible and often
visible statements of where the park
[or facility] is now, what it should be in
the future and what is required to get
there."13

The immediacy of plan implementation is dependent on
many factors and the existence of a plan does not neces-
sarily mean that the suggested improvements are immedi-
ate. However, having a reference plan does help prioritize
developments, organize space, and ensure that future park
or facility improvements support the goals and bench-
marks for that space as well as the Park District's Mission
and Values, The 2019 Prairie Farm Master Plan exists to
do just that. The challenges outlined in this plan and the
recommendations provided offer direction for future deci-
sion-making, and the prospect of another five decades of
success in providing farm-based programming to the com-
munity of Champaign.

Plan Framework

The 2019 Prairie Farm Master Plan is divided into the
following sections:

History: recounts the story of Prairie Farm's foun-
dation and key moments in its 53 years of opera-
tion.

Inventory: outlines the current state of the Prairie
Farm site/facilities, animals, programming, special
events, and marketing as well as any major re-
placement considerations.

Financial Summary: examines the farm's reve-
> nues and expenses, including financial trends since

2012.

Community & Staff Engagement: explores com-
/l munity and staff perceptions of the farm, its ame-

nities, and programming, as well as input on its
Mission, major concerns, and revenue support.

Challenges: summarizes major challenges relating
<".j to the site/facilities, animals, programming, special

events, and marketing at the farm.

Precedent Studies: describes facilities with similar
( j; programs and amenities that offer insight on possi-

bilities for Prairie Farm's future.

Recommendations: provides prospective solutions
/ and site design options to address challenges at

the farm.

John L. Franklin donates
$15,000 for a Children's
Farm in memory of his
late wife, Margaret 0.

Franklin

Construction
for Prairie
Farm begins

Farmhouse

construction is

corn Dieted

•^I I h

Betty Lou Jenkins

-1—I—h +
1970

Prairie Farm opens
to the public on
July 3,1966

1980 1990

The farmhouse is
dedicated to previous
Farm Manager, Ms.

Betty Lou Jenkins

Figure 19 - Prairie Farm timeline.

4 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211



On December 1, 1964,
Champaign resident John L.
Franklin donated $15,000
for the construction of a
Children's Farm, "the prin-
cipal purpose of which...
[would] be to house and
display domesticated ani-
mals indigenous to Illinois."
The donation was in the
memory of his late wife,
Margaret 0. Franklin, who
"felt that contact with an-
imals furnished a whole-
some vehicle for character
and personality develop-
ment."24

I -.park .Districl..suppe-' Figure 20 - Original Prairie Farm design by Don Molnar (1964).
merited Mr. Franklin's
contribution with $10,000
from its Bond Fund, and on May 13,1965, the Park District
authorized construction of the Children's Prairie Farm facil-
ities at Centennial Park.

farm life which they otherwise would miss" has been real-
ized throughout the farm's 53-year history of offering farm
and animal-based programming for children and families."

The design of these facilities, "prepared by Architect Don
Molnar based on the objective of reproducing a late 19th
century farmstead at a child's scale," was brought to life in
the spring of 1965 with the help of staff and community
members. Prairie Farm officially opened to the public on
July 3,1966.

Since its foundation. Prairie Farm has been free of charge
to visitors with select programs and events offered at a fee.
The initial vision that, "through various recreational pro-
grams, urban children are allowed the opportunity to han-
die and care for farm animals and to experience aspects of

General Information

Today, Prairie Farm remains a replica, late 19th century farm
with both traditional farm animals and a petting zoo. The
facility is open to the public from Memorial Day until early
August between 1-7PM, with programs and events offered
at select times throughout the eleven-week open season.
The petting area is open from 3-5PM and scheduled tours
typically run between 11:30AM-1PM. The farm hosts a
variety of animals and farm-themed amenities, making it
a popular destination for families, especially those with
young children.

Dedication of Betty
Lou Jenkins memorial
barn

-I—} — h
2000

^^

2010

Prairie Farm
CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

Prairie Farm Master
Plan is completed

DRAFT 191211:: Prairie Farm Master Plan 5



Site & Facilities

In the past 53 years of operation, Prairie Farm has main-
tained many of its original structures while also seeing a
number of significant additions. The site now occupies ap-
proximately 2.5 of Centennial Park's 69.6 acres and is sur-
rounded primarily by single family homes and other Cen-
tennial Park facilities. The site terrain is relatively flat, with
the exception of a detention basin in the northwest corner
of the site, and landscape features include 64 deciduous
trees as well as flower beds and planters.

Barn & Silo

The barn and silo border the fenced animal areas near the
public entrance to the farm. Goats are housed within the
barn and mark the entrance to the petting zoo. The silo
was once utilized as a children's slide, but it has since been
closed due to accessibility and maintenance issues. The
barn roof was replaced in 1990.

Farmhouse

The farmhouse was constructed in 1975 and dedicated on
May 29, 1976. It was dedicated again in 1984 to Ms. Betty
Lou Jenkins, former CPD employee and Director of Prairie
Farm. The farmhouse was once open to the public but now
serves as the staff office and restroom, as well as a space
in which crafts and program materials are assembled. It
contains a single toilet and sink as well as a refrigerator
for staff use. The display cases within the house were pur-
chased with donations from a local McDonald's restaurant
and many of the books, which make up the Bobby Knight
Memorial Library, were acquired from funds donated in
memory of Bobby Knight in 1974. The farmhouse roof was
replaced in 1992.

Craft Barn

The craft barn is adjacent to the farmhouse and backs up to
the small raised garden beds. In size, the structure is more
of a shed than an actual barn. It is used mainly for storing
materials for Prairie Farm programs.

Trolley Barn

The trolley barn was built in 1997 and, like the farmhouse,
was dedicated in honor of former Farm Manager Betty Lou
Jenkins. The area surrounding the barn has been used as a
pen for llamas in recent years, while the barn itself is used
as a quarantine space when needed. The barn's roof re-
placement is scheduled for 2020/2021.

Hay Barn

The hay barn is situated near the cow enclosure—in the
northwest portion of the site. It houses a variety of animal
feeds and supplies in the open season and serves as an ad-
ditional storage space when the facility is closed.

Playground

The current playground is a replica tractor with two small
slides. The playground is best suited to children between
the ages of 2-5 and is due for replacement by 2027. One
objective of the FY 2012/2014 Strategic Plan was to identi-
fy, bid, and install Prairie Farm playground equipment. The
funding was diverted to Centennial Park to move the exist-
ing playground, thus postponing any playground replace-
ment at the farm.

Fenced Animal Areas

The fenced animal areas consist of enclosures for a variety
of species. Most enclosures are comprised of wood posts
and welded wire fencing or chain link, while some are a
combination of welded wire and chicken wire with wood
posts. Many of the fenced animal areas have a concrete or
fibar base and most have some shelter component like the
chicken coop.

Koi Pond & Pump House

The Prairie Farm pond, which once provided a seasonal
habitat for ducks, is now used to house koi fish year-round.
The pond has a small pedestrian bridge and is surrounded
by a 4 ft. wire fence. The original shed housing the filtering
pumps for the pond was replaced in 2016.

Parking

Public parking is available southwest of the Prairie Farm
entrance. There are 19 striped parking spots, 2 of which
are handicap spots, and 11 spots that are not striped but
have cement parking blocks. 34 additional parking spots
are available at the lot southeast of the Prairie Farm en-
trance (2 handicap); though, this parking lot is primarily for
patrons of the nearby baseball fields. Staff parking is locat-
ed north of the farm off a private drive serving both Prairie
Farm and Sholem Aquatic Center.

Fencing

Approximately 1600 ft. of fencing lines the perimeter of
the facility and serves to deter members of the public from
entering the farm when it's closed. The perimeter fence is
comprised of 9ft. chain link with wood posts. Interior fenc-
ing is primarily utilized for animal enclosures and is variable
in both material and height to cater to the wide variety of
animals on-site.

Windmill

The windmill is located near the petting zoo entrance and
goat enclosures. It was donated by Ethel Bolasig and is sur-
rounded by a 4 ft. wood fence.

6 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211



H'Brses

«
w

Peacock/

Turkey \^

Chickensl
^^.

Uarna

^Y Bat'n
r

,/

( Koi' Rabbi;t:s
Swine

Goats

Ducks sshW

Far^sep^AWN|

^A-».. < . .. . _»t.,...J'<dA.....

Figure 21 - Map of 2019 Prairie Farm site amenities.

A*- ! .. ^ •,».il^'aAa«f

Kirby Avenue .I*"'

"sff^&iK ^tt

DRAFT 191211:: Prairie Farm Master Plan 7



Animals

Sourcing

For a number of years, the petting zoo animals have been
leased from the same farmer each season, while the koi
fish remain in their pond year-round. The animals typical-
ly arrive before the facility opens and are returned to the
farmer after the facility has closed. However, staff have
been researching alternative animal sources for upcoming
seasons.

Variety

The farm has hosted a variety of animals throughout the
years, including cows, horses, sheep, pigs, goats, chickens,
Hamas, donkeys, deer, miniature horses, peacocks, prairie
dogs, rabbits, turtles, turkeys, and koi fish. Not all of the an-
imals are representative of a traditional farm, nor are they
all available for petting. Often, the variety of animals has
depended on what was available from the contracted farm-
er in a given year, which provided staff little control over
the species, breed, color, sex, or number of the animals.

Care Requirements

The variety of animals at the farm necessitates an assort-
ment of animal feeds, including horse, goat, and cow com-
bination feed, chicken feed, sheep feed, duck feed, pig
feed, chick feed, oats, mineral blocks, and grass hay. Pine
shavings are also purchased for animal bedding. In addition
to exploring new animal sourcing opportunities, staff are in
the process of seeking out alternative retailers to fulfill the
feed and bedding needs of the farm. Some feeds may no
longer be needed depending on what animals are housed
at the farm in future.

The animals are cared for by dedicated staff as well as a
local veterinarian. Some staff possess experience caring for
animals and the farm often attracts students from the Uni-
versity of Illinois' Animal Science programs.

!%{o®:

PeeWee Farmers

All About Animals

Farmhands

Barnyard Fun Camp

;^ME?<c»@j?t^
2016

91
24
55
26

2017
79
26
62
33

2018
86
28
70
34

SPECIAL EVENT RESERVATIONS

Birthday Parties

Group Tours

2016
9

12

2017
5
7

2018
8

14

2019
42
23
57
20

2019
9
6

Figure 22 - Program and Special Event enrollment num-
bers from 2016-2019.

Programming & Special Events

Offerings

The 2019 summer program offerings for Prairie Farm in-
eluded farm tours, the petting area, Story Time at the Farm,
Pee Wee Farmers, All About Animals, Farmhands drop off
camp, Barnyard Fun Camp, and the Friends of the Farm
adoption program. Some programs are open to all ages,
though, most programming is suited to children 11 and un-
der. Prairie Farm also hosts special events like birthday par-
ties, where guests are permitted private use of the farm, in-
eluding special tours, personal contact with the animals, a
pinata, games, and party favors. The parties accommodate
up to 20 kids. Group tours can also be scheduled for up
to 30 participants and typically draw preschool and camp
groups.

Past program and event offerings have included Movie
Nights at the Farm, Getting Crafty, Touch-a-Tractor, Helping
Hands, and Harvest Fest.

[ ^'SS^ii^S^
Barnyard Fun Camp participants.

8 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211



VISITORS BY YEAR

25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

AVERAGE=14,259

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

•NUMBER OF VISITORS "---"AVERAGE

Figure 23 - Num-

ber of Prairie
Farm visitors from
2005-2018.

Costs

Registration fees for Prairie Farm programs range from
$17-$54 per resident or $25.50-$81 for non-residents.
This range in costs reflects the variety of programs offered,
which includes everything from one-time events to day

camps.

Scheduled tours for groups of 16 or fewer cost $40 for resi-
dents or $60 for nonresidents while the cost of groups with
17-30 people cost $50 or $75. Children's birthday party
packages cost $175.

Fees for programs and birthday parties were increased for
the 2019 season, which could have affected program en-
rollment numbers; however, this increase does not appear
to have influenced the number of birthday party reserva-
tions for the year (see Figure 4).

Participation

Enrollment for select programs has remained relatively con-
sistent since 2016, while others have seen drastic changes
(see Figure 4). For instance, Alt About Animalshas had be-
tween 23-28 participants in the past 4 years, while the Pee
Wee Farmers program had 91 participants in 2016 but only 4
42 in 2019. 2018 saw the greatest number of participants,
for three of the four programs—All About Animals, Farm-
hands, and Barnyard Fun Camp—and 2019 saw the lowest
enrollment for Pee Wee Farmers, All About Animals, and
Barnyard Fun Camp.

Reservations for birthday parties and group tours have fol-
lowed less of a trend in the past four years. The birthday
parties ranged from 5-9 reservations per season and group
tours ranged from 6-14.

Visitors

The number of visitors at the farm has fluctuated signifi-
cantly in the past 14 years (see Figure 5). From 2005-2018,
the farm averaged 14,259 visitors per season. In 2013,the
number of visitors was at its lowest of this fourteen-year
period, with a total of 2,835 visitors to the farm. The great-
est number of visitors came to Prairie Farm in 2005, when
there were 21,316. While there are a variety of factors that
influence the number of visitors in a given year (e.g. an un-
usually warm or stormy summer) the 18,481 person range
of these visits is a considerable gap.

Marketing

Marketing for the farm is carried out in a number of ways.
The spring program guides advertise the farm's offerings
and the costs of any programming or events in print for all
Champaign residents. The Park District website offers simi-
lar information on the farm and links with a digital copy of
the program guide. A sign advertising the farm is exhibited
a few blocks from the facility throughout the summer.

The Pack District's Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram ac-
counts also feature posts reminding followers of the farm's
offerings on a periodic basis; however, there are no social
media pages specific to the farm that are operated by the
Park District. The one social media page that does exist-
the unofficial Facebook page—refers to the facility inaccu-
ratelyas "Prairie Farms Petting Zoo" and does not advertise
that the facility is only open to the public on a seasonal
basis.

DRAFT 191211:: Prairie Farm Master Plan



JAN

FEB

MAR'

APR

MAY

JUN

JUL

AUG

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

^
9:00:
9:15 i
9:30?
9:45

10:00
10:15;
10:30;

i 10:45;
11:00:
11:15
11:30
11:45;
12:00

'12:15:
12:30.

: 12:45

1:00
1:15
1:30
1:45
2:00
2:15
2:30
2:45
3:00
3:15
3:30
3:45
4:00
4:15
4:30
4:45
5:00
5:15
5:30
5:45
6:00
6:15
6:30

6:45
7:00

^>^<^,^:^|c,^:<^:^:^:^':<^'^.^> ^ ^ ^ ^,.^. ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^\ ^'\ <^ ^\ ^\ ^'[^' ^\ ^\^°[ ^\^

milmill mil
•\\?>

JULY AUGUST

^ ^ ^ ^ ; ^ ; -^ , ^ i -^ ^ : ^ ^-^ ^^;^^^.^ -^'^'^ ^ ^:^^ ^^:^^:^--<^.^^.^
9:00
9:15
9:30
9:45

10:CU
10:15
10:30
10:45
11:00
11:15
11:30
11:45
12:00
12:15
12:30 •

12:45
1:00
1:15
1:30
1:45
2:00
2:15
2:30
2:45

3:00
3:15
3:30
3:45
4:00
4:15
4:30
4:45
5:00
5:15
5:30
5:45

6:00
6:15

6:30
6:45
7:00 .

^ ! ^ ^

111111 mill mill 11111111
"^.•^

iOPENTOPUBLIC IPETTINGAREA QFARMTOURS ^STORYTIMEATTHEFARM r-]PEE WEE FARMERS

Figure 24 - Schedule of Prairie Farm events and programs for the 2019 season.

IFARMHANDS ALLABOUTANIMALS IBARNYARD FUN CAMP



Funding for Prairie Farm is allo-
cated through the Park District's
Museum Fund. The Museum
Fund accounts for the cultural
arts programs and services the
Park District provides for the
community. Real estate taxes are
levied to pay the administrative
costs and to help offset the oper-
ating costs for the Museum Fund
facilities. Though these facili-
ties do take in revenue through
events and programs, they are
primarily subsidized through tax
support.

ANNUAL TAX SUPPORT (IN 2019 DOLLARS)

$95,000

$90,000

$85,000

$80,000

$75,000

$70,000

AVERAGE=$82,748.32

$65,000
2012

In 2019, $86,166 was budgeted
for Prairie Farm. This is slightly
higher than the average annual
tax support from 2012 to 2017,
which was $82,748.32 in 2019
dollars (see Figure 7). However,
annual tax support for the farm
was greatest in 2013, when the
farm's operating budget was
equal to $91,866.05 in 2019 dol-
lars, or $83,567 at the time. Since that year, the adjusted
annual tax support has mostly declined and remained be-
low the average for this six-year period.

The amount of tax support needed to sustain the farm
will likely fluctuate in upcoming years as staff explore new
possibilities for animal sourcing and feeding while keeping
up-to-date on routine maintenance requirements. Staffing
changes and high priority site improvements will also affect
the budget as planned Capital Improvements and Master
Plan recommendations become implemented.

BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS BY CATEGORY - 2017

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

•ANNUAL TAX SUPPORT -AVERAGE

lr3)'}'T}M.,/ ^(uJXo)

\-!

^rt^W:S-S?
^ll^

\v

^M
Xo>

Figure 26 - Tax support allocated to Prairie Farm from 2012-2017, adjusted to
2019 dollars.

Many significant Capital Improvements have been post-
poned at the farm. Planned expenditures such as drainage
improvements, the addition of a pavilion, and restrooms
have repeatedly been placed on hold. For instance,
$100,000 was originally budgeted for the construction of
a pavilion with restrooms to be completed in 2016. That
money was rolled over to 2017, when $130,000 was bud-
geted for the same project but still to be completed at a lat-
er date, i.e., "delayed to future years." In the 2019 budget,
$73,000 was anticipated for the pavilion with restrooms
to be completed in 2020, again deferring this major site

improvement but also reducing its budget by almost
44% since 2017. The last major Capital Improvement
(figuring in at over $5,000) to be carried out was the
koi pond pump house replacement in 2016 in the
a mount of $10,000.

The distribution of tax support also fluctuates each
year and depends on whether substantial replace-
ments or upgrades are accounted for. As of 2017,52%
of the budget was allocated to wages and salaries for
seasonal staff, 20% to commodities and supplies, 17%
to utility payments, and 11% was dedicated to con-
tractual services (see Figure 8). Included in the con-
tractual services was the agreement for the seasonal
supply of animals. However, no tax support was ap-
propriated for routine/periodic maintenance in 2017.

ISALARIES&
WAGES

UCONTRACTUAL

D COMMODITIES
/SUPPLIES

n UTILITIES

Figure 25 - Distribution of budget appropriations by category
(2017).

Revenues at the farm are generated through charges
for services—namely programs, special events, and
rentals—since admission to Prairie Farm is free of
charge. The 2012-2017 average of these service

DRAFT 191211:: Prairie Farm Master Plan 11



charges was $8,016. The most rev-
enue generated from charges for
services was $9,371 in 2016 (see $10,000
Figure 9), which is likely the re-
suit of high enrollment in the Pee
Wee Farmers program and the 21
special events hosted at the farm
in that year. Merchandise and
concessions also provide marginal
support—$263 on average over
the same period.

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

$9,500

$9,000

$8,500

$8,000

The percent of annual revenue
generated by the farm from 2012-
2017 averaged 11% (see Figure 10).
The year with the lowest percent
of revenue was 2015, at 8%, which
corresponded to $7,274. The year
with the highest percent of reve-
nue was 2017, at 18%, which cor-
responded to $15,253. However,
the farm also had the least amount
of tax support for this six-year pe-
riod in 2017 due to the absence of
routine/periodic maintenance.

$7,500

$7,000

$6,500

$6,000
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

CHARGES FOR SERVICES : . -AVERAGE

Figure 27 - Annual charges for services at Prairie Farm.

In addition to charges for services, merchandise, and con-
cessions, the farm receives some support through dona-
tions each year. A donation box is located near the en-
trance/exit of the facility for visitor contributions and the
Champaign Parks Foundation accepts donations on behalf
of the farm via mail, phone, or online. In the past, commu-
nity members have made nonmonetary contributions as
well such as the flagpole, farmhouse display cases, agricul-
tural textbooks, windmill, other farm related equipment,
and animals.

The Prairie Farm Memorial Fund also provides some sup-
port for the facility. The fund was created to help finance
specific projects that otherwise would not be provided for
by public revenues available to the Park District, such as
the 2016 pump house replacement. The Prairie Farm Me-
morial Fund monies are administered by the Champaign
Parks Foundation. Through these funding sources and con-
tinued support from the community, Prairie Farm has been
able to provide farm-themed education and recreational
opportunities for the past 53 years.

TAX SUPPORT VS REVENUES

$100,000

$90,000

$80,000

$70,000

$60,000

$50,000

$40,000

$30,000

$20,000

$10,000

$-

AVE;RAGE=

"[_

:'l

I • Hi n RI
II* [I

i_'rj ^^^1^3 c--- y:-;

i

i^n^"

i •

20%

18%

16%

14%

12%

10%

8%

6%

4%

2%

0%

REVENUES

•:-! TAX SUPPORT

•PERCENT
REVENUE
SUPPORT

•AVERAGE

REVENUE
SUPPORT

2012 2013 2014

12 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211

2015 2016 2017

Figure 28-Annual tax
support and revenues
at Prairie Farm,
including revenues
as a percent of tax
support.



Community input is important at many stages of the mas-
ter planning process. The Park District uses public surveys
as a way of soliciting feedback from the community which,
in combination with input acquired through staff engage-
ment sessions, informs plan recommendations.

Community Needs & Perceptions

The 2017 Champaign Park District Community Survey, pro-
duced through a partnership with the Office of Recreation
and Park Services at the University of Illinois Urbana-Cham-
paign, solicited feedback from community members re-
garding their needs and interests. Survey questions specific
to Prairie Farm were included in the survey to gauge com-
munity perceptions of its programs, events, staff, facilities,
and amenities. The survey had a confidence level sufficient
to generalize responses to the wider community; though,
it's important to note that respondents were collectively
less diverse and older compared to the wider population
of Champaign. There was a far greater percentage of re-
spondents over the age of 60 as well as respondents with
no children (or children in home), which poses some lim-
itations for questions about a children's facility like Prairie
Farm.

Survey Trends

of active users were satisfied or very

nt7^'i%:i! s.:'mfied with Prairie Farm i->ro|:(i-uiY!r;
/?_'! /vl,f

.// -,nd events

Of the 19 programs to develop or expand that were pro-
vided in the 20.27 Community Survey, Prairie Farm Youth
Programs ranked lowest, with fewer than 5% of survey
respondents choosing the programs as their first, second,
third, or fourth choice.26 In part, this ranking could be at-
tributed to the appeal of the other programs included in
the survey question, as well as their generality. Less spe-
cific options like nature/environmental, health & wellness,

Q: SHOULD A FEE BE CHARGED AT PRAIRIE
FARM?

/\^'f8^^4^1tJ|y(K^wy
/ /,\ ?xJX I^ !,Co)'XO;

;:; OPPOSED

• IN FAVOR

NEUTRAL

and adult fitness/wellness programs ranked highest for re-
spondents. It's also probable that the breadth of youth pro-
gramming currently offered at Prairie Farm is sufficient for
the community's needs given that 78% of those surveyed
were satisfied or very satisfied with the facility's programs
and events.

Of the top facilities to develop or expand, the possibility
of a new silo slide at Prairie Farm ranked 13th out of the 19
facility options provided. Again, this ranking could be more
representative of the scale and generality of other options
included in the survey question such as the "Preservation
of Open Space," which ranked highest. It's also likely that
respondents chose facilities more suited to their age group
given the average age of survey respondents and rankings
of facilities like the warm water therapy pool, indoor lei-
sure pool, and indoor warm tap pool that are generally
more appealing to older residents.

?£%)) of active users were satisfl&d or veiv

padsfied with Prairie Farm staff

Of the comments included in the survey, only one was in
reference to Prairie Farm. A respondent wrote, "...I also

have young grandchildren. I would like to see the prairie
farm open in the a.m. because kids nap in the afternoon.
Hours seem too limited and season is waaay too short."27
Of course, the farm is open for programs, tours, and birth-
day parties starting at SAM, but only open to the general
public from 1-7PM.

A Community Needs Assessment Survey was also conduct-
ed between 2011 and 2012. At that time, 28.6% of house-
holds surveyed had visited Prairie Farm in the preceding
year. In comparison, only 21% of households surveyed at
that time had children under the age of 14, suggesting that
a small percentage of residents do visit the farm that might
not have young children of their own.28 When asked to rank
how greatly Prairie Farm meets the needs of the commu-
nity, 61% of respondents believed the facility fully meets
its needs. 23.8% believed it meets 75% of the community's
needs.29 These rankings suggest high satisfaction with the
facility and its operation, but do show that there's some
room for improvement in meeting the needs of the com-
m unity.

Iw
of active users were sylsfie^ or vo,y

R'%!' eriu-;fic;?; with Prairie Farm frit;iii';sG;.
's-'1' ' " / ,'

Hfi^ ?!iiieii?i,ie5

Figure 29 - Responses from 2017 Community Survey.

In addition to the two community surveys, the Park Dis-
trict conducted a Public Perception Survey in 2014 which
focused in part on public perceptions of Prairie Farm. The
survey respondents were disproportionately female and

DRAFT 191211:: Prairie Farm Master Plan 13



considerably less diverse than the wider community of
Champaign; though, their responses provide some insight
into the popularity of Prairie Farm for a segment of the
population.

One question from the Public Perception Survey asked
community members to rank the facilities that they be-
lieve are most associated with the Park District as a whole.
Prairie Farm tied with the Virginia Theatre for 4th out of
the fourteen facilities, with major recreational facilities
like Sholem Aquatic Center, the Old Leonhard Recreation
Center, and Springer Cultural Center taking 1st, 2nd, and 3rd
place, respectively.30

When asked how they would describe the Park District to
others, one respondent mentioned Prairie Farm, writing
"I feel like I live in an episode of Parks and Rec, especially
because you all have mini horses at Prairie Farm and mini
parks/flower islands (which Leslie Knope would totally
love) everywhere."31 The favorability of these rankings and
feedback show the farm to be in some ways emblematic of
the Park District and Champaign as a whole.

Staff Engagement

As a part of the master planning process, key staff partic-
ipated in engagement sessions to help identify challenges
at Prairie Farm as well as prospective solutions. Staff also
explored visions for the future of the farm and what, in its
next half-century of operation, Prairie Farm might offer the
community.

Existing Concerns

The first staff engagement session solicited feedback on ex-
isting concerns at Prairie Farm. Ten staff were asked to rank
their concerns on a scale of 1-9, with 1 being the greatest
concern. Options included animal safety, adequate staffing,

the availability of parking, lack of restroom facilities, insuf-
ficient event (or rental) space, the reliable supply of ani-
mals, drainage issues, the state of the existing farmhouse,
and the length of the open season. The top three staff
concerns were a reliable supply of animals, animal safety,
and the lack of restroom facilities (see Figure 12). Some of
these concerns, such as the reliable supply of animals, are
already in the process of being addressed but remain im-
portant components of the Prairie Farm Master Plan.

Other concerns not included in the survey but which staff
indicated as high priorities were ADA compliance, compe-
tition with similar and dissimilar programs throughout the
community, year-round operation, owning the animals,
and no longer having large animals with extensive care re-
quirements. Concerns over the state of the cow shed, the
name of the facility (i.e. "Children's Prairie Farm"), and op-
portunities for revenue were also discussed in the second
engagement session. This plan provides a more in-depth
examination of these concerns as well as recommenda-
tions for addressing them.

families
petting zoo

lea m

animals
education

community

fun

ildren

RELIABLE SUPPLY OF ANIMALS

ANIMAL SAFETYLO
z
Q:a WSSK (oj? @SEg)flMoioMi iiS^iyjuif
uz
Q0
0

in
x

Figure 30 - Staff
rankings of major
concerns at the farm.

14 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211



Mission Vision

Although there is no formal Prairie Farm Mission, staff
were asked in the first engagement session to summarize
what they believe the Prairie Farm Mission would be giv-
en its present circumstances. Key terms from the mission
statements included education and learning, children and
families, community, experience with farming/farm an-
imals, and fun. When asked to envision a future Mission
for Prairie Farm that encapsulates what the facility could
be, key terms and concepts for the proposed missions in-
eluded education, farming and farm animals, fun and en-
tertaining, as well as serving community members and the
public. Notable differences between the current and pro-
posed missions include an emphasis on servingthe broader
community rather than just children and families, providing
opportunities for entertainment, and focusing on more lo-
cal farming practices (Illinois or Midwestern agriculture, in
particular).

COT'iTriilSiJIJlI'iCV

animals

education
^

entertaining .^,,, J^ li^Tfp 11 T li l:y
1U.A1 •"--.•-^— -.~..-i.-^--»^^.^

In the second engagement session, staff were provided
with three statements containing a combination of these
potential Mission keywords. Using the three statements as
a starting point, staff were tasked with developing an offi-
cial Mission for the farm. The agreed upon and formalized
Mission of Prairie Farm is:

To provide fun and educational

experiences, programs, and

events that acquaint community
members with traditional farm

animals and Midwest agricultural

practices.

Through this Mission, Prairie Farm can continue to provide
opportunities for urban children to become acquainted
with animals, as intended in its conception, but the farm
can also serve visitors of all ages and acquaint them with
other facets of life on a farm. In this way, Prairie Farm can
remain a unique but relevant asset to the Park District and
the community.

A visioning exercise was also conducted in the second staff
engagement session, where participants ranked vision
keywords that could help guide proposed master plan im-
provements and support the new Mission. The vision key-
words originated from earlier discussions about the farm's
potential as a site for learning about domesticated animals
and agriculture while offering more fun and memorable
experiences. The chosen keywords ranked in the following
order:

'/., l:€iUW^

'?. Enterr/'iiti

/i, Conssi'vc

These rankings informed the vision statements and rec-
ommendations detailed later in this plan. Each of the pro-
posed site, program, and marketing modifications seek to
prioritize engagement, education, entertainment, and con-
servation while holding true to the farm's original vision of
acquainting urban children with domesticated animals and
farm life.

Revenue Support

In addition to Prairie Farm's major concerns, Mission, and
Vision, staff were asked to determine what percent of rev-
enue the farm should generate each year in order to offset
its operation budget. Staff responses ranged from 10-50%,
with no clear consensus other than revenue being 50% or
less. Currently, the farm generates about 7-8% revenue;
though, it averaged 11% from 2012 to 2017 (see Figure 10).
At most, the farm generated 18% revenue in 2017, when
the tax support allocated to the farm was at its lowest for
this six-year period ($70,628). However, it's important to
note again that in 2017 there was no funding utilized for
routine/periodic maintenance at the farm, which is uncom-
mon.

There are opportunities to expand revenue sources in up-
coming years but it's important to remember that because
it's a facility free to the public, the farm has always been
funded primarily through tax support and donations. The
prospect of generating revenue by charging an entrance
fee is likely to be met with opposition since the farm has
been free of charge for the past 53 years and only 22% of
respondents to the 2017 Community Survey were in favor
of a fee. However, other efforts such as concessions, a gift
shop, or fee-based amenities were considered by staff as
viable revenue generating opportunities.

Revenues might also be supplemented through site im-
provements and program variations that would encourage
more program participation and special events at the farm.
These site improvements and program ideas are detailed
later in this plan.

DRAFT 191211:: Prairie Farm Master Plan 15



s< lAiULU^ui-,:':

With the help of community and staff feedback, the following challenges have
been identified at the farm. Each challenge was given a priority ranking based
on the degree of urgency with which it should be addressed. Some high priority
challenges are already in the process of being managed.

ISITE & FACILITIES
Challenge

ADACompliance&

Accessibility

Chick Coop

Cow Shelter

Priority Level

I Moderate

Low

High

Drainage

Electrical & Plumbing

Farmhouse

Parking

Pavilion

Moderate

Moderate

Playground

Proximity of Neighboring

Facilities & Amenities

Restrooms

Silo

Moderate

Low

Moderate

High

Low

[Description

The farm is in compliance with ADA requirements, with the exception of the farmhouse restroom. If

the farmhouse remains a space for staff, the restroom will require updates to meet ADA

requirements.

The chick coop is too small to accommodate full grown chickens, which is acceptable for the

current length of the open season; however, If chicks are to be housed for longer they will require a

larger coop.

The cow shelter is in poor condition and has been identified as an issue for USDA inspections.

Since it is inadequate for the purpose of sheltering cows or any other animals, it should most

likely be demolished.

Drainage has long been a challenge at the farm. The horse pasture in the northwest corner of the

site was once utilized as a lake for wild ducks and geese. The area is now prone to flooding and

efforts have been made to reduce the flooding after heavy rain events. Any site improvements

should take into consideration these drainage issues.

The existing capacity of the electrical and plumbing is inadequate for some intended site

developments. The addition of restrooms, for instance, would require upgrades in both the

[electrical and plumbing infrastructure.

The 43-year-old farmhouse is primarily used by staff as an office but would be better utilized if it

was accessible to the public. It's location makes it ideal for interpretive exhibits or concessions;

however, it's small footprint poses a challenge for interior developments.

jThe public parking lot is scheduled to be repaired. The lot size is sufficient for the farm's current

[needs but could warrant expansion if larger groups and more visitors areanticipated in upcoming

I years (particularly if the facility open season is extended). In turn, expanding the parking lot could

I necessitate the addition of a detention basin for stormwater management.

iThereis currently no shade structure large enough to accommodate visitor groups or rentals at the

I farm. This is of particular concern for birthday parties, where many potential renters choose not to

|book with Prairie Farm upon learning that there's no contingency space for poor weather

lconditions. $73,000 has been earmarked for the construction of a pavilion in 2020 that will allow

exterior accessibility to restrooms as well as providinga covered program/rental space. However,

a more enclosed structure might be needed to better protect participants in all weather conditions

and better meet the programming, storage, and concessions needs ofthefarm.

The existing playground is small and caters mostly to children between the ages of 2-5, but it

remains functional. There has been interest in adding additional amenities like a silo slide to

supplement opportunities for children's play at the farm.

The proximity of other Centennial Park facilities such as Sholem Aquatic Center and Leonhard

Recreation Center as well as major park amenities like the little league baseball diamonds and

youth soccer fields make any expansion at Prairie Farm a significant challenge. Only minor

expansion is possible a nd thus, changes at the site will primarily occur within its existing 2.5 acre

boundary.

Plans dating as far back as 1973 indicate the need to make restrooms available to the public. The

onlyrestroomatthefarmis a single stall in the farmhouse that's utilized by staff. A portable toilet

is available on site, but there are no permanent public restroom facilities and the existing

farmhouserestroomis not ADA accessible.

The silo that was once utilized as a slide is no longer functional for recreational purposes. Any

effort to bring back the silo slide will require the addition of a structure separate from the old silo.

16 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211



ANIMALS
Challenge

Animal Sourcing

Priority Level

High

Description
The animals have been leased from the same farmer for decades. While this partnership has

served the Park District well in the past, a contingency plan is in the process of being developed.

The Park District has the opportunity to seek out a similar partnership by leasing the animals or

ca n expl ore the possibi I ity of fostering animals, owning them, or a combination of the three.

The Park District follows USDA regulations and participates in both scheduled and impromptu

inspections. Despite compliance with regulatory standards and routine measures to keepvandals

from breaking into the facility, there are recurrent concerns for animal safety. The farm s current

security—9 ft. of exterior fencing—has not been adequate to address the animals' susceptibility to

harm or theft when the facility is closed.

Animal Welfares Safety

Public Welfares Safety Fencing, staff, and warning signs are used to deter visitors from interacting with the animals in an

unsafe manner; yet, there will always be some risk associated with public-animal interactions.

Staff are tasked with the challenge of ensuring that visitors maintain a safe distance from the

animals and engage with them in a nonthreatening manner. Proper hygiene practices are also a

concern for the public. Serious infections like f. co/;. Salmonella, and Cryptosporidium can spread

between animals and humans. There are mobile hand wash stations for staff and visitors, but

these are new additions to the farm and their effectiveness will need to be evaluated.

Staffing Moderate Attracting and retaining part-time staff who have experience working with animals is a recurring

challenge. Many qualified seasonal employees are students enrolled in animal science programs

who gain valuable experience atthe farm, but move on to more permanent positions upon earning

their degrees. Some staff return for multiple seasons, but rarely beyond a few years. Theabsence

of a full-time Farm Manager means that institutional knowledge is not retained.

Challenge
Covered Event Space

Operating Season

Program Diversity

Priority Level

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Description
The farm lacks indoor or covered event space that can be utilized in the event of rain or inclement

weather. Having a space for birthday parties is of particular concern since they often involve

med^ym-sized_gro^

The farm operating season extends from Memorial Day through early August, coinciding with

summer break for most schools. This window limits opportunities for expanding the farm

PF9gLa..ni[Ql3^JI?^.b.9.?.ti.n?.^as^naJ.?Yent^
Prairie Farm programs cater to young children, mostly those under the age of 11. While farm-

themed programs are popular with this demographic, there are opportunities to attract more

visitors through diversified programming.

MARKETING
Challenge
Branding

PnorityLevel^Descript^
Low The name "Children's Prairie Farm," though rarely used in Park District advertising and materials,

can deter teenagers and adults from visiting the facility if they aren't accompanied by young

children. The public entrance to the farm still advertises the facility using this title, and although

the original objective of the farm was to acquaint children with animals and life on a farm,

broadening the facility's scope might expand its appeal to more community members.

^

Figure 31 - Entrance from outside (left) & inside (right).

DRAFT 191211:: Prairie Farm Master Plan 17



Pl? !:;n;-.'iru!- IM 'r' c'fi'i
^ LA.. L. B_ H . li'M ii t:?

The following facilities provide comparable services to their Fon Du Lac Farm Park- East Peoria, IL
communities and offer ideas for what Prairie Farm's future ' , -
could hold. Together, they demonstrate the importance of
diverse programming and special events guided by a clear
Mission and Vision.

Bobby Lanier Farm Park - Germantown, TN

Size: 10 acres

Operated by: City of Germantown

Hours: 6AM-9PM daily

The City of "Germantown's Bobby Lanier Farm Park is a
10-acre education and demonstration center for sustain-
able living through agriculture and stewardship. Programs
and events are free and take place at the Farm Park unless
otherwise noted."32 The farm includes the Harvest Moon
Pavilion, which is available for rentals, as well as commu-
nity gardens, a chicken coop, and barn. It has been the site
of the local farmer's market and flea market in addition to
hosting field trips and group programs.

What differentiates the Bobby Lanier Farm Park from simi-
lar facilities is its emphasis on the connection between sus-
tainability, stewardship, and agriculture. The farm teaches
visitors how to produce and consume food with fewer in-
puts and less waste. It also offers community members a
chance to invest their time and energy in the farm by con-
tributing to the gardens and features more hobby related
programs like floral arrangement.

A Master Plan for the Bobby Lanier Farm Park was creat-
ed by Dalhoff Thomas Design Studio that proposed the
addition of more agricultural amenities. The plan includes
a kitchen garden, restored orchard, restored barns, event
lawn, crop production area, and compost facility.33

Though Prairie Farm has little room for expansion, incorpo-
rating elements of sustainable agriculture and stewardship
into the site and programming is a possibility.

Park Ertlrancs - Countfy Store • Country Kilchen

Size: 6 acres
Operated by: Fondulac Park District
Hours: 9AM-3PM Monday-Friday (from April 15th-May
24th) & Tuesday-Sunday (from May 24th-September 2nd)

The Fan du Lac Farm Park shares many of Prairie Farm's
amenities and attractions. The park "offers children a
unique glimpse of what 1920's farm life was like on a Cen-
tral Illinois farm. Opened in 1981 the Farm Park has become
a treasured destination for families with young children.
Enclosed within six acres of Neumann Park, this facility of-
fers a variety of activities that let visitors experience a day
on the farm. There are live farm animals to feed, a red barn
to play in, and three ponds to enjoy. Farm Park includes a
country kitchen museum, playgrounds and silo slide."34

The Farm Park's petting zoo, playgrounds, silo slide, and
ponds are reminiscent of amenities offered at Prairie Farm
(past and present), and are similarly suited to young chil-
dren. The park also offers birthday parties and special
events, and is situated within a larger park system near
other recreational amenities.

The Fan du Lac Farm Park surpasses Prairie Farm in its size
(6 acres to Prairie Farm's 2.5), the quantity and size of its
playgrounds, and the inclusion of concessions, a gift shop,
and the country kitchen museum. The petting zoo also al-
lows visitors to feed the animals for a fee and features an
antique tractor, wishing well, and shelter with picnic tables.
Both facilities have similar open seasons; however, the
Farm Park is not usually free of charge and does not offer
programming beyond special events as Prairie Farm does.

18 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211



Kline Creek Farm -West Chicago, IL

Kline Creek
VuUwg the T1EU) bad; int

Size; Part of a 200+ acre site
Operated by: Forest Preserve District of DuPage County
Hours: 9AM-5PM Thursday-Monday

The Forest Preserve District of DuPage County offers visi-
tors the opportunity "to experience life on a working farm
in the 1890s at Kline Creek Farm... Stroll through restored
farmstead structures and meet the historically costumed
interpreters operating this living history farm using the
tools and techniques of the past. Activities and events at
the farm re-create the seasonal rhythms that have gov-
erned farm life for centuries."35 At Kline Creek Farm, there
is a strong emphasis on historical farming practices and an-
imals, with programming and special events that are simi-
larly oriented to more historical activities like dairy produc-
tion, blacksmithing, canning, quilting, beekeeping, butter
making, cheese making, and farm chores. Kline Creek is
free to the public, with the exception of select programs.

Kline Creek Farm is also home to the Forest Preserve Dis-
trict's Timber Ridge Visitor Center, where "seasonal exhib-
its present elements of the 1890s and the agricultural heri-
tage of DuPage County. The center has modern restrooms,
a drinking fountain, general forest preserve information
and a center store where visitors can purchase beverages
and snacks. Unique gifts are also available such as local-
ly produced honey and soaps, Victoriana, children's toys,
games and books."36 The Visitor Center is located just off
the Timber Ridge Trail, with connections to the Great West-
ern Trail and Illinois Prairie Path, and is therefore highly ac-
cessible by bike or on foot.

At over 200 acres, Kline Creek is significantly larger than
Prairie Farm. The focus of its programming and the quality
of its amenities are guided by a clear commitment to life
on an Illinois farm during the 1890s. Prairie Farm ameni-
ties have a more general reference point (the 19th century)
and there is no formal commitment to providing historical
experiences or programming. However, Prairie Farm could
benefit from more programming for all ages like Kline Creek
offers. There are also comparable opportunities for attract-

ing visitors from Centennial Park and its facilities—Sholem
Aquatic Center, Leonhard Recreation Center, and Lindsay
Tennis Center—through an internal park path system im-
proving site accessibility.

Ryerson Woods Forest Preserve- Riverwoods, IL

Size: Part of a 565 acre site

Operated by: Lake County Forest Preserve District

Hours: 6:30AM-sunset daily

The Ryerson Woods Forest Preserve is home to a small
farm area where visitors can see sheep, goats, and chick-
ens along with rain gardens where butterflies and other
pollinators can be spotted. The farm and gardens are not
the main focus of the site; the preserve also contains the
Edward L. Ryerson Welcome Center—a Platinum LEED
Certified facility-that utilizes natural lighting, geothermal
heating and cooling, and rainwater recycling.37 This facili-
ty demonstrates how public buildings can be more inno-
vative and sustainable by design, and offer a glimpse into
possibilities for stormwater management through more
intentional, environmentally-friendly infrastructure. For
instance, the Welcome Center roof should last at least 50
years compared to the 15-20 year lifetime of traditional
shingled roofs.

The Lake County Forest Preserve District hosts a variety of
community programs and events, some of which are appli-
cable to a more farm-themed environment. This includes
Community Campfire Friday Nights, Early Summer Wild-
flowers. Bees and Other Pollinators, From Seed to Sprout:
How Does a Garden Grow?, and Earth and Family-Friend-
ly Vegetable Gardening. Ryerson Woods also hosts scout
groups, field trips, summer camps, maple syrup hikes, and
Halloween hikes. While Prairie Farm allows visitors to inter-
act with more animals than the Ryerson farm, more diverse
program and event offerings could be popular.

DRAFT 191211:: Prairie Farm Master Plan 19



Wagner Farm - Glenview, IL
t:";::-:'

:;-I-5g5^^1<sa

PRECEDENT IMAGES

Size: 18.9 acres

Operated by: Glenview Park District

Hours: 9AM-5PM Monday-Saturday

Wagner Farm "is one of the last working dairy farms in Cook
County and is open to the public for recreation and learn-
ing. The farm provides a unique opportunity for families to
learn about our farming heritage and experience first-hand
'the way things used to be.' Learn about the farm's live-
stock; attend seasonal special events; discover the many
crops grown on the farm; explore the many interactive
exhibits in the farm's Heritage Center; learn about where
the food we eat comes from."38 Wagner Farm specializes in
both historic and modern farming practices, with a mission
to increase understanding of local agriculture.

The farm is open year-round and consists of an interpretive
exhibit space, offices, kitchen, science + milk lab, green-
house, and two multipurpose rooms. Exhibits include an in-
teractive silo, "Sweets & Treats" shop, 1930's grocery store,
and gift shop.39 At 18.9 acres, Wagner Farm is much larger
than Prairie Farm, but faces similar development challeng-
es in that it's land-locked with little space to expand.

Wagner Farm partners with 4-H, offers field trips for stu-
dents and scout groups, and hosts the Glenview Farmers
Market mid-June through late-October. Field trip topics
include Moo-ving about the Farm!, From Farm to Table,
Milking Cows and Pulling Plows, and Past-Port to the 20's.
Their programs include When Chores Were Done, Terrific
Tomatoes, Berry Delicious Baking, and Stick a Fork in It: A
Kids Cooking Series. Special events at Wagner Farm include
Vet for a Day, Fall Bonfire, and previously Baconfest. Similar
programs and events could shift Prairie Farm's program fo-
cus from farm animals to life on a farm in general.

A barn with restrooms can provide hygenic
services as well as program and event space.

Hand wash stations help reduce the
likelihood ofanimal-borne illness and disease.

j

Garden plots can be used to educate visitors
on food production and agricultural practices.

A

An expanded play area offers more recreation
and entertainment opportunities.

20 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211



0



Vli

Figure 32 - Prairie Farm Vision.

Vision

Based on the feedback gathered through
community and staff engagement as well
as the challenges outlined in this plan, a
new Vision for Prairie Farm was devel-
oped. This Vision seeks to encapsulate
each of the keywords explored by staff—
engage, educate, entertain, conserve—

and will help guide Prairie Farm's con-
figuration, operation, and programs (see
Figure 13).

Site & Facilities

Barn & Silo

Upgrading the barn to make the space
better for programming would offer the
option of bringing animals in and out as
needed.

Bringing back the silo slide would be an
added recreational amenity for children,
particularly those who are too old for the
current playground. The original silo slide
lives on in the memories of many old-
er Champaign residents and could be a
popular attraction for parents and grand-
parents looking to share a piece of their
childhood with their own families. The ex-
isting silo is unfit for converting into a slide, but a new silo
could be installed elsewhere on-site.

Farmhouse

Currently, the farmhouse is used by staff for meetings, pre-
paring for programs, and as a small office space. It is pro-
posed that the farmhouse remain as a staff-only space. The
interior of the farmhouse is too small for general program
needs and opening the farmhouse to the public would re-
quire significant interior and exterior updates. There is cur-
rently one small restroom within the farmhouse and it is
proposed that it be upgraded to an accessible restroom.

Parking

There are two existing parking lots within Centennial Park
near Prairie Farm. The lots are of similar square footage,
but the lot to the east is designed to accommodate two
rows of parking, whereas the lot to the west only accom-
modates one row of parking. There are currently 19 parking
spaces in the west lot, but with some modifications, the lot
could accommodate 33 spaces without drastically chang-
ing the overall footprint of the parking area. The existing
condition of the west lot is poor. It is recommended that
the lot be renovated and expanded to allow for a second
row of parking. Expanding the parking will be beneficial not
only for Prairie Farm, but for other program areas in Cen-
tennial Park such as the sled hill and ballfields.

Engage
• Captivate the community through fun, interactive programs and
events

• Provideinclusiverecreational experiences for visitorsofall ages and

abilities

Educate

• Acquaintvisitorswith lifeona farm through farmthemed
programming a nd contact with domesticated animals

• Offer opportunities for visitorsto learn about Midwest agricultural
practices and history

i.^jiii ?. ^flfi

•Attract community members through unique and innovative
activities

•Sponsor memorable experiences that will long be associated with
Prairie Farm a nd the Park District

Conserve

•Promote sustainable practices in agriculture through demonstration
of low inputfarming methods

•Employ envi ronmenta I ly-friendly and financially-sound operational
techniques

Barn & Restrooms

Prairie Farm does not have covered space for programming
or visitors, and in inclement weather there is no contingen-
cy space for programming or rentals. Building a barn with
several large doors will create a space that has an indoor/
outdoor pavilion feel but with the flexibility of closing off
the elements to continue programming or rentals in severe
weather. A more enclosed barn will also allow rentals to
occur while Prairie Farm is open to the public. Current-
ly, rentals are scheduled outside of public access hours,
with birthday parties and group tours only available from
11:30AM-1PM. This 1.5 hour window could be increased
by as much as 7.5 hours, greatly improving chances for
rentals and the revenue they generate.

The proposed barn structure is approximately 1700sf, with
an interior open space large enough to accommodate
around 50 people. There is enough storage proposed to
house the contents of the craft barn and to store tables
and chairs. A small concessions area will be publicly acces-
sible from the exterior of the barn and accessible from the
interior for programs/rentals. This will create more oppor-
tunities for revenue as well as new amenities for prospec-
tive rentals. Three ADA restrooms are also proposed to the
barn. Two shall be accessed via the exterior of the barn so
that patrons can utilize them while the interior is used for
rentals or programming. The restrooms will encourage pa-

22 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211



•'

•
Sholem Aquatic Center

Figure 33 - Recommended site design.

DRAFT 191211:: Prairie Farm Master Plan 23



trons to linger at the farm and provide plumbing for ade-
quate handwashing. They will also be a desirable amenity
for rentals. In order to construct a facility with plumbing
and electricity, upgrades to the utilities servicing the site
will be required.

Animal Program Space

It is proposed that the enclosure which currently houses
donkeys and miniature horses be repurposed for program
space. Both donkeys and miniature horses will be difficult
to acquire with the proposed sourcing scheme. However,
having an enclosure which does not permanently houses
animals offers flexibility for programming where patrons
can interact with the animals such as goat yoga. The space
gives more opportunities for revenue-generating program-
ming while simultaneously leaving the remainder of the

farm open to patrons.

Trolley Barn

The trolley barn is currently used to house the llama. It is
proposed that a llama will no longer be one of the animals
showcased at Prairie Farm. As a result, the trolley barn is
proposed to be repurposed as a general storage area and
house animals in need of quarantine. In the event that an
animal is in need in of veterinary care, the existing stalls
can be utilized to temporarily house animals.

Craft Barn

It is proposed that the craft barn, which is primarily used for
storing program materials, be demolished. The structure is
small and in need of a new roof. Storage will be recouped
within the newly constructed barn. Demolishing the craft
barn will also open up the circulation and create a better
connection to the open space west of the farmhouse.

Hay Barn

The hay barn will be demolished to make room for the larg-
er barn and restrooms. Animal feeds and supplies will be
housed elsewhere on-site. The hay barn was primarily used
for storage for the feed of the horses and cows, but as it is
proposed to no longer house horses and cows, the main
need for the hay barn is lost.

Animal Programming Space

As the variety of species and number of animals are pro-
posed to be reduced, it is recommended that the enclo-
sures which previously housed miniature horses and don-
keys be repurposed as a program space. The area could be
used for programs like goat yoga or as an interactive zone
for rentals.

Fencing

The majority of the fencing is proposed to remain. How-
ever, fencing can be reduced where animal enclosures will
no longer be needed. Fencing proposed to be removed in-

eludes what is currently around the cow enclosure and a
portion of the fencing around the llama enclosure.

Planting

In order to integrate additional agricultural features into
Prairie Farm, it is proposed that more food production be
incorporated into the landscape such as pumpkins and
dwarf apples. On-site food production provides opportu-
nities for teaching visitors about aspects of farming other
than livestock. When combined with existing animal-based
programs, this offers a more complete picture of life on a
farm and fosters an appreciation of both flora and fauna.

Repurpose the Horse Enclosure

As the sourcing for animals transitions, it is proposed that
Prairie Farm no longer house horses. Horses cannot be ac-

quired at the local animal auction and since they require
more space than other farm animals, freeing up the horse
enclosure offers the opportunity for that space to be bet-
ter utilized. The space can house more engaging amenities;
specifically, the proposed children's play area. This play
area will serve children of a wider range of age and ability
than the existing playground does, and the diversity of play
components will encourage visitors to spend more time at
the farm. It is proposed that the new play area consist of
a playground, tractor pull course, water play feature, log
climb, lean-to structures, a tot hay bale maze, and a tire
crawl.

Playground

The existing playground is small and limited to tots. The
playground is proposed to be demolished and its replace-
ment will be located within the new children's play area.
There are many vendors who furnish farm themed play-
ground equipment, including silo type slides.

Animals

Sourcing

The Park District has the opportunity to contract with mul-
tiple farmers for animals, purchase the animals directly
at auction, foster them, or pursue a combination of these
options. Purchasing the animals will require purchasing a
stock trailer, but offers the most control over the number,
species, breed, sex, color, and health of the animals. It also
provides more certainty regarding animal availability and
the costs of caring for them. At the end of the season, the
Park District would have the option of selling the animals or
keeping them if the facility open season is expanded.

Fostering or contracting for animals would require more
coordination and less certainty regarding what animals can
be obtained and the associated costs. Given these limita-
tions, it is recommended that all animals be acquired at
auction. However, it's important to recognize that the path
taken for securing animals might change as the success of

24 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211



Figure 34 - Site design detail plan.

DRAFT 191211:: Prairie Farm Master Plan 25



these options and changing needs at the farm are realized.
Staff should remain open to the idea of pursuing different
opportunities as needed.

Variety

The variety of animals at the farm has depended in large
part on what animals the contracted farmer has arrived
with each year. At times, the farm has housed animals with
significant care requirements that have been a burden for
staff. It is recommended that the animals with the highest
care requirements—horses, miniature horses, cows—as

well as those that are not representative of a traditional
farm—peacocks, Hamas—be excluded from the farm. This
will permit staff to dedicate more time and energy to ani-
mals that have more reasonable needs as well as other pro-
posed amenities like the children's play area. Animals that
are recommended include the Nigerian dwarf goats, Boer
goats, sheep, pigs, chickens, rabbits, and koi fish.

Animal Welfare & Safety

Proposed measures to address concerns over animal wel-
fare and safety include housing fewer animals, housing
only animals that have reasonable care requirements (i.e.
aren't prone to significant health concerns), and the addi-
tion of more secure enclosures for the animals at night to
deter those looking to harm or steal the animals.

Efforts to house fewer animals and only those with reason-
able care requirements go hand-in-hand and offer the op-
portunity to provide each animal with more space. In turn,
having more space for the animals should open up possibil-
ities for making more secure enclosures.

Public Welfare & Safety

Efforts to reduce the possibility of illness in both animals
and the public should remain a high priority, including the
use of hand wash stations and informative signage. To help
prevent the spread of disease, the CDC recommends that
those working with animals on display "provide stations

for handwashing at the exits of animal exhibits, including
some that are low enough for children to reach... [and] pro-
vide signs for guests on when and how to wash their hands,
where people can eat, and areas for the animals. Use plain
language and pictures."40 Seven states legally require hand
sanitation stations at animal contact exhibits, most of
which also require posted signage recommending sanita-
tion and/or indicating the associated health risks.41 Prairie
Farm is in the process of taking similar measures to reduce
the likelihood of any animal related illness. A hand wash
station was made available late in the 2019 season along
with hand sanitizer stations and signs recommending their
use. As this is a new addition, staff should evaluate wheth-
er the hand wash stations and signage meet the needs of
the farm and are effective in safeguarding public health.

Figure 35 - Current hand wash station and signage set-up.

26 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211



DRAFT 191211:: Prairie Farm Master Plan 27



Programming & Special Events

JAN

FEB

MAR

APR

MAY

JUN

JUL

AUG

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

PROPOSED
OPEN — -
SEASON

Operating Season

With new opportunities for animal sourcing, it's recommended that the
facility open season be extended. The farm can capitalize on hosting the
animals longer as well as new possibilities for rentals, events, and pro-
grams. An extended operating season also allows school groups to make
a trip to the farm; whereas, the current season ends before many schools
begin fall classes.

The proposed open season will extend from April through October, with
reduced hours in the months outside of the farm's traditional open season.

Staffing

The creation of a full-time Farm Manager position is recommended. Having
a full-time Farm Manager would help in retaining institutional knowledge,
particularly when it comes to the new animal sourdng process and animal
care requirements. Transitioning to a longer operating season would also
be more seamless with the help of a full-time employee to handle the
day-to-day needs and challenges at the farm. Relying on only part-time
employees, particularly in the spring and fall, poses the risk of losing em-
ptoyees, many of whom are students, to academic responsibilities or other
employment opportunities.

Program Innovation

Program innovation is one way the farm can transform both its utility and
popularity as a public facility. Expanding the children's programming to
include more than animal-themed programs might attract children of a
wider age range and diminish the farm's image as solely a petting zoo.
Programs could include:

Vegetable gardening and preparation
Farm chores
Pollinators
Composting
Veterinary care

There are also many opportunities for adult programming at the farm such
as:

Canning
Quilting
Vegetable gardening and harvesting
Beekeeping
Food dehydration
Garden to Table classes
Goat yoga
Miscellaneous agricultural classes

Additionally, expanding the Friends of the Farm program to include more
than just animal adoptions or providing less expensive options again (cur-
rently set at $50 per animal) could boost adoption numbers. Adopters
could pay less for adopting a chicken, for instance, than a pig since they're
cheaper to house and feed.

Flexibility in program offerings will be key in upcoming years as staff work
out what programs are most popular and best suited to Prairie Farm's new
Mission and Vision.

28 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211



Special Events

Special events catering to community members of all ages
throughout the year could also help separate Prairie Farm
from its image as only a children's facility. Seasonal activi-
ties like pumpkin carving orscarecrow making could attract
participants of any age, while other special events like win-
ter carriage rides or prairie lights might continue to attract
families with young children, but offer event opportunities
beyond Prairie Farm's traditional open season. Many of
these events can have a farm theme without requiring ani-
mals, which could help offset the costs of operation.

Hosting scout events and field trips would also draw more
small groups to the farm and could set the stage for work-
ing with the same groups over the course of many years.
Again, an expanded farm season would help draw these
groups to the farm.

Sales & Concessions

Though Prairie Farm does not have a gift shop or store,
revenues could be supplemented through the regular sale
of snacks and beverages through the barn's concessions
stand. In the fall and winter, other sales could be hosted at
the farm such as pumpkin, mums, Christmas tree, and/or
wreath sales. Sales could be recurring or one-time events.

Partners & Sponsors

Partnerships offer the possibility of securing program funds
or amenities without utilizing tax support. Program part-
ners could include the 4-H, Illinois Farm Bureau, FFA, USDA,
and more. Likewise, companies like Case IH, John Deere,
and others specializing in agricultural products or equip-
ment might be willing to become involved as sponsors of
Prairie Farm programs, events, and amenities that align
with their areas of specialty.

Marketing

Photo Stations

Photo stations offer an opportunity to increase the farm's
online presence through visitors' photos and social me-
dia posts. Stations exhibiting Prairie Farm's name or logo
would be especially helpful in advertising the farm when
shared through social media.

Rebranding

Changing the facility name from the "Children's Prairie
Farm" to "Prairie Farm" would help make the facility better
suited to community members of all ages. While the farm
is primarily referred to as just "Prairie Farm" this switch
would mean replacing the sign at the entrance of the farm.

Social Media

In the spring of 2019, a cohort of Recreation, Sports, and
Tourism students from the University of Illinois conduct-
ed a social media analysis looking at trends in posts that
featured Prairie Farm. The students examined posts from
Instagram, Facebook, Google Reviews, and Yelp. From In-
stagram, they noted that the most photographed animals
were the goats and miniature horses, and most posts were
made by women. From Facebook, the students noted that
the facility had 4.3/5 stars despite lacking an official Face-
book page. A significant finding from the combined reviews
of Google and Yelp was that 28% of reviewers mentioned
the farm's free admission and many mentioned children
and family42. The students argued for official Prairie Farm
social media pages, and given their findings, it's likely that
pages specific to the farm would boost online marketing.
Many similar facilities have Facebook pages or Instagram
accounts for posting event and program information, al-
lowing users to check-in, and regularly encouraging follow-
ers to make a trip to the farm.

••^

DRAFT 191211:: Prairie Farm Master Plan 29



Bell et al. (2019). Prairie Farm Comprehensive Report
University of Illinois Urbana-Champaign. Urba-
na-Champaign:RST441.

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019, June
11). Healthy Pets, Healthy People. Retrieved June
19, 2019, from https://www.cdc.gov/healthypets/
specific-groups/stay-healthy-animal-exhibits.
html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.
gov%2Fhealthypets%2Fspecific-groups%2Fcon-
tact-animals-public-settings.html

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, (n.d.). Menu
of State Hand Sanitation Laws for Animal Contact
Exhibits. Retrieved June 19, 2019, from www.cdc.
gov: https://www.cdc.gov/phlp/docs/menu-ani-
malsanition.pdf

Champaign Park District. (1964, December 10). Cham-
paign Park District Minutes of a Regular Meeting
of the Board of Park Commissioners.

Champaign Park District. (2014). Champaign Park District
Public Perception Survey. Champaign: Champaign
Park District.

Champaign Park District. (2015). Anunal BudgetFY
2015/2016. Champaign: Champaign Park District.

Champaign Park District. (2018). Champaign Park District
Facility Report Card.

Champaign Park District. (2018). Program Guide: explore!

Champaign Park District. (2019). Annual Budget FYE 2019.
Champaign: Champaign Park District.

City ofGermantown. (2019). The Farm Park. Retrieved Au-
gust 12, 2019, from https://www.germantown-tn.
gov/play/parks-and-recreation/the-farm-park

Dalhoff Thomas Design Studio, (n.d.). LanierFarm Park.
Retrieved August 12, 2019, from http://www.
dt-designstudio.com/lanier-farm-park

etc Institute. (2012). 2011-2012 Community Needs Assess-
ment Survey. Olathe, KS: etc Institute.

Fon Du Lac Park District. (2018). Fon du Lac Farm Park.
Retrieved May 14, 2019, from https://www.fondu-
lacpark.com/facilities/fondulac-farm-park/

Forest Preserve District of DuPage County. (2019). Kline
Creek Farm. Retrieved May 14, 2019, from https://
www.dupageforest.org/kline-creek-farmftfarm-

stead

Glenview Park District. (2019). Historic Wagner Farm.
Retrieved May 14, 2019, from https://www.glen-
viewparks.org/historicwagnerfarm/

Lake County Forest Preserve District. (2019). Lake County
Forest Preserves. Retrieved June 20, 2019, from
https://www.lcfpd.org/ryerson/welcome-center/

Madden, K., & Schwartz, A. (2000). Public parks, private
partners : how partnerships are revitalizing urban
parks. New York, NY: Project for Public Spaces.

Office of Recreation and Park Resources. (2017). Cham-
paign Park District Community Survey. University
of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign.

University of Illinois Department of Architecture. (1973).
children's prairie farm champaign park district:
the house. Architectural Program.

30 Champaign Park District:: DRAFT 191211



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT



•
2019 Taste of CU Report

• Location: West Side Park

• Date: Friday, August 16-17, 2019

• Time: Friday 5:00-11 :00p & Saturday 11 :00a-ll :00p

• Estimated Attendees:

• 2019-22,000 people

• 2018-31,000 people



Event Overview

2019

• Total Ticket Sales: $ 120,000

• Beer Sales: $28,241

• Donations: $5,804

• Sponsorship: $21,500

• Projected Net Value: $2,669.70

• 26 Food Vendors, 3 0 Artist, 3 9 Non-Profit, 7
Corporate Sponsors

• Patrons purchased a sheet of 5 tickets for $5;
each ticket was $1

2018

• Total Ticket Sales: $ 116,75 1

• Beer Sales: $26,547

• Donations: $6,715

• Sponsorship: $12,000

• Projected Net Value: $2, 107

• 30 Food Vendors, 27 Artist, 27 Non-Profit, 3
Corporate Sponsors

• Patrons purchased a sheet of 5 tickets for $5;
each ticket was $1

•,v-mf"nfi^'^r""M' ,i*-^-Wi^'itrrT!W"rfT'^Wi'



Sponsorship

2019
• Central Illinois Bank: $10,000

• Illinois American Water: $6,000

• City of Champaign: $5,500

2018
• Central Illinois Bank: $6,000

• Illinois American Water: $5,000

• iSBroadband: $1,000



Top Vendor Sellers

2019

• The Snack Shack; Savoy, IL-$6,986

• Support Our Senioi: Veterans lac;
Heyworth, IL-$6,450

• Chester's BBQ; Champaiga, IL-$5,526

2018

• Support Our Senior Veterans Inc;
Heyworth, IL-$8,909

• The Snack Shack; Savoy, IL-$7,627

• Wood'n'Hog BBQ; Champaiga, IL-$5,857

-^^•\A-

^^^C^SS2^ ^M^i£v
) ft

^.|l.-,»y,>,^|^l^N»W>lp^<^1^f<^lnfp»]>n.,,irft''1-



Kids Zone

• QuadJumper-New!

• Joyful Bubbles

• House of Bouncers inflatables.

• Touch a Truck

• Face Painting

• Community Vendors: Orpheum
Children's Science Museum, HMD
Academy, YMCA, U of I Lacrosse
Team, U of I Infant & Child
Development Lab



Pie Run

• Location: West Side Park

• Date: Saturday August 17th

• Time: Race began at 10:30am

• Participants:

• 2019-125

• 2018-120

wif^wwron^iWffp'Tffi'wnr^n^^



Volunteers

2019

Total Volunteers: 130

Total Volunteer Hours: 430.5

Volunteer Jobs: Ticket Tent, Volunteer Table, Vendor Check-Ia, Vendor
Loading Attendant, and Beer Tent

Entrance Monitor Groups: CU @ Home

2018

Total Voluoteers: 170

Total Volunteer Hours: 978

Volunteer Jobs: Ticket Tent, Volunteer Table, Vendor Check-In, Vendor
Loading Attendant, and Beer Tent

Entrance Monitor Groups: CU @ Home, Junior League, and Birthright
ofCU

^•^-;"lMn333s^5ie?^
I

'""I

!;'l-.*-;w-
•\^.^r^

^•>;(».*.l'i(.»

n'*A^iA>^'

,;...;„,,, ,^.^



Survey Results

Vendor Results: "This was our first ^ear participating and despite having a successful weekend
and great weather. Our team was very impressed with Champaign Park District

team I staff I volunteers and interns. )> <CI enjoyed this layout the most out of any in the past.

Event Rating/Location: 80% of responses in the Good to Excellent category

Concerns and Comments: Mostly positive with additions to family area/kids zone,
layout, and variety of food vendors

Areas of Improvement: Better location for community corridor, additional activities

for older patrons to participate in. (Bags tournament and other adult games and

activities.)

mi^iji>ttf»^wi^u^i«r'n»^1'^il^l<il^i'i'i'r'iirf^'1')^i^'i"t^~''u]ii<ifl*;^'-^''^''llvf^'^^^'^t^





CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: December 5, 2019

SUBJECT: 2019 Summer Day Camp Report

Introduction
Each year, the Champaign Park District offers numerous day camp programs throughout the summer.
While some camps have their own unique offerings and opportunities, many of the camps operate very
similarly allowing participation in general recreation activities, the arts, health and wellness and field trips.

Backflround
Summer Day Camp planning is done on a year-round basis with regular committee meetings happening at
least once per month. During planning meetings, the committee discusses parent, participant, and staff
input and suggestions to aid in the development of the next season's programs. Throughout the camp
program, Director level staff meet with the Director of Recreation for Director's Round Tables where they
are able to discuss their experiences at their facilities and in their roles. These roundtable discussions help
camp staff make adjustments throughout the summer.

Prior to the start of the season, camp staff attend a variety of trainings at various District facilities. Camp
staff also attended a day long training session at the Hilton Garden Inn with professional speaker, educator
and author, Michael Brandwein out of Chicago. Brandwein covered topics on behavior management,
problem solving and teaching campers life skills in the camp setting.

Most camps ran for ten (10) weeks beginning the last week of May through the first week of August.
Leonhard Day Camp ran eleven (11) weeks and ended the second week of August.
In addition to providing a necessary service to the community, camp programs also provide a multitude of
first time opportunities and introductory services for participants and staff. Mini class sessions allow camp
staff to cross sell other District programs for continued patronage throughout the year.

Summer 2019 Overview

Leonhard Day Camp:
This was the sixth year for camp to be held at the new Leonhard Center and we continue to make
improvements every year. With a weekly average of 122 (slightly down from 2018 at 127) kids in
attendance each week, it made for a busy facility also combined with residents taking advantage of their
memberships to enjoy the walking track, weight room and large indoor playground area. Staff worked
really hard to keep the campers engaged and busy with field trips to places like Orpheum Children's
Science Museum, Prairie Farms, Skateland, Pottery at Springer Cultural Center, Prairie Fruits Farm and
Creamery, Old Orchard Bowling Alley, various CPD parks and had some real success working with the U
of I Extension Office and U of I Extension Master Gardening. This camp is more of a traditional camp and
had themed weeks to peak interest and add variety to the weekly lesson plans. Staff are already working
on ideas and themes for 2020.
Doyfllass Day Camp:

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Douglass staff planned a variety of activities that exposed campers to new and different things that they
might not have experienced before such as visiting Monkey Joe's in Peoria, participating in sports they
may have never have played, and creating healthy snacks with Illinois Extension. Douglass camps work
cooperatively with the City of Champaign to provide free camp to youth in specific neighborhoods in
Champaign through the Community Matters grant program. Over the summer, Douglass received funding
to offer twenty eight (28) spots per week for campers ages 6-11.

Campers Explore Camp:
Over the summer, Douglass hosted ten (10) weeks of Campers Explore camp which focuses on Science,
Technology, Engineering, Arts and Math (STEAM) for finds in grades 3-6. Sessions offered this year
included: Biology, Kitchen Creations, Maker Girl, Engineering, Gymnastics, Physics, Inventions, and the 4
elements. Campers Explore camps have fewer available spots than others to allow for a more intimate
learning environment.

Creative Kids - Springer Cultural Center:
This camp provides experiences in culturally based activities as well as traditional camp activities. Since it
is held at the Cultural Center, campers can take advantage of what the facility offers including Pottery, Art
projects in the art studio, and creative movement courses with our Dance Arts staff. Creative Kids Camp
works to expose campers to specialty programs offered at Springer and the Instructors that teach those
programs to build relationships for repeat patronage. This is a focus for all of our camps as well.

CUSR - FKO and Camp SDirit:
Camp Spirit and FKO camp were both hosted at Franklin STEAM Academy. We occupied 6 classrooms
total and had access to the gym and cafeteria. Staff were split into two shifts daily, 7:30am-12:30pm and
12:30pm-5:30pm. With the split shift it allows for staff to come back to camp each day refreshed or they
can pick up shifts for other staff members who have a conflict and cannot come in. With the separation in
the day, it also helps minimize behaviors and start fresh with behavior and discipline. Camp spirit went on
a lot of field trips like the other camps including the Planetarium, Old Orchard Lanes, Kickapoo State Park,
Common Ground and many more. Our FKO camp did not go on as many field trips this year as the need
for 1:1 assistance was much higher than previous years. They did take an all day trip to the Bloomington
Discovery Museum with the pool following after! Twice weekly, FKO would attend Sholem Pool as well. We
combined our fundraiser into one big event featuring the carnival and bake sale.

Attendance
The Champaign Park District strives to attract and retain participants by offering a variety of program
options at an affordable rate. However, there are many other agencies who also provide similar
opportunities at comparable or lower rates that could affect program numbers. Our programs provide
opportunities for those ages 5-22. (16-22 offered at CUSR camps)

Season

Location
Community Matters
Creative Kids
CUSR-FKO
CUSR-Spirit
Douglass Day Camp
Campers Explore
Girls Explore
Leonhard Day Camp
Leonhard Teen Camp
Community Matters
Campers Explore
Garden Hills

2014

300
288
252*
252*

294
N/A
N/A
1609
N/A
N/A

N/A

2015

211
537
112
111
387
N/A
101
1434
N/A
N/A

N/A

2016

169
627
149
175
445
N/A
108
1268
134
N/A

N/A

2017

130
637
143
203
398
N/A
88
1235
116
N/A

N/A

2018

205
752
137
202
409
74
12 (1 week)
1197
127
N/A

17

2019

239
668
123
160
328
75
N/A
1225
116
16

25
*Camp numbers were combined forFKO & Spirit camps in 2014 reporting.

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Community Partners
Community partners allow program coordinators the opportunity to provide more variety in their camp
programs. Partners contribute in a variety of ways including adding specialized curriculum, volunteering
and doing guest presentations for campers. Some of the partners this season were:

Maker Girl
Common Ground
U of I Biology Department
Champaign-Urbana Public Health District
Champaign Unit 4 School District
University of Illinois Extension Office
Champaign County Farm Bureau
Sola Gratia Farms
Tony Noel Agricultural Center

Food Programs
The Champaign Park District works closely with Champaign-Urbana Public Health District (CUPD)and
Champaign Unit 4 Schools to provide food to youth during the summer. CUPD provides snacks to
Leonhard and Creative Kids Camps. Champaign Unit 4 Schools provides breakfast and lunch to Douglass
camps and community youth as a part of a federal grant program that specializes in providing out of school
time meals to youth (18 and under) in low-income areas. This summer, there were a total of 4,750
(breakfast/lunch) snacks provided at Creative Kids Camp, 11,110 snacks (breakfasVlunch) provided at
Leonhard Day Camp, 3,892 meals served at Douglass Camps and 219 meals served to community youth
at Douglass Community Center.

Budget Impact
Camp prices are reviewed and compared against other entities that provide a similar service to ensure
prices are competitive yet affordable. Below is a quick snapshot on how camps did this summer with
expenses (reflecting staff costs, program supplies/equipment, space rental and transportation, food
supplies, cell phones, field trips, contractual personnel, books/manuscripts, staff uniforms and participant
uniforms).

Creative Kids - SCO (10 weeks)
$80,712.97 Revenues
$54,391.66 Expenses
$26,321.31 Net

Douglass Camp (10 weeks)
$50,512.00 Revenues
$55,246.00 Expenses
($4,734.00) Net(Deficit)

CUSR Camp Spirit
$20,902.00 Revenues
$53675.93 Expenses
($32,773.93) Net

Leonhard Day/Teen Camps (11 weeks)
$163,430.00 Revenues
$157,757.00 Expenses
$5,613.00 Net

Campers Explore Camp (10 weeks)
$16,163.00 Revenues
$15,431.00 Expenses
$732.00 Net

CUSR For Kids Only (FKO)
$13,534.00 Revenues

$48,296.31 Expenses
($34,762.31) Net(Deficit)

Scholarship
District scholarships were awarded in the following amounts:

• Douglass Camps- $4,701 ($6,178.00 in 2018)
• Creative Kids: Springer Cultural Center-$3,369.00 ($5,176.00 in 2018)
• FKO/Camp Spirit - $2,963.00 ($1,660.50 in 2018)
• LRC Camp - $1 5,280.00 ($10,218.00 in 2018)

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Monetary and In-Kind contributors
We work with local entities in town to provide financial assistance and residents can apply for assistance
from our scholarship program. Those entities are:

o Champaign-Urbana Public Health District
• City of Champaign Neighborhood Services
• Child Care Resources

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Day Camp Committee Jameel T. Jones
Director of Recreation

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Sholem Aquatic Center
CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

2019 Season Report

^



General Overview

101 day season

69,128 visitors

3 exceeded lifeguard audits

61 lifeguard rescues

27 rentals

2,065 pass holders

1,132 registered for aquatic programs



Summer Events

Sholem hosted several successful events:
• Opening weekend Memorial Day celebration
• Father's Day celebration
• Splish Splash Water Safety Bash
• 4th of July celebration
• Sensory Friendly Pool Day
• Senior Swim Day
• Two movie nights
• Adult swim night
• Ninth annual Cardboard Cup event
• Central Illinois Swim Conference Meet



Attendance Records

Day of the Week

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

Sunday

Daily Attendance

6,230

7,691

7,148

7,252

8,459

9,629

7,584

Pass Holder Visits

2,227

2,533

2,209

2,330

2,354

1/835

2,212

Total Attendance

8/457

10/224

9,357

9,582

10,813

11/464

9/796



m'ss

V/N
V/N

V/N
V/N

szfzs

V/N
V/N

V/N
V/N

S8€'08

V/N
V/N

V/N
m'9

(?©W

V/N
OGT'ZT

L91

£T6'S

ww'i

V/N
T/.8

8fr9'£

'•9Kt*V^.

V/N
689'S

ZTO'S

SSS'88

V/N

9Z8'n

fr£

8£8'9

i"WM,

V/N

'7LVL

STT

Z/.T'8

\«sft». ;

V/N

US'OT.

SOT

,.££'6

8ZT'9ESSE'TE

1798'9

sos'szZ.6£'OZ

z^z's

9Z8'6T

s/.G'e

SSS'OZ 9E8'TZ 965'/.T

T09'OT SSZ'6 \ frTS'Z. \ 8S6'£ 9Z8'£ I SZfr'S zss's TTt'9

£9£'SZ ng'SZ GOT'EZ TGT'H . ESS'frT i ZS6YT gfrZ.'Z.T SH'ST

STT'OZ

SSE'ET

OTOZ | TTOZ I ZTOZ | ETOZ

ose's

00^'ST

frZZ/ZT

fr^S'OT

STOZ | 9TOZ | tXOZ \ 8TOZ | 6TOZ

stmieto.1.

sjapuodssy :tSjy/Ajei!|j|/\|

siisi/v luejSojd

sj3p|oqssed eueqjn

Aepuj fr$

siisiAJSploqssed

lL|3l|!Ml

sdnojo Ai!unujLU03

sdncug ad3

^ILUpV 33-ld

33Jj gJ9pUn

sioiAuu.

yNi'ujpvAiiea

y Hiupv A[!ea

LUIMS dei

•p^uo3 spjooay aouepueuv



'^uatic Safety Con^uliCtn'^"
•ouulv Pre.<L'nt<

^ ii"i
'^•El "TF

^M^ .'::-.
\'WK'!- '1:
!r'^^\
'•=.%'

••- ;he

~INUM

Ji._ SAFETY AWARD

^'•' • . . '•\.:hL-;-l(.iua)ity

.'i^s^ ^LL..'| and operational

1 nation in the

VqLiatic
- •:^m

lil^/i^Bit ^
llliii ,-""•
"iiK-
isr
•.,;'t;^'•-';:;,—

ii^..,.....,.....^.^...,.....^......,...-.^,

This year's lifeguard staff received an
"Exceeds" on all three unannounced Ellis
and Associates (E&A) audits, not missing a
single available point on any of the three
audits (making this 3 years straight without
a single point missed). Due to tffis,the
2019-lifeguard staff js eligible to be
awardecTthe rank of "Platinum Staff. The
top 16% of E&A facilities were awarded this
rank for the 2018 season, making this an
honor to be very proud of.

Sholem lifeguard staff successfully rescued
61 patrons this summer. 48% of this
season's rescues were for children ages 6-
12, and 48% were for children ages 0-5.





Public Feedback

Positives:
• Cleanliness
• Lazy River
• Sprawling Layout
• Friendly Staff
• Skilled Lifeguards



Public Feedback Cont'd

• Negatives:

• Closures

• Limited Seating

• Limited Shade

• Lack of Activities for Teens



Swim Lessons Growth

700

600

500

400

300

200

-653-

610

100 ——

::t!>hS;ffllSlwii1'"
-1111-

::j!liiiliiil'';!:i'1

-liillil':,-
';'';!);';;;li''.S<^^

"i';:i'ii.<! 1:1'1;,,:1?1'

':iil'l^-ISl;"iilrJ:';~
iiiillli.jlllllj

-15-7- JZ6_ .-1-6-5--

|:|i;i||glSSi|)!l
--j:ljltii..___--ligSllil—-—-

!h::;;l;l',:,ll;;ll>:l!;i';i!;tl?!SIIIil
:!lil;S8

-2Z1- 280

-169-

Weekday Swim Lessons Sunday Swim Lessons

2017 2018 r: 2019

Private Lessons



Sholem Sharks

180

160

140

120

100

80 ———
60

40

20

158

-133.

-^A&-

i:MSMI&il?
./j^Bfc"S,1,;!r;;,;,1;.';1.^-

,;1: ^'l:''l!-b::i ^'l-' •l'i

-^•'^US''f:iv,-

:!!;l;;t''i'f'')l''!!;ll"^;"!:

-:ii!lij3:i!:'^I^i:i'iil-
~:f!^h'!l:'l''f!l:;:!hi3'l;;tii;!:f^

-29- -SQ- 26

Sholem Sharks Swim Team Sholem Sharks Pre-Team

2017 2018 ? 2019



Program Trend Notes

Swim Lessons: Group swim lesson registration was up this year compared
to last year, but was still right around where we would expect. There was an
increase of 9 private lessons from 2018 to 2019, which is amazing as we
thought last year was higher than we could achieve this year. Parents enjoy
the direct instruction time and the flexibility of the scheduling.

Swim Team: We saw a dip in registration take place this year with the loss
of some of our older, more experienced swimmers and their
knowledgeable parents. The Sholem Sharks did do better this year than last
at the conference meet, placing second.

Water Aerobics: Jo Rodriguez feels that as her older participants are no
longer able to participate there aren't new, younger ones wanting to join
the'program. Overall we went from 194 participants in 2018 to 171
participants in 2019.



Sales

Staffing Costs

Merchandise for Resale

Revenue

Net Revenue

Food Selection

Prices

Speed of Service

Customer Service

$75,283

$25,810

$39,798

$9,676.00
$2,118

$87,703.53

$27,661.79

$40,004.60

$20,037.14
$9,098

Excellent

13.19%

16.48%

10.99%

12.09%

$75,338.55

$21,419.13

$37,262.44

$9,566.33
$7,001

EKOIH

39.56%

30.77%

25.27%

.55

35.16%

$90,782.14

$13,395.21

$40,248.72

$27,513.79
$26,762

$82,263.08

$19,395.64

$29,907.57

$26,430.51
$23,285

Average

29.67%

40.66%

34.07%

30.77%

$58,635.48

$20,640.33

$24,545.97

$6,025.31
$3,693

FafiF

14.29%

6.59%

15.38%

14.29%

$63,060.92

$18,852.16

N/A

$11,597.47
$11,410

P6or

3.30%

5.49%

14.29%

7.69%



Based on this year's survey, 83% of patrons felt the
food selection was "Excellent" to "Average77.
Additional survey results show that 70%~of patrons
thought their speed of service was "Excellent" to
"Average". Even with this improvement over last year
this is still an area that is being looked at for
improvement. Overall, the menu and prices stayed
consistent with what they were last year with the
addition of Dippin/ Dots and Rosati's Pizza.



Positive Media Presence

Over the course of the summer, several news outlets produced
stories related to Sholem Aquatic Center that included:

• 1) a review of our programs during a WCIA special opening of the pool on
May 25th,

• 2) water safety and the importance of attending a public pool with highly
trained lifeguards (including a description of our lifeguard training),

• 3) the Risk Watch presentations done all spring, teaching all second and 4th
graders in unit 4 schools about water safety, and

• 4) the closing of the pool and what we wanted the public to know about
our closing weekend.



Negative Media Presence

• Due to a few unfortunate situations this summer the
pool received some publicity for negative events.
These include a brief shut-down of the main pool
due to a mechanical failure, the presence of E~coli at
Crystal Lake, and low staffing causing us to close
down late in the summer.

• Any closures were done out of concern for the
health and safety of our patrons.



• 93% of patrons responded positively about their time at Sholem
during the 2019 season.

• All serious medical emergencies were dealt with by staff in a way that
led to positive outcomes^

• We received very high scores by Ellis and Associates for our lifeguards
and IDPH for our pool and concession stand operations.

• Walk the River continues to grow. 2,194 people participated in it this
year.

• Attendance was up 18% from last year, more rentals/parties were
booked, and the pool budget came very close to breaking even.



•iqSiejis sjesA
OMI sn 01 S!L|I papjeMe

seq AijunaiLuos
aqi 'eeje aqi ui

jood 3i|qnd iseq aqi se
Luejoqs paujeu spjeMe

33ioq3 s,a|do9d 3L|i
'Hddl PUB S3iei3ossv

pue si||3 uuoj4
sjouoq/sejODS q§iq

3UIM939J 01 uoiijppe uj

|00<p!iq"d
joopirO ?

ajnsiai 'uo.nesjasa

; ja»us3 a.iienby

uofoqs
(

J8UUI/\/\ 33e|(j 1.SJIJ


	Page 1.pdf
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	a.pdf
	a1
	a2

	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10

